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Wait at Terminal 21
by Hong Sek Chern
Chinese ink on rice paper

Ms Hong Sek Chern’s Wait at Terminal 21 is the design inspiration for the cover of this year’s
UOB Group Annual Report. The painting received the Gold Award for the Established Artist
category in the 2014 UOB Painting of the Year (Singapore) Competition. It is symbolic of the
beliefs and actions that can bind people and shape their future.

Ms Hong was inspired by the determination, persistence and resilience of the Thai people
and sought to capture these qualities in her painting. She portrayed a democracy movement
at Bangkok’s Terminal 21 shopping mall, employing her signature style which is a complex
interplay of architectural blocks and lines.

The UOB Painting of the Year Competition, now in its 33 year, promotes awareness and
appreciation of art and challenges artists to produce works that inspire audiences across
Southeast Asia.
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Important Notice

The Board of Directors of the Company assures that the
information presented in this report is true, accurate and
complete. This report was passed at the Board of Directors
Meeting held on 18 March 2015.

The financial statements of the Company for Year 2014
were audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming Shanghai Office in
accordance with the China Certificated Public Accountants’
Independent Auditing Standards, and have obtained standard
auditors’ reports without any reserved opinions.

Board of Directors, United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

18 March 2015
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About United Overseas Bank (China)
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB (China)) is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB), a
leading bank in Asia. Headquartered in Shanghai, UOB (China) was
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China on 18 December 2007
with a registered capital of Renminbi (RMB) three billion.

The Bank’s far-sighted approach has seen it grow from strength
to strength since its inauguration on 2 January 2008. At present,
there are more than 10 branches and sub-branches in the major
Chinese cities.

UOB has 30 years’ experience in China, with the first
representative office set up in Beijing in 1984. In 2006 UOB was
the first bank from Southeast Asia authorised to settle capital
accounts in Shanghai. UOB (China) received a retail RMB licence
and Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE) trading membership in 2008
and 2011 respectively. In 2012, UOB (China) received a Qualified
Domestic Institutional Investors (QDII) licence, and was one of
the four foreign banks to participate in bullion trading on the SGE
interbank platform. UOB (China) is also one of the first foreign
banks to obtain a local mutual fund licence in China in 2013. In
2014, UOB (China) established a sub-branch at Shanghai Pilot
Free Trade Zone (FTZ), obtained a trial market maker licence for
inter-bank gold bilateral transactions as well as a market maker
licence for direct trading between the RMB and Singapore dollar
(SGD) in the interbank foreign exchange market. These advances
further extended the Bank’s business offerings to customers
operating in China.

UOB (China) scored highly with a triple A rating by the China
Chengxin International Credit Rating Co., Ltd., an affirmation of
the Bank’s overall stability in the financial sector.

As UOB (China) continues to grow its business, it is also
committed to its people and the community. Since 2012,
UOB (China) has participated in the annual UOB Heartbeat
Run/Walk to raise funds for underprivileged children and
various education initiatives in China.

For more information about UOB (China), please visit
www.UOBChina.com.cn
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United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB) is a leading bank in Asia
with a global network of more than 500 offices in 19 countries and
territories in Asia Pacific, Western Europe and North America.

Since its incorporation in 1935, UOB has grown organically and
through a series of strategic acquisitions. UOB is rated among
the world’s top banks: Aal by Moody’s and AA- by Standard &
Poor’s and Fitch Ratings respectively.

Operating Segments

UOB provides a wide range of financial services including
personal financial services, private banking, business banking,
commercial and corporate banking, transaction banking,
investment banking, corporate finance, capital market activities,
treasury services, brokerage and clearing services, asset
management, venture capital management and insurance.

Group Retail

The Group Retail business is focused on providing personal and
business banking customers with financial solutions to help them
manage their money wisely to achieve their financial goals. Its
suite of retail deposits, loans, insurance, cards and investment
products is complemented by a 500-strong integrated branch
network and 1,700 automated teller and cash deposit machines
across the region, as well as online and mobile banking options.

Group Wholesale Banking

The Group Wholesale Banking business is dedicated to providing
businesses and corporates with solutions to optimise their
business operations and cash flow, to manage risk, to enter
into or to expand in a market, and to raise capital. The Bank’s
deep knowledge of Asia and its extensive integrated network are
harnessed to connect customers to regional opportunities.

Global Markets and Investment Management

Global Markets and Investment Management oversees the
Bank’s liquidity, assets, investments and market making across a
wide array of financial instruments. It also provides financial risk
management solutions, brokerage and clearing, investment and
treasury products and services.

UOB in the Community

UOB plays an active role in the community, focusing on art,
children and education. It has, over more than three decades,
held the longest-running art competition in Singapore, the UOB
Painting of the Year, which has since been extended across
Southeast Asia. In recognition of its contribution to the arts,
UOB was conferred the Singapore National Arts Council’s
Distinguished Patron of the Arts Award for the tenth consecutive
year in 2014. UOB also encourages its employees across the
region to be involved in its regular volunteer activities. This
includes the annual UOB Heartbeat Run which is held in China,
Indonesia, Malaysia, Singapore and Thailand.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 5



FEMUFER
Financial Highlights

2014 2013 (Dgzz::ig
ZE KR Operating result ARMFT RMB'000 %
E A N\ &1t Total operating income 976,330 876,829 11.3
&% F Total operating expenses 783,487 660,019 18.7
A RER % Impairment charges 60,197 58,755 2.5
BiBrFIiE Profit before tax 142,865 167,984 (15.0)
# 7= f1{% Balance sheet ARMF5T RMB’000 %
#E7= 21t Total assets 49,023,339 41,972,412 16.8
W £ 36#% Financial indicators % % %
% P78 2 Return on equity 3.3 3.3 0.0
#=FiEZE Return on average total assets 0.3 0.3 0.0
AW EE Expenses/income ratio 80.2 75.3 4.9
FERRMESWN L RN Net fee and commission income/total operating income 10.5 12.6 2.1)
5tk ( AR™M ) Loan-to-deposit ratio (RMB) 69.4 55.8 13.5
AR EFZE Non-performing loan ratio 0.5 0.3 0.2
# & B =% Non-performing loan coverage 276.7 463.8 (187.1)
#HAFE B EI5#4x Capital adequacy ratio
b — BT AT B ZE Core Tier 1 CAR 14.7 16.7 (2.0)
—RAATFERE Tier 1 CAR 14.7 16.7 2.0)
#A IR E Total CAR 15.6 17.7 @2.1)
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Chairman’s Statement

Determination, persistence and resilience — these ideas were the
inspiration for the cover of this year’s Annual Report. They also
describe the approach we take in managing our business — a
considered approach that is appreciated as distinctly UOB’s.

It is an approach that can be seen in the way we have grown
our business in China. Since our incorporation in 2007, we have
steadily built our presence to what it is today — a 16-strong
branch network run by a capable team who believe in putting our
customers’ interests at the heart of all that they do.

It is in line with how UOB has grown across the region over the
last eight decades. We are sensitive to and respect the different
cultures and operating policies across the region. We are patient
in ensuring understanding as we always seek to build sustainable
businesses that can make a difference to the lives of individuals
and the success of local businesses.

Due to Asia’s great diversity, we believe it is always important to
manage through the complexities, to stay locally relevant and
to provide sustainable value for our customers in each market.
Today, ours is a network of unparalleled on-the-ground presence,
and customer and distribution capabilities. Our network enables
us to act as a bridge between Greater China and Southeast Asia
and to help customers with their personal and business banking
and investment needs.

2014 Financial Performance

Amid a volatile global environment, we continued to achieve
steady returns and to maintain a resilient portfolio. Our net profit
after tax increased to RMB 132.1 million, 3.7 per cent increase
over 2013. Operating income registered double-digit growth of
11.3 per cent year-on-year to RMB 976 million, driven by robust
loan volumes and higher investment income.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 7
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While loan interest margins remain healthy, our net interest
income decreased 9.4 per cent to RMB 732.2 million, due to
lower yields on interbank placement in 2014.

Gross fee income increased 4.6 per cent, attributed mainly to
contributions from trade-related fees.

Operating expenses grew by 17.4 per cent as we continued to
invest in our business franchise and focus on building human
capital.

Loans grew by 31.9 per cent to RMB 24.9 billion in 2014,
Our regulatory RMB loan-to-deposit ratio remained healthy at
69.4 per cent. We are also well-prepared for the introduction
of the new Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR), with our LCR well
above the regulatory minimum requirement of 100 per cent.

In the face of market uncertainties, our overall portfolio remained
resilient, with Non-performing Loan (NPL) ratio low at 0.5 per cent.

We are also well-capitalised, with Common Equity Tier 1 and
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio at 14.7 per cent and 15.6 per cent
respectively as at 31 December 2014.

Our prudent and disciplined approach was recognised by rating
agency China Chengxin International Credit Rating Company
Limited, with UOB (China) maintaining its triple A rating.

Investing in Our Product and Service Capabilities

We remain excited about the long-term growth prospects for
Asia and as a result continue to invest in the capabilities that
will enable us to support the financial ambitions of our retail and
business customers. In 2014, we invested in new products and
services to help our customers seize the opportunities arising
from the intra-regional trade and China’s ongoing economic
reforms.

For example, with the increasing importance of China and the
RMB on the global stage, we established a dedicated RMB
Solutions team in Shanghai, Hong Kong and Singapore to
provide advice and financial solutions to customers on how best
to manage RMB trade and settlement requirements.

In 2014, we were one of the first foreign banks granted a direct
RMB/SGD market maker licence and an onshore USD/RMB
option licence. These licences enable us to provide quotes
on the buying and selling prices of the RMB against the SGD.
As a result, our customers can expect lower foreign currency
exchange conversion costs as well as faster transaction
processing and payment.



XELFNES, ST ELZERRARALN, £TXMHH
WS, 2014F, RNETEFART —XBELCVRTVSH
BA, UEBXLERRA Y EPEMEMITNERY RENMNNLS

AEH K ERPERSE P HTR

2014%F, AV MTRAEMM T WA MR, X AR
S5EPFRT RLEEFHBREX,
EATBELFHRENE, 8 (LE) BHRSREX (&K “L

BEEX” ) RYECYVBIEERASTRIN “EHE EE
o ARWBEAEFHIELEERXALE, HA1T2014F6R 5K
M7 EBBRRZT. ZXTEREIETETNTMEMCER Z B TR
VEHEFEHEZARTSRBATR

RIE (2014FERERTTMAWIEEY , 40%0PESWIEAERE
B EFESERMMBAEHEAETHTE, NFEXERKARDXE
FELEET . ATRETEZMRBWEE RO, BMNBEE
KAET —RK717o

AEARVEFRESHRS UEMEIR VS LROER, RiBAE
RHTZRBRERITU SN, WHEENAZR R EUNEMTE R,
B, ﬁMTkE?JW%¢Mﬁ&T%l%Q*“%EEM”*
i, FHERT— ﬁuiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁm%ﬂ%xﬁmm,ﬁﬁﬁpg
SITHMEEERATENRN, HEHSHERMERTR, 2014
F, FTMEBRT M ERTRS ,ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ%?%%%ﬁ%ﬁ
XTFBAN~ @ ERAMNATHERNRTER.

AF®E
FERUY RINEPER L SRMENE A EMOERN, RONEELS
DAV ET R RBEFAENAT

BMNFBRENMIGERATZNFAAFEIE, flm, TSR
TR FTRIAFR T A5 X MR RBEERINRTE . FA1A R TIRAUESN
TEfls, iEMBaEBEBE I MEE T B FRIE W AIRFH
B

AXROCATIAETVHRKNRYERAOREN, BNEXCRTIREAR

EFKTFE

Chairman’s Statement

The economic recovery in the United States is also encouraging
more international investment in Asia. With this development in
mind, in 2014, we established a new Multinational Corporate
team in China to help international companies expand into China
and the region.

Expanding Our Network to Cater to Customers’ Changing
Needs

We made two strategic improvements to our branch network in
2014, both related to the needs of our customers as they sought
to expand their own businesses.

Standing at the forefront of China’s economic reform, the
Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone (FTZ) is a testing ground for
Chinese companies “to go out” using cross-border financing
solutions. In order to help our customers enjoy the benefits
offered in the FTZ, we opened a FTZ sub-branch in June 2014.
It focuses on providing cross-border RMB financing solutions for
customers conducting business between China and the rest of
Asia.

According to the UOB Asian Enterprise Survey 2014, 40 per cent
of Chinese enterprises are considering moving to Southwestern
and Central China, to places such as Chongaging and Chengdu,
to tap into emerging consumer markets in these lower-cost
areas. During the year we opened a branch in the Chongging
Municipality to cater to customers who are setting up businesses
there.

Just as we support the ambitions of businesses across the
country, we continue to strengthen our Retail Banking capabilities
to meet the changing financial needs of individuals. For instance,
we opened our 12" Privilege Banking Centre at Beijing Lufthansa
Centre and introduced a new lifestyle-focused offering tailored to
a customer’s individual wealth management needs and ambitions
in life. We also enhanced our internet banking service in 2014 to
provide the latest information on our products, lifestyle offers and
other relevant market information through our mobile banking
and e-marketing channels.

Investing in People

As we continue to expand our business network and customer
base in China, we look to attract and retain the right talent in all
11 cities in which we operate.

We continued to strengthen our staff training and people
development programmes. For example, we offer specialised
training programmes for our customer segments and branch
teams. We also give our people international exposure so
they can gain expertise and new perspectives through cross-
functional and cross-country assignments.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 9
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In addition to the professional growth and career development
of our people, we also pay attention to their welfare and working
environment. For example in 2014, we introduced CARE, a
flexible benefits programme that enables our employees to
design their own list of preferred benefits.

2015 Outlook

Our results in 2014 were set against the backdrop of moderating
and uneven global economic growth. While the US economy is
in recovery mode, the economies of the eurozone and Japan are
still fragile. With China still undergoing economic transformation,
2015 will be a challenging year.

Heightened volatility is to be expected.

Given this context, our discipline and steadfastness in pursuing
balanced and sustainable growth provide us with a strong
foundation to stay resilient in riding through volatilities. We will
continue to focus on the core fundamentals of banking, ensuring
balance sheet strength and building capabilities for the future.

Our steady progress over the years has been possible through the
guidance of the Board and the tireless efforts of our teams across
the region. | would like to thank them as well as our customers and
investors for their trust and confidence in UOB (China).

Wee Ee Cheong
Chairman

March 2015



NEER
Corporate Information

EEE

KERTT (FE) BRAE
EERERA

H—R

it ak
FETERFRAEK111S1F1058T, 2E, 3F
HREIZRAL: 200120

BiE: (86) (21) 6061 8888
f£E. (86)(21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

M1k, UOBChina.com.cn
AT EH
20074E12818H

BFioHX
EETIRTEEERER
DAEANE LR E TS
310000400553992 (77 /3)
EMEE

AR™300,000 T

BE (ZEA)
RERTHRAE

AR ER

BRFAEAT GMEFEATRE)
HEHILSH

E b #375310043669414723

h=

HiEE

4

R (FFK)
EXE (fTKFERNTE)
R

451388

EBiEfE

BN

HITERS
EHR(ERH)
X

R

%15 A8
RERFHMERS
BERF ()
#—R

=Rk

e

WitERS

EEF (R
E=TES

Iyl

g AR
XBERSENERS
BN ()
RS

BiEE

k4R - E2014E386H 1
REEEERS
B (EE)
RS

4% 15 BR

BiEE

HWitf

LR ERSITIESFr (BHRERAIK) LENA

Registered Name
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

Legal Representative
Wee Ee Cheong
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Website: UOBChina.com.cn
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310000400553992

Paid Up Share Capital
RMB 3,000,000,000

Shareholder (Founder)
United Overseas Bank Limited

Type of Company
Limited Company (Wholly Foreign-owned)

Tax Registration Number
310043669414723

Supervisor
Wee Cho Yaw
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Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Eric Lian Voon Fui (President and CEO)
Francis Lee Chin Yong
Christine Ip

Cham Tao Soon

Zeng Zhi Jie
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Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Eric Lian Voon Fui

Francis Lee Chin Yong
Christine Ip

Nominating and Remuneration Committee
Cham Tao Soon (Chairman)

Wee Ee Cheong

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Zeng Zhi Jie

Audit Committee

Cham Tao Soon (Chairman)

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Christine Ip

Zeng Zhi Jie

Connected Transaction Control Committee
Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman)

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Cham Tao Soon

William Chong Kim Khong - Till 6 March 2014
Risk Management Committee

Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman)

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Christine Ip
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Auditors

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP) Shanghai Office
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Wee Cho Yaw
Supervisor

Dr Wee, 85, was appointed as Supervisor of UOB (China) on
30 October 2007.

Dr Wee is a career banker with more than 50 years’ experience.
He was previously the Chairman and CEO of UOB. Currently,
he is the Chairman Emeritus and Adviser of UOB, a position he
assumed when he stepped down as UOB Chairman in 2013.

Dr Wee sits on the boards of UOB subsidiaries, Far Eastern Bank
and UOB (Malaysia) as Chairman Emeritus and Adviser. He is
also the President Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia and
Chairman of UOB (Thai) Public Company.

His other board chairmanships include United Overseas
Insurance, Haw Par Corporation, UOL Group, Pan Pacific Hotels
Group, United Industrial Corporation, Marina Centre Holdings
and Wee Foundation.

Dr Wee is the Honorary President of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, the Singapore Federation
of Chinese Clan Associations and the Singapore Hokkien Huay
Kuan.

He received Chinese high school education and was conferred
Honorary Degree of Doctor of Letters by the National University
of Singapore in 2008 and by the Nanyang Technological
University in 2014. Dr Wee is currently the Pro-Chancellor of the
Nanyang Technological University.
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BEHE T TF2001 EF19090FERERAFIMF F W MR “FEAYE  Dr Wee was named Businessman of the Year twice at the

BMAR” . EFMEFROREBAMERLAE2006 FxFKEE “B  Singapore Business Awards in 2001 and 1990. He received the

E—RKREGHRIME” . 2009 F, (TWMBRITRY ZFFHLHMKH inaugural Credit Suisse-Ernst & Young Lifetime Achievement

¥, 20115, BELHRAEFNESRSEROFTINEERX “KIMEF  Award in 2006 for his outstanding achievements in the

Y, DREEFHEXMEE TIENAE TR, Singapore business community and The Asian Banker’s Lifetime
Achievement Award in 2009. For his outstanding contributions
to the community and to education, he was conferred the
Distinguished Service Order, Singapore’s highest National Day
Award in 2011.
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Wee Ee Cheong
Chairman

Mr Wee, 62, was appointed as Director and Chairman of the
Board on 17 September 2007. A non-executive and non-
independent director, he is the Chairman of the Executive
Committee and a member of the Nominating and Remuneration
Committees.

A career banker with more than 30 years’ experience, Mr Wee
joined UOB in 1979 and served as its Deputy Chairman and
President from 2000 to 2007. He was appointed as its CEO in
April 2007.

Mr Wee has served as director of UOB since 1990. He also holds
directorships in several UOB subsidiaries including Far Eastern
Bank (where he is also Deputy Chairman), United Overseas
Insurance, UOB (Malaysia) and UOB (Thai) Public Company. He
is the Vice President Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.



HEARWSETUARE, EFMBRTASEESMA. FINKE
T545¥MR (IBF) #E, FRMNEEBFRAEIESERSTE.
HEFHHERESLIEESLTVisa APCEMEA BREFAIEESHAK
R, UEREIEhESmEEEE, I, thZiaEmmngEz
EERBNBEIEFEURSINEESE. £VER. IATHEEEAR
KRETFENES, £THXNEmVATRER, 2013FE 33K TN
HMER “AHBEEE .

REERRZAEN, EEFIARZRNEMA, CEERESNE
£

B—REERHAERUBKEERFEYF T ( THEE ) FAMX
FWt ( KARFE) FAL,

ERS

Board of Directors

Active in industry development, Mr Wee serves as a council
member of The Association of Banks in Singapore, a director
of The Institute of Banking and Finance (IBF) and Chairman of
the IBF Standards Committee. He is a member of the Board
of Governors of the Singapore-China Foundation and Visa
APCEMEA Senior Client Council and an honorary council
member of the Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce &
Industry. He was previously deputy chairman of the Housing
and Development Board and a Director of the Port of Singapore
Authority, UOL Group, Pan Pacific Hotels Group and United
International Securities. In 2013, he was awarded the Public
Service Star by the Singapore Government for his contributions
to the financial industry.

A keen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of the Nanyang
Academy of Fine Arts. He is also a director of the Wee
Foundation.

Mr Wee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business Administration)

and a Master of Arts (Applied Economics) from American
University, Washington, DC.
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Eric Lian Voon Fui
President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Mr Lian, 50, was appointed as President and CEO on 16 September
2013 and director of the Board on 17 September 2013. An executive
and non-independent director, he is a member of the Bank’s
Executive Committee.

Mr Lian has 24 years of banking experience. He began his career
with UOB in 1989 and subsequently held several senior positions
in wholesale banking business, risk management and credit
approval in Singapore and China prior to re-joining the Bank in
July 2013.

He holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Hons) and a Master of
Business Administration (Banking & Finance) from the Nanyang
Technological University, Singapore.
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Francis Lee Chin Yong

Mr Lee, 61, was appointed to the Board on 27 December 2007. A
non-executive and non-independent director, he is a member of the
Bank’s Executive, Nominating and Remuneration, Audit, Connected
Transactions Control and Risk Management Committees.

He joined UOB (Malaysia) in 1980. Prior to his appointment
in Singapore in 2003, he was the CEO of UOB (Malaysia).
Between 2003 and 2008, Mr Lee was the Head of International
and spearheaded the Group’s expansion in the region. He was
also responsible for the Bank’s consumer banking business in
Singapore and the region. In his current portfolio as Managing
Director and Head of Group Retail at UOB, he leads the UOB
Group’s retail businesses for consumers and small business
customers.

Mr Lee is a director of several UOB subsidiaries, including
UOB (Malaysia), UOB (Thai) Public Company, UOB Property
Investments and UOB Property Investments China, and a
member of Board of Commissioners of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.
He also serves as a director of several UOB affiliates, such as
UOB-Kay Hian Holdings, Uni.Asia Capital, President Hotel, HPL
Properties (Malaysia), Grand Elite, Grand Elite (Penang) and UOL
Serviced Residences.

He holds a Malaysia Certificate of Education and has more than
30 years’ experience in the financial industry.
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Christine Ip

Mrs Ip, 51, was appointed to the Board on 22 August 2011. A
non-executive and non-independent director, she is a member of
the Bank’s Executive, Audit and Risk Management Committees.

A seasoned banker with 27 years’ experience in both consumer
and corporate banking, Mrs Ip joined UOB in 2011 and was
appointed as CEO of UOB Hong Kong Branch in December
2011. She chairs the Greater China Council of UOB, and is
responsible for developing UOB’s business in Greater China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior management
positions in product and sales management, customer segment
management and risk management in Hong Kong, the United
States, Canada, Singapore and mainland China.

She is also an independent non-executive director of SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings.

In recognition of her achievements, Mrs Ip received the Asia
Retail Congress “Best International Retail Banker” award in 2008
and was named as one of the top 100 outstanding Chinese
businesswomen in the Greater China region in 2012 by the China
Outstanding Female Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Business Administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology.
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Cham Tao Soon

Prof Cham, 75, was appointed to the Board on 27 December 2007.
A non-executive and independent director, he is the Chairman
of the Nominating and Remuneration and Audit Committees,
and a member of the Connected Transactions Control and Risk
Management Committees.

Prof Cham is the Chairman of NSL, Soup Restaurant and
Fundedbyme Asia Pacific Private Trading Enterprise. He is a
former director of MFS Technology, WBL Corporation and UOB
and its subsidiary, Far Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education scene, Prof Cham
is the former Chancellor of SIM University and Chairman of its
Board of Trustees, and was the founding President of Nanyang
Technological University. He is currently the Special Adviser to
the SIM Governing Council. For his outstanding contributions to
education, he was conferred the Distinguished Service Order,
Singapore’s highest National Day Award, in 2003.

An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a Bachelor of
Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the University of Malaya, a
Bachelor of Science in Mathematics (Hons) from the University of
London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid Mechanics from the
University of Cambridge, UK. He is also a Fellow of the Institution
of Engineers, Singapore, Academy of Engineering, Singapore,
Royal Academy of Engineering, UK and Institution of Mechanical
Engineers, UK and a foreign member of Royal Swedish Academy
of Engineering Sciences.
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Zeng Zhi Jie

Mr Zeng, 46, was appointed to the Board on 26 October 2010.
A non-executive and independent director, he is the Chairman
of the Connected Transactions Control and Risk Management
Committees and a member of the Nominating and Remuneration
and Audit Committees.

Mr Zeng is currently the Senior Managing Director of CITIC
Capital Holdings, the General Manager and Managing Partner
of Kaixin Investment and the Chairman of China Special Article
Logistics Company.

He serves as an independent director for five listed companies,
namely, Great Wall Technology Company, Chinasoft International,
E-house (China) Holdings, Vimicro International Corporation
and AutoNavi Holdings, as well as State Microelectronics. He
is also co-chairman of the China Venture Capital Association
of Investment Association of China and the Executive Director
of Asia America Multi-Technology Association China Branch.
He also serves on the Western Returned Scholars Association
Chamber of Commerce 2005 Committee.

Mr Zeng was formerly a Managing Director at Walden
International, where he was mainly responsible for venture
investments in China and Asia Pacific. He had previously
worked for CITIC Pacific Limited in Hong Kong and Mitsubishi
Corporation in Japan.

He holds a Bachelor of Science in Economics from the University
of Nagasaki, Japan, and a Master of Science in Management
from Stanford University.
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Corporate Banking

In 2014, the Chinese government continued with its economic
reforms to liberalise and internationalise the financial industry.
This has led to both opportunities and challenges for the industry
and related businesses.

As China strengthens its efforts in market liberalisation and with its
enhanced status as an international financial centre, UOB (China)
opened its Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone (FTZ) Sub-branch
in 2014 to focus on cross-border RMB financing. This allows
the Bank to support and facilitate better the cross-border trade
and investment flows in China. Through the new sub-branch,
we provide offshore RMB financing and two-way cash pooling
services to help our clients in their business expansion in China
and in the rest of Asia.

We are committed to providing our clients with customised
products including cash management services to help them
manage better their internal cash flow, trade financing and
commodity hedging solutions to help them manage the risks
from volatile commodity prices. We also provide financial supply
chain management services to help our clients to manage their
overall cash flow.

Our tailored financial solutions span across a wide range of
industries, including food and beverage, technology, media and
telecommunications, real estate, oil and gas, transportation and
logistics, steel and mining, automotive, general manufacturing, etc.

Backed by UOB Group’s strong regional presence, we will
continue to develop and provide innovative and value-added
financial solutions to our clients to support their growth in the
region.
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Commercial Banking

On the back of the steady growth in the Chinese economy in
2014, Commercial Banking achieved double-digit growth during
the year. Our total revenue and operating profit increased
51 per cent and 88 per cent respectively. Through efficient
resource allocation, we also lowered our cost-to-income ratio
by nine per cent in 2014.

With the opening of the FTZ Sub-branch in June 2014,
Commercial Banking is able to provide more comprehensive
cross-border financing solutions by capitalising on UOB Group’s
strong Southeast Asian presence to facilitate flow of funds
between the countries. On top of setting up a new corporate
wealth management team to help our clients in their cash
management, we are also working closely with other divisions
in the Bank to develop supply chain financing solutions and to
onboard more new clients.

During the year, our Foreign Direct Investment Advisory Unit also
maintained strong working relationships with our eco-system
partners including overseas business partners to help Chinese
enterprises in their expansion into Singapore and other countries
in Asia, and vice versa for overseas enterprises entering into the
China market.

In 2015, we will continue to work closely with Global Markets and

Investment Management and Transaction Banking to introduce
new products and services to serve our customers better.
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Multinational Corporate

Multinational Corporate (MNC) was established in 2014 as the
Group recognised the opportunities in this client segment that
arose from continued foreign direct investment flows in Asia.
MNC aims to provide multinational corporate clients with banking
services to develop their business by tapping on UOB's strong
credit ratings and unrivalled regional network.

The MNC team in China was set up to serve the needs of
multinational corporate clients based in Asia.

To cater to our European and American clients’ financial needs,
MNC'’s relationship managers based in Europe, North America
and in Asia will work closely together to provide them with
integrated banking services and solutions.
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Transaction Banking

Our Transaction Banking business continued to record robust
revenue growth in 2014 on the back of increased customer
demand for cash and trade product solutions and the strength of
our established Asian franchise.

In 2014, we continued to invest in our capabilities to help
meet our customers’ needs in China and across the region.
We introduced a new internet banking service, UOB Business
Internet Banking Plus (BIBPIlus), which offers UOB’s customers
an integrated solution for their cash, trade and supply chain
management needs. The enhanced features in BIBPlus help our
customers streamline their transaction origination, approval and
control processes across multiple locations, in real-time, at any
time.

The Bank’s sub-branch in the Shanghai FTZ has been instrumental
in helping businesses interested in China to better manage their
intra-group RMB liquidity. In June 2014, a new Cross-Border
Sweeping liquidity management solution was made available
to corporate customers with operations in the FTZ. It helps
businesses maximise their intra-group RMB liquidity through
improved cash flow and working capital management.

Our specialists in cash management and trade finance are
based in Shanghai, Beijing, Guangzhou and Shenzhen. The
team provides on-the-ground advice and solutions to meet the
growing needs of our customers in these key cities, as well as
Xiamen, Hangzhou, Tianjin, Shenyang, Chengdu and Chongging.
In 2014, we continued to expand our capabilities to meet a
growing demand for supply chain management services. We
established teams of supply chain management specialists in
China, Hong Kong, Singapore and the US to provide advice and
solutions to address trade clients’ working capital needs.

Transaction Banking received four awards in the Asiamoney
2014 Cash Management Poll including Best Foreign Cash
Management Bank in China (small and large-sized corporates),
Best Foreign Domestic Cash Management Services (small-sized
corporates) and Best Foreign Cross-Border Cash Management
Services (small-sized corporates). The awards are a testament to
our clients’ recognition and confidence in our cash management
services.
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Global Markets and Investment Management

In 2014, Global Markets and Investment Management (GMIM)
designed and developed a series of investment and hedging
products including foreign exchange, interest rate, commodities
and structured products to cater to customers’ requirements for
investment and risk-hedging. Through our expanding regional
banking network, experienced team and high quality services,
we marketed these diversified products to large and mid-sized
corporate customers and high net worth individuals.

GMIM is also an active participant in the local bond market,
dealing in treasury bills, government bonds, policy bank bonds,
high-rated commercial papers and medium term notes. Despite
a volatile market, we achieved steady growth in the bond market
in 2014.

We increased our transactions in the areas of repurchase
agreements (Repo) and reverse Repo, RMB interest rate swaps,
foreign exchange (FX) forwards and FX swaps in 2014. We also
expanded the scale of our precious metal trading business with
an inter-bank gold bilateral spot, forward and swaps licence. In
addition to launching gold and inter-bank gold bilateral trading
on the Shanghai Gold Exchange, we also participated in a pilot
to provide quotations for gold forward curve contracts.

In 2014, we made significant progress in China’s foreign exchange
market and gold market respectively with a direct market maker
for RMB against the SGD and a trial market maker for interbank
gold trading licences. With these licences, we will be able to
offer our customers more cost-effective products and simplified
transaction services.

To support the sustainable growth of our business in China, we
will expand the scale of our trading business and create more
value-added and risk-hedged products for our customers.
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Personal Financial Services

In 2014, the Chinese government launched a series of financial
and economic reform policies, which encourage the liberalisation
and internationalisation of the domestic banking industry. The
fast and ever-changing industry environment brought new
challenges and opportunities to our business. In response, our
Personal Financial Services (PFS) team reviewed our business
focus and introduced new services to meet our customer needs.
Two major trends were considered as we conducted our review:
increasing competition from new industry entrants and the role of
the internet on banking products and services.

To cater to changing consumer preferences, we launched a
UOB (China) Privilege Banking Wechat account this year for our
high net worth customers to receive the latest updates on our
products, lifestyle offers and other relevant information. To further
enhance our high net worth coverage and also to serve them
better, we opened the 12" Privilege Banking Centre—the Beijing
Lufthansa Centre sub-branch in May 2014.

We also introduced a new “Life-style focus” wealth management
concept to these high net worth customers. For example,
we conducted several seminars to help people with wealth
management knowledge and needs. We provided services for
parents to who want to put their children for overseas education.
In November 2014, we also launched the Non-Residential Citizen
(NRC) campaign to offer such customers foreign currency financial
services.

We continued to tap on UOB’s regional network to bring best
practices to China. As part of this, we offered comprehensive
international financial services including international mortgage
loans, overseas study financing and wealth management solutions
to support their diversified financial and lifestyle needs.
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Technology and Operations

Technology and Operations (T&O) plays a critical role in
supporting UOB (China)’s business strategy and growth. It is
responsible for the centralisation and standardisation of our
operations, and information technology management in China.
T&O underpins our competitiveness in China by promoting
business innovation and operational efficiency and by providing
better customer services.

In 2014, in order to provide more secure, timely and transparent
payment and withdrawal services for our customers, we
upgraded our systems to support the launch of chip debit cards
and mobile phone Short Messaging Service transaction alert
services for our debit cardholders.

At the same time, to meet the increased demand from our
corporate clients for online banking, we improved our Business
Internet Banking (BIB) service by upgrading it to BIBPlus. This
provides our corporate clients new online services including
Transaction Batching, Remote Authorisation, Pre-approved
Beneficiary, Beneficiary Advice for all cash products and Calendar
and Alerts to enhance customer experience and risk control.
There was also a major upgrade to our local China National
Advanced Payments System (CNAPS) to the second Generation
CNAPS System platform which centralises the clearing balance
to manage the branches’ fund clearing.

Ongoing efforts were made to optimise and automate our
procedures to provide faster processing capabilities and to
enhance risk control. One of the initiatives undertaken was to
enhance our Bank Acceptance Draft (BAD) Discounting and
Issuance though the redesigning and streamlining of our process
to strengthen our service delivery to our clients.

UOB (China) will continue to tap on the strengths of UOB
Group’s regional network and resources and to strengthen our
local information technology management, risk controls and
operational capabilities.
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Human Resources

In 2014, UOB (China) expanded its employee base across the 11
cities in which we operate in China. To support the growth of our
business, our Human Resources team focused on attracting and
retaining a highly motivated and collaborative workforce and on
fostering a strong corporate culture.

We continued to enhance our staff training and people
development programmes. We offered skill set training
programmes across our customer segments and branch teams.
These courses covered fundamental to advanced skills training.
Our people were able to choose the most relevant courses
to improve their skills as part of managing their own career
development.

In the area of key talent management, we enhanced our existing
programme to include UOB’s best practices from the region
and tailored this to the specific requirements of the local market.
Besides our Bank-wide three-level country talent development
programme covering nominated talents from entry, middle and
senior grades, we have also designed development programmes
to cater for our different lines of business. These programmes
include various development formats, such as classroom training,
on-the-job training, competency testing, project assignments
and a buddy system. By the end of the year, we had established
a comprehensive, consistent, and practical development system
for our employees.

In 2014, the third cohort of our young talents completed their
15-month long Management Associates (MA) Programme. These
students are selected from China’s top universities in Shanghai,
Beijing, Chengdu and Xiamen, as well as prestigious overseas
institutions. Upon completion of the MA Programme, each has
now commenced their career with UOB across various business
functions.

While caring for the professional growth and career development
of our people, we also pay attention to the physical and mental
health of our employees. We are committed to promoting the
welfare and well-being for employees and their families with the
concept of Healthy Employees, Active Lifestyles. In December
2014, we introduced CARE, a flexible benefits programme that
enabled our employees to design their own preferred benefits list.

In 2014, we also planned and organised various staff events,
including monthly Staff Club activities, the annual Heartbeat Run
and an Annual Dinner and Dance. These occasions encouraged
our people to share their spare time and engaged them in
nurturing our united team culture.
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UOB (China) is committed to upholding good corporate

governance and is guided by the following in this regard:

a) the People’s Republic of China (PRC) Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c)the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded
Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations on
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks; and

d) other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board, Board Committees, the Supervisor and Senior
Management perform their respective duties according to the
laws and regulations of the country and the provisions in the
Bank’s Articles of Association.

Board of Directors

There are six Directors on the Board, two of whom are
Independent Directors. The size and composition of the
Board comply with regulatory requirements and the provisions
in the Bank’s Articles of Association. The Board members as
at 31 December 2014 were:

24 23] FH8 BRE AEEH
Name Gender Age Position Current Term of Office
// 4= —
E—x B W /AEpTI R I 20134£9F17A Z20164£9A 161
62 Chairman/Non-executive and non-

Wee Ee Cheong Male ) . 17 September 2013 to 16 September 2016
independent director

— = #LfﬂEfJEu%%(ﬁk%‘é‘ﬁ%mﬁa) 20136917 A ZE201649H 165

oo . 50 Executive (President and CEO) and

Eric Lian Voon Fui Male . . 17 September 2013 to 16 September 2016
non-independent director

E S = Tl W , 2013412527 A E20164£12H26H

. . 61 Non-executive and non-independent

Francis Lee Chin Yong Male . 27 December 2013 to 26 December 2016
director

#5548 % TR M , 20144822 A 201748211

o 51 Non-executive and non-independent

Christine Ip Female ) 22 August 2014 to 21 August 2017
director

EERF B 75 M IERITES 20134 12A27HZE20165£12A26H

Cham Tao Soon Male Non-executive and independent director 27 December 2013 to 26 December 2016

BZAR = 46 M IERITES 20135 10A26 HZE20165%10H25H

Zeng Zhi Jie Male Non-executive and independent director 26 October 2013 to 25 October 2016
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The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

e provide strategic directions, approve strategic business
initiatives, and approve the business plans and annual budget;

e review and monitor the financial performance of the Bank,
and approve true and fair financial statements;

e determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

e set dividend policy and declare dividends;

e perform succession planning for the Board and Senior
Management and formulate the remuneration policy;

e putin place an effective management team;

e approve the organisational structure;

e oversee the establishment of comprehensive risk management
policies, processes and infrastructure to manage various types
of risk (including outsourcing risk);

e determine the risk profile of the Bank and approve credit
discretionary limits and investment limits;

* review and monitor the risk management, internal audit and
compliance functions and ensure the adequacy of resources
allocated to these functions;

e evaluate the performance of the President and CEO and
Senior Management;

e establish appropriate procedures and processes to avoid
situations that may give rise to improper personal gains or
conflicts of interest;

e review and approve the Bank’s system of controls relating to
connected transactions;

¢ set the corporate culture, values and ethical standards;

e review the Bank’s information disclosure policy and be
responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of the
information disclosed;

e report to the shareholder; and

e exercise such other power as authorised by the shareholder
and perform such other functions as required by the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association.

The Board holds four scheduled meetings in a year. Additional
meetings may be held whenever required.

The Bank’s Articles of Association also provide for Board
resolutions to be passed by way of circulation.

In 2014, the Board held four meetings which were attended by
all Directors.

The procedures for convening a Board meeting, the quorum
required for constituting the meeting, the proceedings at
the meeting, and the procedures for voting and passing of
resolutions complied with the requirements of applicable PRC
laws and regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association. The
minutes of Board meetings are maintained by the Company
Secretary.

The Board passed three resolutions by way of circulation in 2014.
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five Board
Committees, namely the Executive Committee (EXCO),
Connected Transactions Control Committee (CTCC), Audit
Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) and Risk Management Committee (RMC).

(1) Executive Committee

a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman),
Mr Eric Lian Voon Fui, Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mrs
Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

e the Bank’s business operations, including formulating internal
policies and business strategies, monitoring the execution of
business plans and approving relevant credit limits; and

e all human resource matters, except for those pertaining to
the President and CEO and Deputy President.

c. The EXCO meets at least once a month and whenever
required in the discharge of its functions.

The EXCO held 16 meetings in 2014.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee

a. The CTCC members are Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman), Mr
Francis Lee Chin Yong, Prof Cham Tao Soon and Mr William
Chong Kim Khong (till 6 March 2014).

b. The CTCC’s main responsibilities are to:

e establish and administer the system for managing connected
transactions;

® manage connected transactions and control the risks from
such transactions;

e examine non-material connected transactions; and

e review and submit material connected transactions to the
Board for approval.

c. The CTCC met once in 2014.
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(3) Audit Committee

a.

C.

The AC members are Prof Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Mr
Francis Lee Chin Yong, Mrs Christine Ip and Mr Zeng Zhi Jie.

The AC’s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all
matters relating to:

financial statements, and internal and external audit plans
and reports;

the adequacy of internal accounting controls and material
internal controls;

the scope and results of internal and external audits;

the quality of, and any significant change in, accounting
policies or practices;

the adequacy of internal audit resources;

significant findings from internal audit investigations;

the approval of external auditors’ fees; and

the nomination of the external auditors and the head of the
internal audit function.

The AC held four meetings in 2014.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee

a.

The NRC members are Prof Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Mr
Wee Ee Cheong, Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mr Zeng Zhi
Jie.

The NRC’s main responsibilities are to:

recommend nominees for appointment to the Board and
Board Committees;

recommend a framework for the remuneration of Directors
and key Senior Management officers (including the President
and CEO and Deputy President) for the Board’s approval;
and

put in place a system for assessing the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole, the contribution of each Board Committee
and Director, and the performance of the President and CEQO.

In 2014, the NRC met once and passed one resolution by
way of circulation.
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(5) Risk Management Committee

a. The RMC members are Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman), Mr
Francis Lee Chin Yong, Mrs Christine Ip and Prof Cham Tao
Soon.

b. The RMC’s main responsibilities are to:

® review and recommend risk management strategies, policies
and risk tolerance of the Bank for the Board’s approval;

e oversee the establishment and operation of a robust and
independent risk management system that is consistent with
the strategies and policies approved by the Board;

* review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Bank’s risk management structure (including frameworks,
policies, methodologies, human resources, processes,
information, infrastructure and systems) for identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling various types of risks;

® review regular management reports on risk exposures, risk
portfolio composition and the management and monitoring of
such exposures and portfolio composition; and

e report to the Board regularly and highlight any adverse risk
event or trend for the Board’s attention.

c. The RMC held four meetings in 2014.

Supervisor

The Bank has one Supervisor, Dr Wee Cho Yaw, who is
nominated by the shareholder. The appointment of the
Supervisor complies with regulatory requirements and the Bank’s
Articles of Association.

The main responsibilities of the Supervisor include:

® inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the Bank;

e supervising the Board and Senior Management to ensure that
the Bank is run in a prudent manner, and taking corrective
actions where necessary;

e safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank,
the shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the
depositors; and

e exercising such other power and authority pursuant to the
law, regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association, and
as may be delegated by the shareholder.

In 2014, the Supervisor duly discharged his responsibility
of supervising the Board and Senior Management strictly in
accordance with legal requirements, including the provisions
under the PRC Company Law and in the Bank’s Articles of
Association. In discharging his responsibility, the Supervisor
received and reviewed regular reports on the Bank’s operations
and risk management, met with Directors and Senior
Management, and attended Board meetings.
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Performance of Independent Directors

There were two Independent Directors on the Board as at 31
December 2014, namely Prof Cham Tao Soon and Mr Zeng Zhi
Jie. Prof Cham Tao Soon is the Chairman of the AC and NRC, as
well as a member of the CTCC and RMC. Mr Zeng Zhi Jie is the
Chairman of the CTCC and RMC, as well as a member of the AC
and NRC.

For the year under review, the two Independent Directors
attended all four Board meetings convened in 2014 and
discharged their duties diligently and responsibly. They
contributed to the decision-making and oversight by the Board
and Board Committees and safeguarded the lawful rights and
overall interests of the Bank and the shareholder.

(1) Independent Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings
in 2014

. RS m & TRIE

M EERL - Hj‘,, - .
(&) (%) (%) %iE

Name of Independent . )

Director No. of Board No. of Board Meetings Absent with Remarks
Meetings Held Attended Apologies

EERE 4 4 0 /

Cham Tao Soon

g2A 4 4 0 /

Zeng Zhi Jie

(2) M EFEEMNHRTEELAETHIRES NGB (2) Dissent of Independent Directors

20144, R BEHRMNBRTAFEEMNILEEITURHFW.

""'5&%5%11‘#!

RITEERESHBHSEERHTABRIFRIRITER . RiITHM
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HEREEMBH—PORINTIE. RTEEREFENS AW B
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REEEBTHEHRRNTRDARERTEMRIIREVEL, HIb~4H
%A, BHRTRE.

In 2014, Management did not give cause for the Independent
Directors to record their dissent on any matter.

Supervisor’s and Directors’ Access to Information

The Supervisor and Directors have unfettered assess to
information and Management, and receive timely and
comprehensive financial, risk management and operational
reports to facilitate informed discussions during meetings.
They also have access to the Company Secretary whose
responsibilities include advising the Supervisor and the Board on
regulatory changes and best practices in corporate governance.
In discharging their duties, the Supervisor and Directors may
seek independent professional advice, if necessary, at the Bank’s
expense.
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BSEEEMN R / Senior Management Structure

Hie . 2
4 0% pa gw DOem BEEF xR
" Assignment . . Relevant Years
Name Position Sex Age Highest Academic Degree .
Commencement of Experience
ExE TRREFHTE - SN Tk T AL
LIAN Voon Fui President and CEO =z 50 20134973 Master of Business Administration 24
Eric AT | RERER Male Sep 2013 Nanyang Technological Universit
Head, Branches / Channels vang 9 y
BT 201346 . 4 AL Al
- AT - F6A AT A a i+
e Alternate Country CEO i 44 Jun 2013 Bachelor of Accountanc 19
ANG Moh Chuan REWRITHER Male 20104 10A Nanyang Technological lﬁniversit
Head,Corporate Banking Oct 2010 yang 9 Y
BT 201346 - N e sy 1 b e s
K At - #67 AT KSR R
. Alternate Country CEO £ Jun 2013 }
CHONG Kim . 47 Bachelor of Business, Honours 23
Khong William HERENEE Male 20124373 Nanyang Technological Universit
9 Chief Risk Officer Mar 2012 vang 9 y
3 V = E2ii] SEIE T Aotk
R HEMSE = 45~ 2013%6A ;Zjirffr'fficc?;;::;i 19
TEH Han Yi Chief Financial Officer Female Jun 2013 . Y . .
Nanyang Technological University
TREEBIRE
43 B A 533 - SR A 5] A TE B 52
)E—n)i ;Eﬁﬁ‘i%q -] 2014568 ﬁﬁuﬂ-\ Eiil'i‘,i]li, IﬁEJiﬁE’JnnEiil%*i
LO Siu-Hong 47 Project Leadership, Management and 21
Head, Channels Male Jun 2014 L . .
Rodney Communications Contracting for Project Managers
The George Washington University
FREL SR B REEBEE = 2014428 FMEEL X F T HEEF T REFM
TAN Kong Weng Head, Technology and 38 Bachelor of Business Administration, Honours 13
. Male Feb 2014 ) ) . )
Steven Operations National University of Singapore
. = IR T RSPy as sy
BFE AR = 2010435 N E R Dﬁq—ﬁq—ﬂ:* ==
) ) ) 44 Bachelor of Business, Honours 19
KU Tse Kian Head, Commercial Banking Male Mar 2010 R . .
Nanyang Technological University
i3 L ar Frhn SLRFIEE
HiRE SR TR A o 2014568 o i)EEl;L#q— o T
LIM Chen Kuo ) ) 39 Master of Science 15
Co-Head, Commercial BankingMale Jun 2014 . . R .
Mark National University of Singapore
A2 MAERRESBEE % 2011455 LEMEXREIHEEML
ZHOU Man Head, Personal Financial Fernale 41 May 2011 Master of Business Administration 16
Cherry Services y Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
rHEE RKERMERAEEDEE = 2010%118 MEXRESOIL T AFIEF L RERN
YAP Teck Yong Head, Global Market and aale 55 Nov 2010 Bachelor of Science, Honours 27
Dougla Investment Management University of British Columbia
HAZAREREL
w51 VR ERDER £ 2008295 MEEAFE
TEH Wee Jin Head, Corporate Credit Male 57 Sep2008 Bachelor of Commerce 33
’ P P University of Otago, New Zealand
it _ - = SAE s | g
BRI . AR R = 201447 ‘Fmgﬁﬁéi—f fike ot S e A 4
YEOH Kian Soon . . 44 Bachelor of Science 19
. Head, Commercial Credit Male Jul 2014 K R .
Benedict Carnegie Mellon University
1148 2 £33 ] < & F
waEE A MEREBEE E 2013410 ARELHLRPIEERAL
LIU Chun Ying Head. Retail Credit Male 44 Oct 2013 Master of Business Administration 17
Charles ’ National Sun Yat-Sen University, Taiwan
BB [P BRZFETHEEN
AR AN BREEE % 20074127 REAFIAEERL =
HONG Xiao Yan 38 Master of Business Administration 17
Head, Human Resources Female Dec 2007 . .
Amy Fudan University
I
- WEEH I S 4y 2007127 e e o
Rick 9 Head, Internal Audit Male Dec 2007 Bachelor of Economics Shanghai University
EiE ERESWBHEE %« 20074128 SEXFIHEEMLT
WANG Yuan Head, Legal and 41 Master of Business Administration 18
. . Female Dec 2007 R .
Eliza Secretariat Fudan University
_ . 1] B %. b .—‘AE
ama AMEEE P ;5 2013%8A HRNFEAARASRIRL .
ZHAO Li Hong Head, Compliance Female Aug 2013 Katholieke Universiteit Leuven (Belgium)
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Mg ESLAFEFFEL

R ZHRITUEBEE £ 45 201145H Bachelor of Science 19
LIM Chor Khiang Head, Transaction Banking Male May 2011 . . . .
National University of Singapore
W EE AR ES LEMEXF-ZEFEHIFAZIHERNL
ZHANG Xiao Head. Multinational S 43 2014%9A8 Master of Business Administration 21
And Cor <;rate Male Sep 2014 Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
Y P and Webster University
HE EHEATITE - 2010485 FmEE KETHEERE LT
YEONG Kok Leng  General Manager of Beijing =z 46 Bachelor of Business Administration 21
. Male Aug 2010 . . . .
Vincent Branch National University of Singapore
BB I EERTITK = 201445108 EEFEANBEOMNAFEST
LIM Lian Kian General Manager of IT/IzaIe 42 Oct 2014 Bachelor of Science 18
Shanghai Branch University of South Alabama
HiF RINSFTITR - 20134118 EBKRFERTREFM
TOK Aik Hong General Manager of IT/IzaIe 40 Nov 2013 Bachelor of Science, Honours 14
Lawrence Shenzhen Branch University of London
HRH IS TITR - 2015435 PEMUEXRFERITEF LT
HUANG Kuei Ping  General Manager of ;/Izale 40 Mar 2015 Bachelor of Accounting 14
Patrick Guangzhou Branch Chinese Culture University, Taiwan
— BaTiTi 2011495 KEMHRXFHZREREZFT. S5RITFETL
HUiANG Yin General Manager of Xiamen Female 43 Sep 2014 Master of Science in International Economics 20
9 Branch P Banking and Finance Cardiff University, U.K.
e HEBESITITR = 2014458 KEREHPFAFIHEEML
LII\]/TTow Men General Manager of ;/Iaale 61 May 2014 Master of Business Administration 36
9 Shenyang Branch Y University of Leicester, UK
ey MEBATITE - 2015428 FEEENMFRASEERR IHEEMLT
HL] Wei Ton General Manager of ;/I:ale 36 Fob 2015 Master of Business Administration 14
y Chengdu Branch Conservatoire National des Arts et Métiers
aFHF RESITITK = 20144128 BAAXZEREZFHRAEFEDL
SHI Xin Yu General Manager of Tianjin ;/I:ale 47 Dec 2014 Master of Economics, International Economic 21
Edward Branch Institute Nan Kai University
] B SATITR % 2012428 BREIBXFEFIREFLT
YE Yan General Manager of Female 44 Feb 2012 Bachelor of Electrical Engineer 20
Beicy Hangzhou Branch Harbin Engineering University
2 BERSITITK - 2014455 FMEE AFTIHERS LT
GOH Tuan Chiok General Manager of ;/Ijale 43 May 2014 Bachelor of Business Administration 17
Chonggqing Branch Y National University of Singapore
= HIMD 1T MEITIE y s 1 o e s
wEm TS (R BEEE MEA B EREEF LIRS
esignated General g 2014%11A
CHUA Hock Yew 42 Bachelor of Commerce, Honours 17
Alexander Manager of Suzhou Branch Male Nov 2014 University of Toronto, Canada
(Preparation Committee) 4 !
b RN X FIT1TIE \ o
SHB LBRFMMEKIIGR BRI T B A T B SR
. Branch Manager of Shanghai % 2014458 i - .
LI Yuan Ling ) 43 Master of Business Administration 21
Pilot Free Trade Zone Sub- Female May 2014 . . .
Sara Branch University of Ballarat, Australia
HERAE LigFRREXTITK = 20144128 EEESEGRRELNEET T
ZHENG Rong Wei Acting Branch Manager of l?/lvale 37 Dec 2014 Master of Enterprise Management 12
Michael Jingan Sub-Branch University of Grenoble France
P 3L LiBNEZATITR 2014495 MAFTE+FEXFTIHEERML
CHEN Wen Branch Manager of Shanghai Female 37 Sep 2014 Master of Business Administration 12
Wanda Bund Sub-Branch P Southern Cross University, Australia
ERFEZITITR
. Branch Manager of 2012458 N s s
& S F T ZTHEEM
. FEBHFRMAEZITITK  Male 2015418 . ) )
Sting Acting Branch Manager of Jan 2015 University of Sunshine Coast, Australia
Xintiandi Sub-Branch
Bk TSRO ZTIT 2014425 HEAMERZEEMPEET
GENG Wei Branch Manager of Lufthansa Female 33 Feb 2014 Bachelor of Finance 12
Carry Centre Sub-Branch South West University of Finance and Economics
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

Internal Control

UOB (China) has a well-established internal control system that
adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and the Group’s
policies and guidelines. This provides a robust framework that enables
the Bank to set strategic and practical objectives to support its
business development.

The Board assesses the Bank’s internal control system through the
review of risk management reports and analysis, operational and
budget reports, internal audit reports tabled at regular meetings,
discussions at various internal committees and from the exchange of
insights with industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control system
is a result of the continuous improvement to the internal control
environment, including, but not limited to, the strengthening of risk
identification/assessment, monitoring processes and risk mitigation
techniques; and constantly undergoing communication/feedback
mechanisms, and evaluation/correction. The internal control system is
able to provide a reasonable level of assurance on the implementation
of legal statutes and regulations.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports functionally to
the Audit Committee (AC) and Group Audit, and administratively to the
President and CEO of UOB (China).

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board and
management to discharge their legal and executive obligations by
providing independent, objective assurance and value-added services
designed to improve the Bank’s operations. It helps the Bank to
accomplish its objectives by having a systematic and disciplined
approach to provide an independent assessment of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal financial controls, operational
and compliance controls, and to improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.

It performs its internal audit function according to the Internal Audit
Guidelines for Financial Institutions as governed by the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (CBRC) and Standards for the Professional
Practice of Internal Auditing set by the Institute of Internal Auditors.
Internal Audit adopts a risk-based approach to develop its strategic
audit plan, by which is prioritising and scoping projects according to the
comprehensive assessment of inherent risks, controls of various risk
types and regulatory hot spots. The audit scope covers all businesses,
operations and the infrastructure and applications of systems in the
headquarters and branches. The strategic plan is reviewed annually.

All audit reports are provided to the AC. Significant issues are
highlighted by Internal Audit, which also monitors closely the follow-
up actions taken by the management team on the issues raised by
Internal Audit, external audit and regulators.
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Risk Management

Risk Oversight by Board of Directors and Senior

Management

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and oversees

a governance structure to ensure that the Bank’s business

activities are:

e conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with the
highest standards of professionalism;

e consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and risk
appetite; and

e subjected to adequate risk management and internal
controls.

In this, the Board is supported by the Risk Management
Committee (RMC).

The President and CEO has established senior management
committees to assist in making business decisions with due
consideration to risks and returns. The main senior management
committees involved in this area include the Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO), Operational Risk Management Committee
(ORMC) and the Risk and Capital Committee (RCC). During the
year, an Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) was
set up to put more focus on the management of operational and
reputation risk and the Consumer Rights Protection Committee
(CRPC) was realigned to report to RMC for oversight on treating
customer fairly, data protection and appropriate complaint
management. These committees also assist the RMC in specific
risk areas and submit periodic reports to the RMC.

The Bank has established a risk appetite framework to define the
amount of risk the Bank is able and willing to take in pursuit of its
business objectives. The risk appetite defines suitable thresholds
and limits across key risk areas including but not limited to credit
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and reputation risk.
The objective of establishing a risk appetite framework is not to
limit risk taking but to ensure that the Bank’s risk profile is aligned
to its business strategy. Our risk taking approach is focused
on businesses which we understand and are well equipped to
manage the risk involved. The Bank will continue to upgrade its
risk management, information technology and other capabilities
to support its strategic aspirations.

The Bank’s risk appetite statement is updated and approved

annually by the Board. Management monitors and reports to the
Board on the compliance with risk appetite and risk limits.
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Risk Management

Risk Management Overview

Effective risk management is integral to the Bank’s business
success. Our approach to risk management is to ensure risks
are managed within the levels established by the Bank’s various
senior management committees and approved by the Board
and/or its committees.

The Bank has established a comprehensive framework of
policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and
control risks. These are guided by the Bank’s Risk Management
Principles which advocate:

e delivery of sustainable long-term growth using sound risk
management principles and business practices;

e continual improvement of risk discovery capabilities and risk
controls; and

® Dbusiness development based on a prudent, consistent and
efficient risk management framework.

An independent Risk Management Function performs the
primary roles of implementing risk policies, processes and
procedures. Regular analysis and reporting on risk exposures are
also provided to the various risk-related committees and to the
Board.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a borrower
or counterparty to meet the financial obligations when they fall
due. Credit risk is the single largest risk that the Bank faces
as a commercial bank, arising primarily from loans and other
lending-related commitments to retail, corporate and institutional
borrowers. Treasury and capital market operations, and
investments also expose the Bank to counterparty and issuer
credit risks.

Credit Risk Policies and Processes

The Bank has established well-defined credit risk acceptance
parameters, policies and procedures to ensure a high quality and
well-diversified credit portfolio. The Credit Risk Management
Division (CRM) provides independent oversight of credit risk
and is responsible for the analysis and reporting of all elements
of credit risk. The CRM develops a comprehensive set of credit
policies and guidelines for approval by the RCC and Executive
Committee (EXCO). It actively engages business units on credit-
related matters and facilitates business development within
a prudent, consistent and efficient credit risk management
framework. Its other responsibilities include monitoring and
reviewing credit risk exposures, performing analysis on credit
portfolio performance for fine-tuning of policies and risk
acceptance guidelines as well as preparing various credit risk-
related reports to management.
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Independent Credit Approval

To maintain the independence and integrity of the credit approval
process, the credit origination and approval functions are clearly
segregated. Credit approval authority is delegated to officers
based on their experience, seniority and track record, and is
based on a risk-adjusted scale according to a borrower’s credit
rating. All credit approval officers are guided by credit policies
and credit acceptance guidelines that are periodically reviewed to
ensure their continued relevance to the Bank’s business strategy
and the business environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the
assessment of credit risk and the assignment of exposures to
rating grades or pools. Internal ratings are used pervasively
by the Bank in the areas of credit approval, credit review and
monitoring, credit stress testing, limits setting, pricing and
collections. The models are independently validated before
they are implemented to ensure they are fit for purpose. The
robustness of these rating models is monitored on an ongoing
basis, and all models are subject to annual reviews conducted
by model owners to ascertain that the chosen risk factors and
assumptions continue to remain relevant for the respective
portfolios.

Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large exposure
or from multiple exposures that are closely correlated. This is
managed by setting exposure limits on obligors, portfolios,
borrowers, industries and countries, generally expressed
as a percentage of the Bank’s eligible capital base. Regular
assessments of emerging risks and reviews of industry and
country outlooks are also performed to identify areas in which
concentration risks may accumulate.

Country Risk

Country risk is managed within an established framework which
includes setting of limits for each country based on the country’s
risk rating, economic potential measured by its gross domestic
product as well as the Bank’s business strategy. Country risk
exposures are analysed and significant trends are reported
periodically to the RCC and the RMC.

Credit Risk Mitigation

Potential credit losses are mitigated using a variety of instruments
such as collateral, guarantees and netting arrangements. As a
fundamental credit principle, the Bank generally does not grant
credit facilities solely on the basis of the collateral provided. All
credit facilities are granted based on the credit standing of the
borrower, source of repayment and debt servicing ability.
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Collateral is taken whenever possible to mitigate the credit risk
assumed and the value of the collateral is monitored periodically.
The frequency of valuation depends on the type, liquidity and
volatility of the collateral value. The main types of collateral
accepted by the Bank are cash, bank guarantees, real estate and
machinery equipment. A corporate or personal guarantee from
the principal promoters are often obtained when the borrower’s
credit worthiness is not sufficient to justify an extension of credit.

Credit Exposures from Foreign Exchange (FX) and Derivatives
Exposures arising from FX and derivative transactions are
mitigated through agreements such as the International Swaps
and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreements and the
related Credit Support Annex (CSA), and the National Association
of Financial Market Institutional Investors (NAFMII) Agreement.
Such agreements help to minimise credit exposure by allowing
the Bank to offset what it owes to a counterparty against what is
due from the same counterparty in the event of a default.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress testing is an integral part of the Bank’s credit
portfolio management process. Various regulatory and internal
stress tests are conducted periodically to assess the potential
credit losses arising from adverse scenarios. Stress tests are
used to assess the Bank’s capital adequacy under the adverse
scenarios, identify the vulnerabilities of various business units
and to formulate the appropriate mitigating actions.

Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management

The Bank monitors regularly credit exposures, portfolio
performance and emerging risks that may impact its credit risk
profile. The Board and senior management are updated on
credit trends through internal risk reports. An early alert process
has also been put in place whereby vulnerable accounts are
escalated by the business units to senior management for close
monitoring and remedial actions to be taken.
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Delinquency Monitoring

The Bank monitors closely the delinquency of borrowing
accounts as it is a key indicator of credit quality. An account
is considered as delinquent when payment is not received on
the due date. All delinquent accounts, including revolving credit
facility (such as an overdraft) with limit excesses, are monitored
and managed through a disciplined process by officers from the
business units and Risk Management. Where appropriate, such
accounts are also subject to more frequent credit reviews.

Loan Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

The Bank classifies its credit portfolios according to the
borrower’s ability to repay the credit facility from its normal
source of income. Any account which is delinquent (or in excess
for a revolving credit facility such as an overdraft) for more than
90 days will be categorised automatically as ‘Non-Performing’.

All borrowing accounts are categorised into “Pass”, “Special
Mention” or “Non-Performing” categories. Non-Performing
accounts are further categorised as “Substandard”, “Doubtful”
or “Loss” in accordance with the guidelines of the CBRC. The
Bank has an independent credit review process to ensure the
appropriateness of loan grading and classification.

Upgrading and declassification of a Non-Performing account
to “Pass” or “Special Mention” status must be supported by
a credit assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows
and financial position of the borrower. The Bank must also be
satisfied that once the account is declassified, it is unlikely to be
classified again in the near future.

A restructured loan is categorised as Non-Performing and placed
on the appropriate classified grade depending on the Bank’s
assessment of the financial condition and repayment ability of
the borrower based on the restructured terms.

Loan loss provision is made in line with CBRC guidelines after
careful consideration of the future recovery value including
liquidation of collateral of the Non-Performing account. A
classified account is written off when there is no realisable
tangible collateral securing the account and all feasible avenues
of recovery have been exhausted.
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BREZRTISH
Loans by Industry Distribution

Tl AR™ (BAT) ditk
Industry Outstanding (RMB’m) (%)
#3% \ Manufacturing 6.945 o8
MAEFRSE F¥2k Professionals and Private Individuals 4,357 17
#t & FFEE Wholesale and Retall 5.443 0o
Eh = Property and Real Estate 4078 17
{EEFE %k Lodging and Catering 1,666 .
Hfth Others 2548 0
&1t Total 25,237 100

BHIREE N 7910
Loans by Booking Branch

W AR™M (BAT) drtk
Branch Outstanding (RMB’m) (%)
L8 Shanghai 10,684 42
it = Beijing 3,713 15
A ER Chengdu 2,002 8
K& Tianjin 1,606 6
T~ Guangzhou 1,274 5
Ei7 Xiamen 1,285 5
HiM Hangzhou 1,913 8
LB Shenyang 1,536 6
&Il Shenzhen 1,062 4
&KX Chongaing 161 1
&1t Total 25,237 100

BRI 5> £ R AR BT E R

Loans by Classification

PRl ARMm (BAT) )74
Outstanding (RMB’m) (%)

IEH Pass 24,858 98

%3E Special Mention 247 1

X% Substandard 115

o] £% Doubtful 13

Mk Loss 4

&1t Total 25,237 100

20145 K, FAREXEITARMI32.4E5TH T, AEHAFLLAIS  As at 31 December 2014, total non-performing loans amounted
0.51%, to RMB 132.4 million, representing 0.51 per cent of the Bank’s
total loans portfolio.
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Market Risk

Market risk arises from all market price-sensitive financial
instruments including debt securities, foreign exchange
contracts, equity and derivative instruments, as well as from
balance sheet foreign exchange structural positions. The Bank is
exposed to market risk in its trading portfolios that arises mainly
from changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates from
the Bank’s client-driven market making and product structuring
activities as well as trading activities.

The Board and EXCO approve market risk management policies
and framework and delegate the responsibility of day-to-day
oversight of market risk management to the ALCO. The ALCO
meets monthly to review and provide directions on all market
risk-related matters. The Market and Balance Sheet Risk
Management Division (MBSM) provides support to the ALCO
with the establishment of a market risk management framework,
policies, and control procedures. An independent market risk
exposure report is also submitted to the RMC and the Board on
a quarterly basis.

The Bank’s market risk framework comprises market risk
policies, practices and the control structure with appropriate
delegation of authority and market risk limits. The valuation
methodologies employed by the Bank are in line with sound
market practices. Valuation and risk models are independently
validated. In addition, a product/service programme process
ensures that all market risk issues identified are adequately
addressed prior to the launch of new products and services.
Management of derivative risks is continually reviewed and
enhanced to ensure that the complexities of the business are
appropriately controlled. The Market Risk Control Division (MRC)
provides independent valuation of products traded, monitoring
of market risk limits and the reporting of any limit excesses and
ratification on a daily basis.

Overall market risk appetite is balanced at the Bank and
business unit level with targeted revenue and takes into account
the capital position of the Bank. This ensures the Bank remains
well-capitalised, even under stress conditions. The risk appetite
is translated into risk limits that are delegated to business
units. These risk limits have proportional returns that are
commensurate with the risks taken.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for
the calculation of regulatory market risk capital. For internal
risk control, a daily Value-at-Risk (VaR) measure is adopted to
estimate market risk within a 99% confidence interval using the
historical simulation method. The method assumes that possible
future changes in market rates could be implied by observed
historical market movements.
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As VaR is the statistical measure for potential losses, the VaR
measures are backtested against profit and loss of the trading
book to validate the robustness of the methodology. The
backtesting process analyses whether the exceptions are due to
model deficiencies or market volatility. All backtest exceptions are
tabled at the ALCO with recommended actions and resolutions.

To complement the VaR measure, stress and scenario tests are
performed to identify the Bank’s vulnerability to event risk. These
tests serve to provide early warnings of plausible extreme losses
to facilitate proactive management of market risk.
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Liquidity Risk

The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund its day-to-day
operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan disbursements,
to participate in new investments and to repay borrowings.
Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner to address known as
well as unanticipated cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO and EXCO.
These policies, controls and limits enable the Bank to monitor
and manage liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient sources
of funds are available over a range of market conditions.
These include minimising excessive funding concentrations
by diversifying the sources and terms of funding as well as
maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable debt
securities.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in its liquidity management
by continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring that liquidity
limits are strictly adhered to and that there are adequate liquid
assets to meet cash shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is managed actively to ensure a
balance between cost effectiveness, continued accessibility to
funds and diversification of funding sources. Important factors in
ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing, proactive management
of the Bank’s core deposits and the maintenance of customer
confidence.

Liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk management
framework, and is measured and managed on a projected cash
flow basis. The Bank is monitored under business-as-usual and
stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch limits are established to limit
the Bank’s liquidity exposure. The Bank also employs liquidity
early warning indicators and trigger points to signal possible
contingency situations. In addition, the Bank has also complied
with the liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) regulatory requirement on
which comes into effect on 31 December 2014.

Contingency funding plans are in place to identify potential
liquidity crises using a series of warning indicators. Crisis
escalation processes and various strategies including funding
and communication have been developed to minimise the impact
of any liquidity crunch.
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Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

The ALCO, under delegated authority from the Board,
maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the interest rate risk
management structure. The MBSM Division supports the ALCO
in monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the banking book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management is to
protect and enhance capital or economic net worth through
adequate, stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings
under a broad range of possible economic conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified on a
monthly basis using static analysis tools which include repricing
schedules and sensitivity analysis. They provide indications of
the potential impact of interest rate changes on interest income
and price value through the analysis of the sensitivity of assets
and liabilities to changes in interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity
varies with different repricing periods, currencies and embedded
options. Mismatches in the longer tenor will experience greater
change in the price-value of interest rate positions than similar
positions in the shorter tenor.

Stress testing, such as the static net interest income approach
and duration (static economic value of equity) approach, is also
performed regularly to determine the adequacy of capital in
meeting the impact of extreme interest rate movements on the
balance sheet. Such tests are also performed to provide early
warnings of potential extreme losses, facilitating the proactive
management of interest rate risks in an environment of rapid
financial market changes.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external
events. Under our risk framework, operational risk includes
regulatory compliance risk, legal risk and reputation risk.

Operational Risk Governance, Framework and Tools
Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies and
procedures by which business and support units identify, assess,
monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The Operational Risk
Management Committee meets monthly to provide oversight of
operational risk matters.

The Bank adopts the Three Lines of Defence Model under its
Risk Governance Structure. The business and support units, as
the first line of defence, are responsible for establishing a robust
control environment as part of their day-to-day operations. As
the second line of defence, Risk Management and Compliance
are responsible for implementing framework, policies, tools
and systems for managing risks as well as providing risk
oversight through monitoring and reporting risk issues to senior
management and the Board. Internal Audit acts as the third line
of defence by providing an independent and objective assurance
on the overall effectiveness of the risk governance framework
and internal controls.

A key component of the Bank’s operational risk management
framework is risk identification and control self-assessments. This
is achieved through the implementation of a set of operational
risk management tools. Several risk mitigation policies and
programmes are also in place to maintain a sound operating
environment.

The Bank has a business continuity and crisis management
programme in place to ensure prompt recovery of critical
business functions should there be unforeseen events. Senior
management provides an annual attestation to the Board on the
state of business continuity readiness of the Bank.

A technology risk management framework is in place to manage
technology risk in a systematic and consistent manner.

Regulatory compliance risk refers to the risk of non-compliance
with laws, regulations, rules, standards and codes of conduct.
The risk is identified, monitored and managed through a
structured framework of policies, procedures and guidelines
maintained by the Bank. The framework also manages the risk of
breaches and sanctions relating to Anti-Money Laundering and
Countering the Financing of Terrorism.
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The Bank actively manages fraud risk and bribery risk. Tools
and policies, including a whistle-blowing programme, a material
risk notification protocol and a fraud risk awareness training
programme, have been developed to manage such risks. All
employees are guided by a Code of Conduct which includes
anti-bribery and corruption provisions.

Reputation risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings, liquidity
or capital arising from negative stakeholder perception or
opinion of the Bank’s business practices, activities and financial
condition. The Bank recognises the impact of reputation risk and
a framework has been developed to identify and manage such
risk.

To mitigate operational losses resulting from significant risk
events, an insurance programme covering crime, fraud, civil
liability, property damage, public liability as well as directors’ and
officers’ liability has been put in place.

An operational risk management training and awareness
programme is in place to facilitate ongoing promotion of an
effective risk management culture.
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Important Highlights

(1) Shareholder Status Update
Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent.

(2) There were no changes to the Bank’s registered
capital, nor any split or merger during the reporting
period.

(3) None of the Bank’s directors, supervisors or
top management was penalised by the regulatory
authorities during the reporting period.

(4) Other highlights during the reporting period:

e |n 2014, UOB (China) registered a record net profit of
RMB 132.1 million.

e As at 31 December 2014, our RMB statutory loan-to-deposit
ratio was 69.4 per cent.

e |In May 2014, UOB (China)’s Beijing Lufthansa Centre Sub-
branch officially opened.

e |n May 2014, UOB (China) obtained the CBRC’s approval to
set up a new branch in Suzhou.

e |n June 2014, UOB (China)’s Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
Sub-branch officially opened.

¢ In June 2014, UOB (China)’s Chengdu Branch was relocated
to its new office at The Atrium Office, Jinjiang District in
Chengdu.

e In September 2014, UOB (China)’s Chongging Branch
officially opened.

e In December 2014, UOB (China) submitted the branch
opening application of Suzhou Branch to the CBRC for
approval.
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Head Office

Unit 105, 2F, 3F, 111 Dongyuan
Road Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch
Unit 101-104

111 Dongyuan Road
Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288
Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing’an Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

1P-01/02, United Plaza
1468 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9388
Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Xintiandi Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

156-158 Ma Dang Road
Shanghai 200020

Tel: (86) (21) 2312 0888
Fax: (86) (21) 3330 2193

Bund Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

No.20 Zhong Shan Dong Yi
Road

Huangpu District

Shanghai 200002

Tel: (86) (21) 2319 8388
Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3022

Shanghai Pilot Free

Trade Zone Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

Room 103, No.2 Tai Zhong Nan
Road

Pudong New Area, Shanghai
Pilot Free Trade Zone

Shanghai 200131

Tel: (86) (21) 2067 2888

Fax: (86) (21) 5019 6220
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Beijing Branch

Unit 22/25 1/F, Unit 25 2/F
Unit 01-03, 05-09 25/F
Tower C Office Park

No.5 Jinghua South Street
Chaoyang District

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626
Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Dongcheng Sub-branch
(Beijing)

Unit 108, Tower C

The Fifth Square,

7 Chaoyangmen, North Avenue
Beijing 100010

Tel: (86) (10) 8418 3688

Fax: (86) (10) 8418 3668

Lufthansa Centre Sub-
branch (Beijing)
S104/S105 and C806/C807
No.50 Liangmagiao Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125

Tel: (86) (10) 8489 3888
Fax: (86) (10) 6461 5750

Chengdu Branch

Suite1, First floor, Building

1 and Suite 9-9, 12th floor,
Unit2, Building 1

The Atrium Office, No.99 Dong
Da Street

Jinjiang District

Chengdu, Sichuan 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 6871 1688

Fax: (86) (28) 8653 1878

Guangzhou Branch
Unit 1107-1114

Metro Plaza

183-187 Tianhe Bei Road
Guangzhou 510075

Tel: (86) (20) 8755 8787
Fax: (86) (20) 8755 6661

Shenyang Branch
Unit C1, 1-2 Floor
Fortune Plaza Tower C
No.55 Beizhan Road
Shenhe District
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3128 0606
Fax: (86) (24) 3128 0628
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Shenzhen Branch

Unit 2, 3, 5, 6,

13 Floor (North Side) Di Wang
Commercial Centre

Shun Hing Square

5002 Shennan Road East
Shenzhen 518008

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688

Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor United Overseas Bank
Building

19 Hubin Bei Road

Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601

Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

Unit 304-305

The Emperor Place Tower B2
No.236, 238 and 252, Hebei Road
Heping District

Tianjin 300040

Tel: (86) (22) 8321 1888

Fax: (86) (22) 2321 0166

Hangzhou Branch
Room201and 203, No.171 and 181
Tian Mu Shan Road, Xihu District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang 310013

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666

Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619

Chongging Branch

L103 & 31F Unit A,

HNA-POLY International Centre
No.235 Min Sheng Road,

Yu Zhong District

Chonggqing 400010

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788

Suzhou Branch (Preparatory)
Unit 1801, Tower 1,

Jinghope Square

No.88, Huachi Street

Suzhou Industrial Park (SIP)
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200

Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006
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LKA (2015) BEFE560658622_B015
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Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2015) Shen Zi No 60658622_B01
To the Board of Directors of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2014, the income statement,
the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements. This responsibility
includes: (1) preparing and fairly presenting the financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises; (2) designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Chinese Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with Code of Ethics for
Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform
the audit to obtain a reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material aspects, the financial position of United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited as at 31 December 2014 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

“Bg
FEEMSITIR RmiA

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Huang Yue Dong

g 4 A

TEEMEIN K R

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhang Jian

2015538 18H

18 March 2015



#BFERER

Balance Sheet
2014 £ 12 A 31 H 31 December 2014
( BR4FAERASN, &FAMHMAANRTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

FHiER 2014%12A31H 2013%F12A31H

Notes 5 31-12-2014 31-12-2013
&= ASSETS
MERFHHRBITR Cash and balances with the central bank 1 6,366,002,492 6,059,454,561
T ) Al SRR Due from banks 2 1,5634,461,620 3,859,977,732
FHEE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 3,783,406,492 2,348,429,530
igggggi;igmﬁ)\ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 19,446,061 971,568,210
TSR Derivative financial assets 5 799,384,217 1,162,547,669
INBEEMEB~ Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 1,835,000,000 4,322,810,000
R FI 2 Interest receivables 7 293,032,941 209,200,271
RIS Loans and advances to customers 8 24,871,192,872 18,853,289,353
AEHEESME Available-for-sale financial assets 9 8,803,257,991 3,455,446,675
BEE &= Fixed assets 10 38,708,343 37,983,962
TREF= Intangible assets 11 64,000,746 60,549,623
BIEREHA Deferred tax assets 12 74,721,716 91,697,343
Hith 7= Other assets 13 540,723,949 539,457,388
RFELIT TOTAL ASSETS 49,023,339,440 41,972,412,317
Ak LIABILITIES
& lle B E At & RAHATE LRI Due to banks and other financial institutions 15 3,781,999,379 220,199,022
wANEE Placements from banks and other financial institutions 16 10,365,394,619 6,920,961,913
TSRS Derivative financial liabilities 5 837,034,644 1,270,307,268
sl e Customer deposits 17 29,384,989,543 29,059,960,553
B ER T #HEN Payroll payables 18 69,352,697 65,181,838
JERE L Tax payables 19 27,071,317 89,396,386
RAFE Interest payables 20 415,725,768 409,734,876
Hithfa s Other liabilities 21 92,723,603 63,545,977
faEait TOTAL LIABILITIES 44,974,291,570 38,099,287,833
FrIE&EWE EQUITY
LB AR Paid-up capital 22 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
BAAH Capital reserve 23 7,883,799 -
Hitigr gz Other comprehensive income 24 9,688,766 (26,242,239)
BRAR Surplus reserves 25 74,072,053 60,861,195
— i XU General reserves 26 564,261,213 492,879,631
ROEFE Retained earnings 27 393,142,039 345,625,897
FEENEEIT TOTAL EQUITY 4,049,047,870 3,873,124,484
HERAAENERT TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 49,023,339,440 41,972,412,317

BT H63TIE 136 MM SR FRMUE A AR SR FAE IR
The notes on pages 63 to 136 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Income Statement
2014 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2014
( BREFBIERRS, B AANRTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MHER 20144 20135
Notes 5 2014 2013
—. BN 1. OPERATING INCOME
RN Interest income 28 1,698,510,846 1,506,519,152
FEZH Interest expense 28 (966,279,622) (698,307,629)
F 2SN Net interest income 28 732,231,224 808,211,523
FHEERASEN Fee and commission income 29 130,891,812 125,158,757
FYHERASTH Fee and commission expense 29 (28,046,995) (14,499,593)
FHEHRAE RN Net fee and commission income 29 102,844,817 110,659,164
AW Investment income 30 191,807,972 83,251,403
NRMETEEIRE Losses from changes in fair value 31 (8,950,661) (74,620,773)
ICRBCR@EHRK Foreign exchange losses (41,602,991) (50,672,202)
EWBNEIT TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 976,330,361 876,829,115
Z. Bl 2. OPERATING EXPENSES
Bl B & T B on Business tax and surcharges (76,448,977) (64,926,091)
WEREEE General and administrative expenses 32 (707,037,608) (595,092,585)
RIEFBEBRR Impairment losses 33 (60,196,693) (58,755,475)
Bl HA& T TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (843,683,278) (718,774,151)
=, BLFE 3. OPERATING PROFIT 132,647,083 158,054,964
e Edl SN Add: Non-operating income 34 11,227,108 10,382,330
B B Less: Non-operating expenses (1,009,439) (453,793)
. BEETFRIE S 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 142,864,752 167,983,501
B rEHER Less: Income tax expense 35 (10,756,170) (40,638,237)
H., HHE 5. NET PROFIT 132,108,582 127,345,264
A Ht G a Wi e e 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX 24
R ES KRR Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
Htismalss Income Statement
AHHESME=ARNETEH Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 35,931,005 (30,636,023)
t. KEKELH 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 168,039,587 96,709,241

BT H63TE 5 136 AU SR T MIE D AW SR RAV AR

The notes on pages 63 to 136 form an integral part of these financial statements.

EEITIER 136 MM FIRFAMTALES:
The financial statements from page 59 to 136 have been signed by:

f :
. ]
AREERNGE. 5. E30F xﬁ[ﬁ—_‘:f"

President and CEO, Director: Lian Voon Fui
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BHEMEE: BN
CFO: Teh Han Yi



FiBEERmENR

Statement of Changes in Equity

2014 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2014
( BREFRIERRS, &R AARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

SRR REAR HitEaWs BRAR —hg RAEFE &it
Paid-up  Capital Othercom-  Surplus RXIE#%& Retained Total
capital reserves prehensive reserves  General earnings
income reserves
2013%F12HA31H4&% Balance as at 31 December 2013 3,000,000,000 - (26,242,239) 60,861,195 492,879,631 345,625,897 3,873,124,484
REEREHEE Movements during the year - 7,883,799 35,931,005 13,210,858 71,381,582 47,516,142 175,923,386
(—) ZAKEZE (i) Total comprehensive income - - 35,931,005 - - 132,108,582 168,039,587
(Z) BFEEB‘A (i) Injection of funds by and
BEE distribution of funds to the investor - 7883799 ) ) ) ) 7,883,799
1BRB T NEE
. 1. Share-based payment - 7,883,799 - - - - 7,883,799
WM SR pay
(=) FiESE (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 13,210,858 71,381,582 (84,592,440) -
1.REABERAR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 13,210,858 - (18,210,858) -
2RI — M XURG 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - - 71,381,582 (71,381,582) -
20144 12A31H4&% Balance as at 31 December 2014 3,000,000,000 7,883,799 9,688,766 74,072,053 564,261,213 393,142,039 4,049,047,870
SRHEAEA  BEAAR HitEEWE AR —#g ROEFIE &it
Paid-up  Capital Othercom-  Surplus RXIE##& Retained Total
capital reserves prehensive reserves  General earnings
income reserves
20124E12H31H4% Balance as at 31 December 2012 3,000,000,000 - 4,393,784 48,126,669 430,856,697 293,038,093 3,776,415,243
AEHBRTIHEE Movements during the year - - (30,636,023) 12,734,526 62,022,934 52,587,804 96,709,241
(—) EZRKEEE (i) Total comprehensive income - - (30,636,023) - - 127,345,264 96,709,241
(=) #FiEsie (ii) Profit appropriation - - - 12,734,526 62,022,934 (74,757,460) -
1IRRABSATR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 12,734,526 - (12,734,526) -
2 3R BN — % XLBS o 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - - 62,022,934 (62,022,934) -
2013412H31H4%% Balance as at 31 December 2013 3,000,000,000 - (26,242,239) 60,861,195 492,879,631 345,625,897 3,873,124,484
T 56371 E % 136 T1 MM SRR MTE A AN 55 iR FRAA MBS
The notes on pages 63 to 136 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MERER
Cash Flow Statement

2014 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2014
( BREFBIERRS, B AANRTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

HiER 20144 20134
Notes 5 2014 2013
—. EERPFENRERE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
TERL P RERIT R T 4R D B Net decrease in due from the central bank 100,779,414 -
TR B b TR R 2D B Net decrease in due from banks - 1,993,565,000
U S e D T 'Net'def:rease in placements with banks and other financial ) 515,131,391
institutions
INBEEBRATSB D Net decrease in reverse repurchase financial assets 2,956,280,000 -
AFAE R H : i Net increase in customer deposits and due to banks and
ggzz‘;;ﬂgﬁlﬁﬁMQmm*ﬂﬁm other financial institutions i 3,815,087,442 5,122,812,881
NS AR il:ziiztt:if::e in placements from banks and other financial 3,444,432,706 1,220.706,375
KEHFHE., FEERASNIE Cash received from interest, service fee and commission 1,807,931,410 1,582,987,106
KEEMEZERHEXNRE Cash received from other operating activities 12,279,761 10,381,138
ZEFEHREFTNNMT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 12,136,790,733 10,445,583,891
IR S e ISR i::;tiz:;asse in placements with banks and other financial 936,119,072 )
ENIRE S % = et &R Net increase in reverse repurchase financial assets - 2,956,280,000
&SRR AN i ER Net increase in loans and advances to customers 6,076,727,522 3,990,372,395
TER R R R T RN 1 I &R Net increase in due from the central bank - 801,049,252
IHHFE, FEERBEHTE Payments made for interest, service fee and commission 988,335,725 680,403,429
FRAERIRABRIZAHRE Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 442,097,122 366,037,447
TR EIHE Cash paid for all types of taxes 144,531,591 90,060,137
YRMEMSEEREDEXNAE Cash paid for other operating activities 331,373,268 199,692,557
ZEFRDREFTH /ML Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 8,919,184,300 9,083,895,217
ZEBRNTENAERESH Net cash flows from operating activities 36 3,217,606,433 1,361,688,674
=, BHEHCENASRE . CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
W E AR E Cash received from maturity of investments 22,167,600,000 9,952,823,282
mERAKEKIHME Cash received from investment income 295,513,733 174,480,118
Ab B B E R A A A HE R R Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term
ElHEHS assets 60,462 1,192
BEFEHREFTNNMT Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 22,463,174,195 10,127,304,592
BREMZANRE Cash paid for investment 26,547,086,484 10,287,058,119
ﬁizfiﬁ?ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂiﬁ :::;Spaid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term 41,579.340 46,673.188
BEEDR ST /T Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 26,588,665,824 10,333,731,307
BRBEDENRERESRT Net cash flows from investing activities (4,125,491,629) (206,426,715)
= &Tz
=, gz%MﬁfﬂﬁﬁiﬂQ%m% . Eil;iC;gJ\/E:&l-’Lﬁ_\rl;GE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND (42,232.489) (53.358.519)
M. RERAEENE (B ) /@mE ECELI(\?:EEZE%SEV'NCREASE N GASH AND CASH 36 (950,117,685) 1,101,903,440
m: ENHERALSENIERT Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 7,238,491,127 6,136,587,687
. ERAERAEENMIREA 5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 37 6,288,373,442 7,238,491,127

BT H63TLE F 136 UMM iR FRMIE A AN SR FAELE D
The notes on pages 63 to 136 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2014 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2014
( BR4FRERASS, £FBMA ARTT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

1. Corporate information

United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (the Bank or UOB (China))
is a wholly foreign-owned bank established in Shanghai, People’s
Republic of China, by United Overseas Bank (UOB).

In accordance with the Regulation of the People’s Republic of
China (PRC) on the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the
Regulation), and the Detailed Rules on the Implementation of
Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of Foreign-funded
Banks (the Implementation), China Banking Regulatory Committee
(CBRC) granted approval to UOB on 5 April 2007 to set up a
wholly-owned subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in Shanghai by
converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen Branch,
Guangzhou Branch, Chengdu Branch, Xiamen Branch, Shenyang
Branch and Jing’an sub-branch (collectively known as the former
PRC branches).

The Bank obtained the license for conducting financial transaction
from the CBRC (Institution Code: BO308H131000001),
and obtained its business license (Registered Number:
310000400553992 Shi Ju) from State Administration for Industry
and Commerce of the PRC. The registered address is Unit 105,
2F, 3F, 111 Dongyuan Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai. The
registered capital of the Bank is RMB three billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an unlimited
operating period. The business scope of the Bank are Renminbi
and foreign currency businesses as approved by relevant
regulatory authorities. The date of business conversion from
former PRC branches to UOB (China) was on 2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2014, besides the Head Office incorporated
in Shanghai, the Bank has set up 10 branches and six sub-
branches respectively in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen,
Guangzhou, Chengdu, Xiamen, Shenyang, Tianjin, Hangzhou
and Chongging.

2. Preparation basis of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-
Basic Standard and the specific standards, the implementation
guidance, interpretations and other relevant provisions issued
and revised subsequently by the Ministry of Finance of People’s
Republic of China (MOF) (collectively referred to as “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
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Adoption of some revised/new accounting standards

During January to March 2014, the MOF promulgated
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 39 Fair Value
Measurement, Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 40 Joint Arrangement and Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 41 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities; revised Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No.2 Long-term Equity Investments, Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No.9 Employee Benefits, Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises N0.30 Presentation of
Financial Statements, and Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises N0.33 Consolidated Financial Statements. These
seven standards were effective from 1 July 2014. In June 2014,
MOF revised Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No.37 Presentation of Financial Instruments, which was effective
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and thereafter.

The Bank has accounted for the changes in accounting policies
arising from the changes in accounting standards in the
financial statements in accordance with the transition rules. The
adoption of the above accounting standards did not have any
significant effects on the financial statements of the Bank, and no
retrospective adjustments have been made to the comparative
figures.

3. Compliance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial position
of the Bank as of 31 December 2014 and the results of the
operations and the cash flows for the year then ended.

4. Significant accounting policies and estimates

(1) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31 December of
each calendar year.

(2) Functional currency

The Bank’s functional currency is Renminbi (RMB). These
financial statements are presented in RMB and all amounts are
stated in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

(3) Basis of accounting and principles for measurement

The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared on
an accrual basis under the historical cost as the basis of
measurement, except for derivative financial instruments, the
financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value with changes recorded in profit and loss, and available-for-
sale financial assets. Subsequently, if the assets are impaired,
corresponding provisions should be recognised in accordance
with relevant standards.
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(4) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the exchange
rates ruling at the transaction date. Subsequent to initial
recognition, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the applicable exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising
from the settlement of monetary items or from the translation
of monetary items at balance sheet date are recognised in the
income statement. Non-monetary items measured at historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the initial transactions, non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates when the fair value is determined, the
exchange difference thus resulted is recognised in the income
statement or other comprehensive income of the current period.

(5) Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as follows: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investment, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. Financial
assets are initially recognised at their fair value. For financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss, the related transaction
costs are directly charged to income statement of the current
period. Transaction costs relating to financial assets of other
categories are included in the amount initially recognised.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets which are either classified as held for trading
or designated by the Bank as such upon initial recognition.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they meet any
of the following: 1) acquired for the purpose of sale in the short
term; 2) part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments
that are collectively managed, and there is objective evidence
indicating that the enterprise recently managed this portfolio for
the purpose of short-term profits; 3) derivatives unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments, they are financial
guarantee contracts or they are derivatives that linked to and
must be settled by delivery of equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured. For such kind of financial
assets, fair values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All
realised or unrealised gains or losses on these financial assets
are recognised in the income statement of the current period.
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Financial assets/liabilities are designated as fair value through
profit and loss only if they meet any of the following criteria:

() The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
liabilities on a different basis.

(i) In accordance with documented risk management or
investment strategy, this financial assets portfolio are
managed, and evaluated at fair value and reported on that
basis to key management personnel.

(iiiy The financial instrument contains one or several embedded
derivatives, unless the embedded derivatives do not
significantly modify the cash flow of the mixed instrument or it
is clear that they would not be separately recorded.

(iv) The financial instrument contains an embedded instrument,
which need to be separated but is unable to be measured
separately at initial recognition or subsequent measurement
at each subsequent balance sheet dates.

Held-to-maturity investment

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments when the Bank has the intention and ability to
hold the assets till maturity. After initial recognition, held-
to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the held-to-maturity financial
assets are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process. The Bank shall not classify any financial
assets as held-to-maturity if the Bank has, during the current
financial year or during the two preceding financial years, sold or
reclassified more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
investments before maturity (more than insignificant in relation to
the total amount of held-to-maturity investments), any remaining
held-to-maturity investments are reclassified as available-for-sale
financial assets except for:

(i Sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity or the
financial asset’s call date (i.e. less than three months before
maturity) that changes in the market interest rate would not
have a significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value;

(i) Sales or reclassifications that occur after the Bank has
collected substantially all of the financial asset’s original
principal through scheduled payments or prepayments; or

(iiiy Sales or reclassifications that are attributable to an isolated
event that is beyond the Bank’s control, is non-recurring, and
could not have been reasonably anticipated by the Bank.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, and gains or losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or amortisation are recognised in the
income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets which are designated as such or are not classified in
any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income earned during the holding period is
accrued using the effective interest rate method and recognised
to the income statement as interest rate income. Changes in fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised as other
comprehensive income until the financial asset is derecognised
at which time the cumulative gains or losses previously reported
in other comprehensive income are included in the income
statement. Impairment losses and foreign exchange gains or
losses on available-for-sale financial assets which are monetary
items are recognised in the income statement.

(6) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying value of financial assets other than financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that
it is impaired as a result of one or more events (“impairment
events”). The impairment events are referred to those occurring
after the initial recognition of the assets, which have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets and can
be reliably estimated by the Bank. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers are
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as deterioration of the
situation in arrears or sudden change of economic conditions,
which may lead to the debtors’ failing to fulfil the responsibility of
repayment.
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost

When an impairment loss is incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured, through use of an allowance account, as the
difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate, taking into
account the value of any related collaterals. Once an impairment
loss is recognised, interest income is thereafter recognised by
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables and the related allowance accounts will be written off
if there is no probability of recovery and all collaterals have been
foreclosed or transferred to the Bank.

The Bank firstly assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

Future cash flows of a group of financial assets that are
collectively assessed for impairment are estimated on the basis
of historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics. The historical loss experience is adjusted on the
basis of current observable data, to reflect the effects of current
conditions not affecting the period of historical experience and
to eliminate the impact of historical conditions that do not exist
currently. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be attributed objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the
assets does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If objective evidence shows that the financial assets carried at
cost are impaired, the difference between the present value
discounted at the prevailing rate of return of similar financial
assets and the book value of the financial asset are provided as
an impairment loss in the income statement. The impairment loss
recognised cannot be reversed.
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Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss for available-
for-sale financial assets has been incurred, the cumulative loss,
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net
off any recovered principals and amortised amount) and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the income statement, is reversed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

Debt instruments classified as available-for-sale with impairment
loss recognised, if, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss, the
previously impaired loss is reversed through the income
statement. Reversal of impairment loss of equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale is not recognised in the income
statement.

(7) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. Gains and
losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are measured at the fair value on
initial recognition. For financial guarantee contracts that are not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of, the
amount determined in accordance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No. 13-Contingencies, and the amount
initially recognised less the cumulative amortisation determined
according to the principles of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 14-Revenues.

Other financial liabilities

Except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and financial guarantee contracts, deposits and other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

(8) Derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when one of the following
conditions is met:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired; or
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(i) the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the assets; or has retained its rights to receive cash flows
from the assets but has assumed an obligation to pay them
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and (a) the Bank has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset; or (b) the Bank has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the financial asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Bank’s continuing involvement of the financial asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the guaranteed amount. The
guaranteed amount is the maximum amount of consideration
that the Bank could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities are derecognised when the responsibilities
over them have been discharged, cancelled, or expired. If
the original financial liabilities are replaced with substantively
different terms in essence by the same creditor, or the provisions
of the contract are substantively modified in its nature, such
replacement or modifications are treated as derecognition
of original liabilities and recognition of new liabilities, with the
difference recorded in the income statement.

(9) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the balance sheet when and only when
the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(10) Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value of the contract
date and are subsequently measured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated
separately as derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and
the hybrid instrument is not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
the changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective
economic hedges under the Bank's risk management positions,
do not qualify for hedge accounting and are therefore treated
as derivatives held for trading with gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.
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(11) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Assets sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future
date (“repos”) are not derecognised from the balance sheet.
The corresponding cash received, including accrued interest, is
recognised on the balance sheet as a “repurchase agreement”,
reflecting its economic substance as a loan to the Bank. The
difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as
an interest expense and is accrued over the life of the agreement
using the effective interest method.

Conversely, assets purchased under agreements to resell at a
specified future date (“reverse repos”) are not recognised on the
balance sheet. The corresponding cash paid, including accrued
interest, is recognised on the balance sheet as a “reverse
repurchase agreement”. The difference between the purchase
and resale prices is treated as an interest income and is accrued
over the life of the agreement using the effective interest method.

(12) Precious metal

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals acquired by
the Bank for trading purposes are initially and subsequently
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair value are
recorded in income statement.

(13) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according
to the actual expenditure for the construction, including all
necessary expenditure and other related expenses incurred
during the construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets or
other long term assets when the asset is ready for its intended
use.

(14) Fixed assets and accumulated depreciation
Recognition of fixed assets

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the Bank,
and the cost of fixed assets can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure can be recognised as the cost of fixed
assets when the recognition criteria set above is met, and the
replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised. Otherwise,
such expenditure is to be charged to the income statement in
the period when it is incurred.

Valuation and depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost and presented at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
impairment. The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, relevant taxes and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use, such as delivery and handling costs, installation
costs and other surcharge.
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Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis.
And the respective estimated useful lives, estimated residual
values and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets are set by
the Bank considering the nature and usage of fixed assets.
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Estimated useful lives Estimated residual value  Annual depreciation rate
EERESW Properties and buildings 504 _ 204
AR EBINIE & Office equipment and computers 54 - 20%
EERE Motor vehicles 54 - 20%
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Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

(15) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without
physical substance owned or controlled by the Bank. The
intangible assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to intangible assets are likely to flow into the
Bank, and the cost of intangible assets can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and the useful
life is determined according to the economic useful lives; those
intangible assets with unforeseeable economic lives can be
classified as intangible assets with infinite useful lives.

The Bank’s intangible assets comprise computer software with a
10-year useful life.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation
is charged to income statement over the assets' estimated
economic lives using methods that best reflect the pattern of
economic benefits; or on a straight line basis when the pattern of
economic benefit realisation cannot be reliably determined. For
the intangible assets with infinite useful lives, no amortisation is
made.

The useful life and amortisation method for intangible assets with
finite useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date, with
proper adjustments made by the Bank when necessary.

(16) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses refer to the expenses incurred with
an amortisation period of more than one year (not including one
year), mainly including rental fee and leasehold improvements.

Rental fee of the operating lease of fixed assets is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease contract. Other
long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the lower period of lease period or useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged to
income statement if the expenditure does not bring benefits to
subsequent accounting periods.
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(17) Impairment of assets

The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for
financial assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an asset
is impaired at each balance sheet date. If any such indication
exists, the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable
amount and carries out impairment test. For those assets
with infinite useful lives, regardless of whether the impairment
indications exist, the impairment test is made at least annually.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of estimated future discounted
cash flows, which is determined on an individual basis.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in income
statement and the carrying value of the asset reduced by the
amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be reversed in
a subsequent period.

(18) Recognition of income and expense

Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must
be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest income and expense

Interest income or expense are determined using the effective
interest method, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument and includes any
fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
but not future credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its
estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount
is calculated based on original effective interest rate and the
change in carrying amount is recorded as an interest income or
expense.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the services are
rendered and the proceeds can be reasonably estimated.
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(19) Income tax

Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax. Current income
tax and movements in deferred tax balances are recognised in
the income statement except that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognised directly in
equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at
the balance sheet date. The taxable income is calculated at the
accounting results for the year as adjusted in accordance with
relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with
relevant tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except: (i) where the deferred
tax assets arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable income or deductible loss; and; (i) in respect
of taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements,
where it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred income
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

(20) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the
Bank in exchange for service rendered by employees or for
the termination of employment, including short-term employee
benefits, post-employment benefits, termination benefits and
other long-term benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other
short-term employee benefits are accrued in the period in which
services have been rendered by the employees of the Bank.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)
Employees of the Bank participate in the retirement insurance
plan administered by the local government, and the contribution
is recognised to income statement of that period.

Employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity plan
established by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The Bank
contributes to the annuity at a certain percentage of employees’
salary, and recognises the cost in the income statement
accordingly.

(21) Share-based payment

The Bank’s share-based compensation programme is measured
as an equity-settled share-based payment.

The equity-settled share-based payment is measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
Where the equity instruments granted vest immediately, the Bank
recognises the expense in full at the fair value on grant date with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve. Where the equity
instruments granted vest upon the fulfiment of service period or
performance conditions, the Bank makes a best estimate at the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest, at each
balance sheet date of the vesting period, based on the latest
information on eligible employees and performance conditions,
and recognise the expense pertaining to the current period at the
fair value on grant date with a corresponding increase in capital
reserve. The fair values of the equity instruments are estimated
using the Trinomial valuation methodology.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and
service conditions are satisfied.
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Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum, an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. An additional expense is recognised for any
modification which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of the employees are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new compensation are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award.

(22) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise non-statutory deposits due from
central banks, amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions, reverse repurchase agreements maturing within three
months, and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, which have an original
maturity date within three months.

(23) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do not
constitute related parties.

(24) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in an entrusted business such as nominee,
custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together with related
undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded
from the financial statements.

(25) Operating leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets to the lessees are classified as finance
leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Bank mainly recorded operating leases as a lessee. Rental
payments are charged to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.
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(26) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but they are
disclosed in the notes to financial statements. In case the
condition changes, and when the outflow of economic resources
is probable, provision will be made.

(27) Accrued liability

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as accrued
liability when all of the following conditions are satisfied (except
for contingent liability recognised in a business combination not
under common control):

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(i) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and

(iii) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The accrued liability is initially measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the risks,
uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account
as a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank reviews the
carrying amount of a provision at the balance sheet date. The
carrying amount of a provision will be adjusted when there is
clear evidence that the amount does not reflect the current best
estimate.

(28) Fair value measurement

At each balance sheet date, the Bank measures its derivatives,
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, and available-for-sale financial assets at fair value. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the assumption that the orderly
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible to the Bank. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumption that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 77



AABRAELFBEATERF BEA RGN ALIENEMERS
MEERAR, EERBXTUEHNE, REETURGNETLE
BSFEMEBAZTTHELT, FEARTRRENE.

AWM FREFUAANETESIRBOR~MAE, RESQ2ARNE
TEERRNEAFEREXHNRMREXBNE, BEMBNARNE
BXR: #IFEREBRENAERA =R RREERT 7 ERZEEN
BN HE—BXBNE; BE—RRRANEIMEXE I AFEER
EETRENBNEAEZERBNE; BAXASLAERNR TR
MNENE=ZRERBNE,

BAAFNHRRE, AASNEMSREPFHIANFE UL RNET
ENASMAFHTERME, UREREEAANETTERXZ(E
REREM

29. EX it HIE St

AERNFRTRUTBRNTRED, EEEXNUSREARAHESEM
R T AN, T RRIR, XEHET. HRNRRSZEEAN. &
A, #FEMARNIIRENREKE, Af, XEGTRRAOTHE
T M P S E R 45 R O] BEAE AT AR SR 32 82 M A9 T 7 B 0 AR A K T 2 Bt
TEXRE,

CERF B R RL E R K
AABERHREEEAFVIEERBRRMBRLE T BER
Ko WH, AAEVBEERERANESH. RERESTHRRNE
HEELMEMTRARALAENAEZ ANE, HEBERKS
e, FENREFAEFTVEERARKIBERE R ERERKEH
EXRFM, FRENTHARASRENIEFERERMET

78 | KR (hE ) HRAF 2014 £ERE

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure the fair value. Use of observable inputs is maximized
and unobservable inputs will only be used when observable
inputs are not available or obtaining observable inputs becomes
unpractical.

For assets and liabilities measured and disclosed at fair value,
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement: Level 1 inputs are
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date; Level 2
inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

For assets and liabilities held at the end of the balance sheet
date that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Bank continues to make assessment as to whether there is
transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy.

(29) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management has used its judgments and made estimates
and assumptions of the effects of uncertain future events on
the financial statements. The use of judgments, estimates and
assumptions will affect the amount of income, expense, assets
and liabilities presented and disclosed. The uncertainty of such
estimates and assumptions might have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the future.

Impairment losses of loans and advances

The Bank determines periodically whether there is any objective
evidence that impairment losses on loans and advances have
occurred. If any such evidence exists, the Bank assesses the
amount of impairment losses. The amount of impairment losses
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows. Assessing the
amount of impairment losses involving significant judgement on
whether the objective evidence for impairment exists and also
significant estimates when determining the present value of the
expected future cash flows.
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Income tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Bank to estimate
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Bank
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions in accordance
with prevailing tax regulations and makes tax provisions
accordingly. In addition, deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. This requires significant estimation on the tax treatments
of certain transactions and also significant assessment on the
probability that adequate future taxable profits will be available
for the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with active
markets are determined based on the market prices. For
financial instruments with no active markets, fair value are
established using valuation techniques such as making reference
to recent transactions or other comparable financial instruments,
discounted cash flow method and option pricing models. To the
extent practicable, valuation technique makes maximum use of
market inputs. However, where market inputs are not available,
management needs to make estimates on areas such as credit
risk (both own and counterparty’s), volatility and correlation.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

Classification of investment

Significant management judgment is required in evaluating the
classification of investments, since different classification will
result in different accounting treatments and financial positions
of the Bank. If improper judgement on the classification of
investment is noticed after the balance sheet date, the Bank may
need to reclassify the whole investment portfolio.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The management of the Bank has assessed and made
judgments on the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial instruments for the transferred
transactions entered into, and make relevant accounting
treatments accordingly.
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5. Notes to financial statements

(1) Cash and balances with the central bank

31-12-2014

31-12-2013

EERE Cash on hand
EHHRRBITECEZESE-ART

ERHRRITEERE S-S

currency
TR A SRR T B H TR Other deposits with the central bank
&it Total

Statutory deposit reserve with the central bank - RMB

Statutory deposit reserve with the central bank - foreign

18,650,958
4,678,208,792
118,698,365

1,550,444,377

15,018,187
4,836,447,793
61,238,778

1,146,749,803

6,366,002,492

6,059,454,561

RIEFEARBTHERNE, KAILTE—ELLRYAFTES
SFHPEARRT. BARTTHIINTERESE SR EARINTERS
FH5%%7F (2013%F;: 5% ) , ARTEFAEENIZELEGRAR
MRS RT18% 477 ( 20134 18% ) ,

The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the People’s
Bank of China (PBOC) in accordance with relevant regulations
issued by it. The required statutory deposit reserve ratios are five
per cent (2013: five per cent) of the balance of customer deposits
denominated in foreign currencies, and 18 per cent (2013: 18 per

cent) of the balance of customer deposits denominated in RMB.

2. 7 R b ZRIR (2) Due from banks

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
FHE R RITRE Due from domestic banks 1,290,120,085 3,176,099,274
FHIESMRITE L Due from foreign banks 245,494,244 686,624,453
it Sub-total 1,5635,614,329 3,862,723,727

B FHEEEES (FE1)

Net amount of due from banks

AR

Less: Impairment provisions for due from banks (Note 1)

(1,152,709)

(2,745,995)

1,534,461,620

3,859,977,732

A1 FRELREAERARRSREREX[2010]455 ( PERK
SRTHR<RTUSRAMER NS ERIES>MNBH ) (R ER
THEME B KRB &
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Note1: Impairment provisions for due from banks represented
the country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010]
No. 45 “Circular of the China Banking Regulatory Commission
on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk
Management of the Banking Financial Institutions” issued by
CBRC.



3. R EE

(3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2014 31-12-2013

FRUR & H A IRIT R A R
Hib & maa

e R E R EEE (E1)

financial institutions

B &R

institutions

Less: Impairment provisions for placements (Note 1)

Net amount of placement with banks and other financial

Net amount of placements with domestic banks and other

3,785,742,970 2,348,429,530

(2,336,478) -

3,783,406,492 2,348,429,530

E1: FREREAE D AR SIREREX[2010]455 (hERE
KXTER (RTL ey MEZREEEIES]) NBHM) NRAER
THERE BN E A

4. DA s irEHE B HER TN HBREH SR

Note1: Impairment provisions for placements represented the
country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45
“Circular of the China Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing
and Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk Management of the
Banking Financial Institutions” issued by CBRC.

(4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
ZHEERE~ Held-for-trading financial assets
RERRE: Bond investments:
SRITENL 3% Bonds issued by banks - 245,552,350
EHTETIEI Rediscounted bills 19,446,061 R
BEUARMETEBEETS) )

. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

A BRSO 9 e
FINRE &R Reverse repurchase financial assets - 726,015,860
&it Total 19,446,061 971,568,210
5.ATE&RTE (5) Derivative financial instruments

TSR TRIE—MeR™m, EMEBURTHMKIAS—F “&
MM SR RIESSEMTENME. BEXLE "Bt Fat
ERE. KRR RETN. BETNICRENERE, AREE
ANt eRTASEZHEY. HHRHN

TSR TANBXERMIEHEMKINEN “Biit” AFNERM
B, AUA~NERRBREBNED . ZERANMERR T STHEEH
AANFNLTE SR TREMNEH O MIERRME,
AABDEAERREENTRIEEAETPR TENTTEAEEHM TR,

AABTRFNEREMFENITESMTRNT:

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which is derived
from the value of another “underlying” financial instrument, an
index or some other variables. Typically, an “underlying” financial
instrument is a share, commodity or bond price, an index
value or an exchange or interest rate. The Bank uses derivative
instruments such as forwards, futures, swaps and options.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount of
underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative is based.
It indicates the unsettled volume of business transaction at the
balance sheet date. The amount of underlying asset reflects the
risk exposure of derivative at the end of accounting period other
than fair value.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative
instruments are as follows:
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31-12-2014

NRNE
Fair Value
BX L #Hi= Ak

Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
SNCETET R Foreign exchange contracts:
AL Forwards 5,213,773,524 82,330,727 52,741,056
BHIE4 Swaps 74,884,227,009 373,420,128 459,056,196
A Options 13,110,825,547 47,612 47,612
INGE Sub-total 93,208,826,080 455,798,467 511,844,864
FIRETET A, Interest rate contracts:
&4 Swaps 95,995,372,087 287,209,827 236,782,042
HEY Options 18,236,113,343 1,564 1,564
INFE Sub-total 114,231,485,430 287,211,391 236,783,606
BRNEESTA. Commodity contracts:
&4 Swaps 280,391,897 5,188,087 5,230,446
HEY Options 3,791,269 - -
N Sub-total 284,183,166 5,188,087 5,230,446
BEMEESTA. Equity contracts:
&Y Swaps 3,357,952,990 19,773,871 65,311,350
HNEA Options 62,260,103 - -
INGF Sub-total 3,420,213,093 19,773,871 65,311,350
"EBELIATA. Precious metal derivatives: 1,163,146,395 31,412,401 17,864,378
Ait Total 212,307,854,164 799,384,217 837,034,644
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31-12-2013

NRNE
Fair Value
BX L #Hi= Ak

Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
SNCETET R Foreign exchange contracts:
AL Forwards 5,942,436,135 33,565,656 85,886,371
BHIE4 Swaps 64,201,278,279 338,624,708 341,008,501
A Options 827,927,288 11,366,770 11,020,840
N Sub-total 70,971,641,702 383,557,134 437,915,712
FIRETET A, Interest rate contracts:
&4 Swaps 75,228,424,945 634,484,456 636,424,302
HEY Options 16,199,757,157 1,035,579 76
INFE Sub-total 91,428,182,102 635,520,035 636,424,378
BRNEESTA. Commodity contracts:
&4 Swaps 350,306,005 8,350,128 9,834,271
A Options 3,777,576 23,266 -
INGF Sub-total 354,083,581 8,373,394 9,834,271
BEMEESTA. Equity contracts:
&Y Swaps 6,087,590,342 131,946,629 185,807,392
AN Options 339,240,144 3,106,935 -
N Sub-total 6,426,830,486 135,053,564 185,807,392
R"EELTETA. Precious metal derivatives: 151,348,595 43,542 325,515
Ait Total 169,332,086,466 1,162,547,669 1,270,307,268
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6.LNBE &R~

(6) Reverse repurchase financial assets

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
BRZEWMFHE: Classified by counter-party:
RITE Banks 1,835,000,000 4,322,810,000
BERSIENT: Classified by type of pledged assets:
=% Bonds 1,835,000,000 4,322,810,000
7. R4 F B (7) Interest receivables

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
REREMKF R Interest receivable on bond 112,675,856 50,314,434
e avaliel) s Interest receivable on loan 141,356,006 112,545,719
FINBREFEHFNEH S Interest receivable on reverse repurchase bond 7,201,349 19,645,391
[5) Ml iz i ) 2 R Eo At Interest receivable from banks and others 31,799,730 26,694,727
ait Total 293,032,941 209,200,271
8. A ZFR R (8) Loans and advances to customers

8.1 M Afnelk 4y 76

(8.1) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and

31-12-2014

31-12-2013

N/ &k S8

EE#8

Hith

Nt

1l BT AN -

e

it

PERFBRBE

B WERRKHEE

FRMBRKEMNE

Individual loans and advances:

Mortgages

Others

Sub-total

Corporate loans and advances:

Loans

Discounted bills

Trade finance

Sub-total

Total

Less: Loan impairment provision

Net value of Loans and advances to customers

4,350,728,441

6,718,357

3,317,157,743

8,799,971

4,357,446,798

16,883,561,799

2,901,473,213

1,094,874,906

3,325,957,714

12,306,871,129

2,304,753,609

1,212,120,541

20,879,909,918

15,823,745,279

25,237,356,716

(366,163,844)

19,149,702,993

(296,413,640)

24,871,192,872

18,853,289,353

84 | X7 (hE) HRAF 2014 £ERE



8.2 1T 53

(8.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by

industry
31-12-2014

W E R &N Le il (%)

Amount Percentage(%)

Rk Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 248,093,222 1
RE e Mining 18,664,847 -
il Manufacturing 6,944,847,833 28
B, #7. MERAKEFFAERE L Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 223,468,580 1
I Construction 883,745,216 3
FBIEH . IEFERELL Transportation, storage and post 285,455,594 1
ERES, WENBEERARRSL Telecommunication, software and information management service 274,415,847 1
& FEE Wholesale and retail 5,443,313,580 22
EBEMERL Accommodation and catering 1,665,802,110 7
SRl Finance - -
il Real estate 4,277,679,308 17
HEME SRS Leasing and commercial services 562,103,354 2
R RFEARRSE Scientific research and technical services 32,302,660 -
IKF ., IRBFALIZHEEIR Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration 13,260,000 -
BRERS. BEMEAmRS L Resident services, repair and other services 6,757,767 -
MABHEER Consumer credit 4,357,446,798 17
RN E R S E Total amount of loans and advances 25,237,356,716 100

W ERBKHEE

BB ENME

Less: Loan impairment provision

Net value of loans and advances

(366,163,844)

24,871,192,872
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31-12-2013

T E S AT e (%)
Amount Percentage(%)
ARGl Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 246,614,047 1
KA Mining 130,849,198 1
il Manufacturing 6,347,957,463 34
B, 85, MR RAKEFTER Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 151,968,732 1
Bl Construction 549,887,618 3
RIBIBEH. SEFHBELL Transportation, storage and post 174,617,714 1
= EEH. REEREARRSIL Telecommunication, software and information management service 221,821,973 1
HEMBENW Wholesale and retail 3,107,221,386 16
EEFERA Accommodation and catering 1,105,240,695 6
£ bl Finance 19,776,000 -
Bl Real estate 3,063,680,669 16
HEME SRS Leasing and commercial services 608,159,298 3
HMERFRMBEARIRES Scientific research and technical services 22,370,754 -
IKF ., EREFNAHIEHEE IR Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration 29,075,000 -
BRRE. EEMEMmRSL Resident services, repair and other services 44,504,732 -
MANBEBRER Consumer credit 3,325,957,714 17
WRFBER BT Total amount of loans and advances 19,149,702,993 100
e WERRKES Less: Loan impairment provision (296,413,640)

PERF B ENME

Net value of loans and advances

18,853,289,353
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8.3 IHMX H1h

(8.3) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by

geographical region

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
Fdk North-east 724,280,739 938,376,235
KT East 14,091,957,347 10,818,834,523
e North 6,230,179,226 4,144,727,469
fdh Central 180,701,967 170,716,722
1w South 1,816,753,348 1,302,130,255
i) South-west 2,138,954,345 1,665,925,097
A North-west 49,572,059 91,000,000
B X Overseas 4,957,685 17,992,692
REINBE S Total amount of loans and advances 25,237,356,716 19,149,702,993

W SERBKHEE

Less: Loan impairment provision

(366,163,844)

(296,413,640)

WA BR M ENE Net value of loans and advances 24,871,192,872 18,853,289,353

8.4 IMBERAXSH (8.4) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral
or guarantee

31-12-2014 31-12-2013

= R Unsecured loans 2,501,355,074 2,026,011,627

RIESE Guaranteed loans 3,876,395,435 3,991,376,661

[GEEREL A Loans with collaterals 18,859,606,207 13,132,314,705

Hr: MBS

BT

B RS

BRI ENME

Of which: Secured by mortgages
Secured by pledges

Total amount of loans and advances

Less: Loan impairment provision

Net value of loans and advances

11,252,930,610

7,606,675,597

8,000,826,626

5,131,488,079

25,237,356,716

(366,163,844)

19,149,702,993

(296,413,640)

24,871,192,872

18,853,289,353

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 87



(8.5) Overdue loan

31-12-2014
EH RE R  EHNKREIE(S1F) EEIEEIE (R3F) EEARE Lk it
Overdue 1 day Overdue 91 days to 1 Overdue 1 yearto 3 Overdue =
) . ) ) Total
to 90 days year (inclusive) years (inclusive) 3 years above

RIEEE IR Guaranteed loans - - 3,677,464 - 3,677,464

g RN Loans with collaterals 41,894,152 46,283,869 46,603,412 - 134,781,433
He: Of which:

MR Secured by mortgages 31,307,398 9,591,183 46,603,412 - 87,501,993

JRIBEEIR Secured by pledges 10,586,754 36,692,686 - - 47,279,440

&it Total 41,894,152 46,283,869 50,280,876 - 138,458,897

31-12-2013
EE REO X EHNKEIE(F1F) EHIEE3E(A34F) HEA3E M E i
Overdue 1 day Overdue 91 days to 1 Overdue 1 yearto 3 Overdue =
. . ; . Total
to 90 days year (inclusive) years (inclusive) 3 years above

RIETE R Guaranteed loans 2,917,225 6,274,653 - - 9,191,878

EEERE RS E A Loans with collaterals 284,443 19,639,969 27,526,536 8,359,685 55,810,633
He: Of which:

HEIREE R Secured by mortgages 284,443 19,639,969 27,526,536 8,359,685 55,810,633

&it Total 3,201,668 25,914,622 27,526,536 8,359,685 65,002,511

BEARREREAS T 2Em I R AT, Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related

88
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interests are overdue for one day or above.



8.6 FEIRKER (BHEER. 14)

(8.6) Loan impairment provision (Note 5.14)

2014
By HE ait
Individual Collective Total
ENET Opening balance 26,235,622 270,178,018 296,413,640
AEITR Charge during the year 6,391,219 53,062,282 59,453,501
W 1) BT 4 R B S;i?:jgyojvlﬁf::z;d advances 10,926,201 - 10,926,201
LEER Exchange rate difference (538,989) (90,509) (629,498)
ERRE Closing balance 43,014,053 323,149,791 366,163,844
2013
IR HE Ait
Individual Collective Total
FEVRG Opening balance 85,139,490 214,524,187 299,663,677
AE (¥E) /iR (Reversal)/Charge during the year (1,170,262) 57,577,840 56,407,578
EEIZH Write-off during the year (59,021,606) - (59,021,606)
B L B R A2 Re09very of I9ans and advances 2,050,308 ) 2,050,308
previously written-off

LRER Exchange rate difference (762,308) (1,924,009) (2,686,317)
EREE Closing balance 26,235,622 270,178,018 296,413,640

9. M HELREF (9) Available-for-sale financial assets
31-12-2014 31-12-2013

RERRE: Bond investments:

FRRBITEREERE Central bank bills and government bonds 4,415,644,201 2,073,167,955
SRITRN &% Bonds issued by banks 761,751,730 758,625,980
il &S Corporate bonds 200,046,700 244,576,650
BURMERITES Bonds issued by policy banks 346,617,580 379,076,090
1Nt Sub-total 5,724,060,211 3,455,446,675
KERE 17 Negotiable certificate of deposits 2,615,922,740 -
LTSI Rediscounted bills 463,275,040 R
&it Total 8,803,257,991 3,455,446,675
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10. B E &=

(10) Fixed assets

BER E@igE DIV Ait
EZ5 FA B ig &

Properties and Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
2014 buildings and computers
Rfr: Cost:
2014%1RA18 At 1 January 2014 4,798,060 3,133,418 77,695,113 85,626,591
A Additions - - 13,954,723 13,954,723
T;iﬁ?ﬁ%i\ ;I’;;r::f;r:g-)g)\ construction in progress _ B 1,404,346 1,404,346
KELHE Disposals (1,985,371) (625,751) (4,114,637) (6,725,759)
REHEH Transfer out - (58,284) - (58,284)
2014%12831H At 31 December 2014 2,812,689 2,449,383 88,939,545 94,201,617
Rit#rA: Accumulated depreciation:
20144#1RA18 At 1 January 2014 1,604,221 1,371,394 43,974,441 46,950,056
AEIHR Additions 79,953 413,831 13,273,734 13,767,518
BELE Disposals (632,915) (625,751) (3,965,634) (5,224,300)
2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 1,051,259 1,159,474 53,282,541 55,493,274
[ E 3 = A : Net book value:
2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 1,761,430 1,289,909 35,657,004 38,708,343
BEAF-BEES: (HMEER. 14) Impairment provision: (Note 5.14)
2014%F1H1HK2014%12A31H At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 - - - -
& 7E ¥ 7= : Net carrying amount:
2014%12A31H At 31 December 2014 1,761,430 1,289,909 35,657,004 38,708,343
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BEXR EHiEE VIV ait
=571k Fa % &
Properties and Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
2013 buildings and computers
B Cost:
2013#1A1H At 1 January 2013 4,798,060 1,694,141 70,637,351 77,129,552
RN Additions - 1,439,277 8,190,010 9,629,287
T;zﬁ\lﬁfj\ '(I":l;zrnggaf;.);; construction in progress _ B 343,022 343,022
RELE Disposals - - (1,476,170) (1,476,170)
20134128310 At 31 December 2013 4,798,060 3,133,418 77,695,113 85,626,591
Kit#rIA: Accumulated depreciation:
2013%F1A1H At 1 January 2013 1,524,267 976,462 33,213,630 35,714,359
AREITR Additions 79,954 394,932 11,989,565 12,464,451
RELE Disposals - - (1,228,754) (1,228,754)
2013%12A31H At 31 December 2013 1,604,221 1,371,394 43,974,441 46,950,056
Bl E R = E Net book value:
20134128310 At 31 December 2013 3,193,839 1,762,024 33,720,672 38,676,535
BEER-REAS: (MHEE. 14) Impairment provision: (Note 5.13)
2013%1H1HK20135F12A31H At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 692,573 - - 692,573
[l E B 7= 30 : Net carrying amount:
2013%12A31H At 31 December 2013 2,501,266 1,762,024 33,720,672 37,983,962
MNEHRE* (11) Intangible assets
2014 2013
g E Software
B Cost or valuation:
FENERET Opening balance 90,671,720 86,219,359
AEWE Additions 4,108,739 4,440,321
EREIBEN (HiER. 132) Transfer from construction in progress (Note 5.13.2) 9,411,014 30,440
KELE Disposals - (18,400)
FERRE Closing balance 104,191,473 90,671,720
Rt Accumulated amortisation:
FEYWERT Opening balance 30,122,097 21,314,728
AEiHR Additions 10,068,630 8,825,769
RELAE Disposals - (18,400)
FERRE Closing balance 40,190,727 30,122,097
KRR RER ST Net carrying amount:
ERRE Closing balance 64,000,746 60,549,623
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12 B EFFRHRET / (8 K)

(12) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

2014
FERE AET N AEEEITA ERRE
AEENE
Opening balance Credited/ Credited/  Closing balance
(charged) (charged)
BEMBHET/ (k) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) to income statement to equity
RRBMKEE Loan impairment provision 39,286,177 (6,534,943) - 32,751,234
A B S RE =R LR Unrealised profit or loss on the available- 8,747,413 - (11,977,002) (3,229,589)
for-sale financial assets
TEEMIANARMETIIRE Changes in fair value of derivatives 26,939,900 (17,527,293) - 9,412,607
FHRIATIIARES Payroll payables 16,295,459 2,490,081 - 18,785,540
B E A R REE D Changes in fair value of structured (1,301,379) 17.935.476 _ 16.634.097
R P = deposits embedded with options R TS DA
Hity Others 1,729,773 (1,361,946) - 367,827
&it Total 91,697,343 (4,998,625) (11,977,002) 74,721,716
2013
FEXREN AETAHEHE REEEITA FERRE
AEAENE
Opening balance Credited/ Credited/  Closing balance
(charged) (charged)
BIEFERAT / (HE) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) to income statement to equity
BRMKES Loan impairment provision 30,750,781 8,535,396 - 39,286,177
AL S BA PR IR Unreallsgd prqflt or loss on the available- (1,464,594) B 10,212,007 8,747,413
for-sale financial assets
TEEMI AN ANET RS Changes in fair value of derivatives 7,515,829 19,424,071 - 26,939,900
FTURIRITIARRE Payroll payables 11,029,315 5,266,144 - 16,295,459
TN e Changes in fair value of structured
MNP EEERIARNEETS g ; ’ (2,592,171) 1,290,792 - (1,301,379)
deposits embedded with options
Hit Others 3,424,133 (1,694,360) - 1,729,773
&it Total 48,663,293 32,822,043 10,212,007 91,697,343
13. 4 F 7>~ (13) Other assets
B
Notes 31-12-2014 31-12-2013
KESMER Long-term deferred expenses 13.1 47,005,575 46,886,081
FEEIRE Construction in process 13.2 17,464,765 17,908,235
H At 7 Y=k Other receivables 13.3 476,253,609 474,659,292
Hity Others - 3,780
&it Total 540,723,949 539,457,388
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13. 1K HA S MR A

(13.1) Long-term deferred expenses

SR BEAEER~BRXH HE#H ait
2014 Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
ERRER Opening balance 129,840 43,462,114 3,294,127 46,886,081
RS Additions - 12,482,811 - 12,482,811
T;T;‘ﬁf[?fg))\ '(I":Ie;r::fzt}f;c.);; construction in progress ) 4,603,109 ) 4,603,100
A Amortisation (10,056) (16,466,408) (198,641) (16,675,105)
RERE Disposals - (291,321) - (291,321)
FERRE Closing balance 119,784 43,790,305 3,095,486 47,005,575
SR#H BEAEER~BRXH HE#H ait
2013 Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
ERRER Opening balance 144,690 43,870,871 3,492,768 47,508,329
AR Additions - 11,585,109 - 11,585,109
T;T:ﬁf[fzfg))\ '(I":I::l)rngz;f;tfg; construction in progress ) 873,961 ) 873.961
ALY Amortisation (14,850) (12,867,827) (198,641) (13,081,318)
FERRE Closing balance 129,840 43,462,114 3,294,127 46,886,081
13.27EETIE (13.2) Construction in progress
2014 2013
EMERE Opening balance 17,908,235 1,529,148
AN Additions 14,974,999 17,627,410
BNEERF (MER. 10) Transfer to fixed assets (Note 5. 10) (1,404,346) (343,922)
BALRES (MERE. 11) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 5. 11) (9,411,014) (30,440)
HENKHEMER (MiER. 13.1)  Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Note 5. 13.1) (4,603,109) (873,961)
FEREE Net closing balance 17,464,765 17,908,235
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13.3E ft iz U=k

(13.3) Other receivables

T Ageing 31-12-2014 31-12-2013
1EAR Within 1 year 25,432,094 29,976,748
1-24 1-2 years 7,146,056 432,137,378
2-3% 2-3 years 431,752,428 2,365,197
3ERE More than 3 years 11,923,031 10,179,969
Ait Total 476,253,609 474,659,292

HYBRFEETAABDINRMHFE N A EXZEEHIART

430,000,000,

AAS)EEE RN H M B T B Et o4, INAERIT

The other receivables contains down-payment of RMB

430,000,000 for the purchase of the Bank’s new office building.

The management of the Bank has assessed the recoverability

REAFREES, of other receivables on a regular basis and considered that no
bad debts provision is needed to be made for the balance as
at 31 December 2014.
14. 8RB EH (14) Provision for impairment losses
FERE AEIR / REZH / 1 = A i CEER FERRE
(%[ ) 8] SHE EEZE
Opening Accrual/ Write off/ Recovery of Exchange rate Closing
balance (reversal) disposals  assets previously difference balance
2014 written-off
FHEREEE  Impairment provision for due from
(BHEE., 2) banks (Note 5.2) 2,745,995 (1,593,286) - - - 1,152,709
FHEREAESE  Impairment provision for
(HER. 3) placements with banks (Note 5.3) ) 2,336,478 B ) . 2,336,478
WK ES Impairment provision for loans
(HEE. 86) (Note 5. 8.6) 296,413,640 59,453,501 10,926,201 (629,498) 366,163,844
. N Impairment provision for fixed
?;i;ﬁﬁ’%g assets 692,573 - (692,573) - - -
= (Note 5. 10)
&it Total 299,852,208 60,196,693 (692,573) 10,926,201 (629,498) 369,653,031
EMRE ARETHR / IEZSH / = BART CEER ERRE
(%M@ ) & SE FEEIZH
Opening Accrual/ Write off/ Recovery of Exchange rate Closing
balance (reversal) disposals  assets previously difference balance
2013 written-off
FHEREEE  Impairment provision for due from
(R, 2) banks (Note 5.2) 398,098 2,347,897 - - - 2,745,995
BRI KEE Impairment provision for loans
(WEE. 86) (Note 5. 8.6) 299,663,677 56,407,578 (59,021,606) 2,050,308 (2,686,317) 296,413,640
2t i . Impairment provision for fixed
= (Note 5. 10)
&it Total 300,754,348 58,755,475  (59,021,606) 2,050,308 (2,686,317) 299,852,208
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15. Gk B Hfth & AL 7 TR TR

(15) Due to banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
BRRITEW R HE & AaTER Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 357,767,755 7,696
EINMBITRITRRL Due to overseas banks 3,424,231,624 220,191,326
&it Total 3,781,999,379 220,199,022
16.hNEE (16) Placements from banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
BRRITEMFNREN Placements from domestic banks 511,190,000 -

ESMRITRIMF A RN

Placements from overseas banks

9,854,204,619

6,920,961,913

&it Total 10,365,394,619 6,920,961,913
17. 84 7738 (17) Customer deposits

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
EHTER Current deposits:
A= Corporate customers 3,137,050,636 3,378,376,000
MTAER Individual customers 380,077,944 362,061,328
i\ Sub-total 3,517,128,580 3,740,437,328
TEHITESR Time deposits:
NGESE] Corporate customers 23,134,255,883 21,193,598,597
TAER Individual customers 2,733,605,080 4,125,924,628
Mt Sub-total 25,867,860,963 25,319,5623,225
&it Total 29,384,989,543 29,059,960,553

BB EFERTEENENEERRTAARTS,428,033,0687C
(2013-12-31; AERM11,438,468,0557T) , HEFBATE4E%S
BTE, FEHHN. BRENMREREIERTRNMEERERSE,
#EEREMHERS, ARM7,937,781,834T (2013-12-31; A
R ™6,667,246,8447C ) FRx ANBILTE S T EWIAEAS EERE
HHEYIBEZ, HHARM4,835,014,4497F (2013-12-31; AR
2,637,777,0927t ) MNEMMUFR W EBEIEEUAANEITE, RE
ARM3,102,767,3847C (2013-12-31; AR4,129,469,7527¢ )
KWRE, A2IALEHEFNHRARNLTESRTESHERSF, &
ARMEEITALTE SR T RARTH,

Customer deposits include structured deposits amounting to RMB
8,428,033,068 (RMB 11,438,468,055 as at 31 December 2013). These
structured deposits are embedded with derivatives which are mainly
options, equity swaps and commodity swaps. RMB 7,937,781,834
(RMB 6,667,246,844 as at 31 December 2013) of those deposits are
embedded with derivatives which are considered not closely related to
the host contract, of which deposits amounting to RMB 4,835,014,449
(RMB 2,537,777,092 as at 31 December 2013) are designated at fair
value through profit or loss as a whole while the rest RMB 3,102,767,384
(RMB 4,129,469,752 as at 31 December 2013) are not designated.
Consequently, the derivatives instruments embedded therein are
separated and the fair value is recorded in derivative assets or liabilities.
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18. B £+ BR T #r el

(18) Payroll payables

KT E&ER Amount unpaid 31-12-2014 31-12-2013
T&., &, EWEMAIG Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 62,834,951 59,159,333
LRI Social insurance 2,365,202 3,345,402
EBEAMRE Housing fund 37,960 7,144
ISREMMIHERLE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 40,361 36,624
EERET X Defined contribution plan 4,074,223 2,633,335
He: Of which:
BEAFERERSE Pension fund 1,979,889 2,633,335
DUEEHH Annuity 2,004,334 -
&it Total 69,352,697 65,181,838
RifT & 50 Amount payable 2014 2013
TH. BE. B Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 365,385,954 314,292,153
HERIEZE Social insurance 19,299,825 17,369,396
EBEARE Housing fund 13,888,992 11,300,115
ISRHEMMILEFRLE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 2,938,222 2,289,254
& ERFITR Defined contribution plan 32,964,856 23,230,357
He: Of which:
EAXFZREE Pension fund 27,787,124 23,230,357
1l 5 %R Annuity 5,177,732 -
&it Total 434,477,849 368,481,275
19. R 32 #i 8% (19) Tax payable

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
&l R B Business tax and surcharges 19,567,987 18,299,695
1l Fr S Corporate income tax (26,325,883) 42,290,108
Hity Others 33,829,213 28,806,583
&it Total 27,071,317 89,396,386

KPS AFEFTERMEHABETIRMNT

=%} — RBBAMS%ITEE LT,
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The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the
respective tax rates for the current financial year are as follows:

Business tax — The Bank is subjected to a
business tax rate of five per cent.



AV PrISH

1RIE2008E1 B 1HEMITH (WS  Corporate income tax
BEY , A FTSH 82008 IR 44

BT SM25%1T4, ARBARTE

SN S PR SRR H25%,

In accordance with the PRC
Enterprise Income Taxation Law,
which has been implemented since
1 January 2008, both domestic and
foreign enterprises are subjected

RINGAN AR AATZMHEEANT S, AALTR to a corporate tax rate of 25 per
FUEARIMBN NS cent. The corporate income tax rate
adopted by the Bank for its RMB
and foreign currency business has
been amended to 25 per cent since
1 January 2008.
Withholding individual In accordance with the relevant tax
income tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is
required to withhold individual
income tax on salaries paid to its
employees.
20. R {TFI 2 (20) Interest payables
31-12-2014 31-12-2013
TFREMAHE Interest payable to customer deposits 393,268,690 405,943,975
[l Rz {5 F) B R E At Interest payable to banks and others 22,457,078 3,790,901
&it Total 415,725,768 409,734,876
21. 2t {5 (21) Other liabilities
31-12-2014 31-12-2013
HREEREESm Settlement and clearing 29,973,633 12,180,264
RAHITRGRR S % IT system service fee 38,331,025 22,876,557
Hitt Others 24,418,945 28,489,156
&it Total 92,723,603 63,545,977
22.58AE (22) Paid-up capital
2014 £12 A31 HF2013 £12 A31 B
31-12-2014 and 31-12-2013
ZEART %
RMB equivalent %
KERITHRATE United Overseas Bank Limited 3,000,000,000 100

ERLBBRERS T MESHRIE, FHETRERE, He
AARERTHESE/ATEEART1,198,580,917.657t, HEF
KATRXOTECRSREZRESRBITHEAANEEART
1,801,419,082.357C

The paid-up capital was verified by the Certified Public
Accountants with capital verification report issued. RMB
equivalent amounting to 1,198,580,917.65 was injected by UOB,

in form of cash, and the remaining balance was transferred from
operating capital of former PRC branches.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 97



23. BAEA
BANREAN S AR TIRS, SHMABOZMTHIT, M
ZE BN T T AR R AR R,

24 HithZ S Ui
RERER R RS A RE RREH.

(23) Capital reserve

In change for employee service, the Bank implements a share-
based compensation programme which is equity settled in equity
with a corresponding charge to the capital reserve.

(24) Other comprehensive income
Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the
balance sheet:

£ b 7T 7
31-12-2013 SR 31-12-2014
Increase/(decrease)
AHHEEMAFTARMETE Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (26,242,239) 35,931,005 9,688,766
£ b 7T 7
31-12-2012 SR 31-12-2013
Increase/(decrease)
AHHESMETARNMETS) Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 4,393,784 (30,636,023) (26,242,239)

ik EMEA W E AR ER:

Other comprehensive income in the income statement:

2014 BAT&E g8t BEEE
Before tax Tax After tax
st SE e Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to the
DUSH E S H RN H 5 a2 ; Y quenty
income statement
AEHESRATARNEES Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 48,369,261 (12,092,315) 36,276,946
B BT ANEMEARE LI ANRSE  Less: Transfer to the income statement (461,254) 115,313 (345,941)
&it Total 47,908,007 (11,977,002) 35,931,005
2013 BATEE R8st BEEEH
Before tax Tax After tax
e vih e e Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to the
U E S KR B & s ) Y quenty
income statement
At HESRESARMEES Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (36,275,909) 9,068,977 (27,206,932)
B BETNEMS S LB NIRZE  Less: Transfer to the income statement (4,572,121) 1,143,030 (3,429,091)
&it Total (40,848,030) 10,212,007 (30,636,023)
25.BR0NR (25) Surplus reserves

FERE AN REFD FERRE
Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
EEBENT Statutory surplus reserves 60,861,195 13,210,858 - 74,072,053

RIBASEMAATIERAME, FHL2015FE3F18HES SR,
AATIREFEHNI10%RBGEER S ARE, FEREARREITTN
ARASHEMEARS0% U EHY, oI RERE,
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According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Bank’s
Articles of Association, accompanied with resolution passed
by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2015, the Bank has
appropriated 10 per cent of its profit to the statutory surplus
reserves. The Bank should appropriate until the reserve balance
reaches 50 per cent of its registered capital or above.



AABSHERBZERRARER, TRBERBRARE. LA,
FERBRARETATRMUGEESRIEMBER. RELAREE
SRWHRW, AFEEFMERERRRARE.

26.—fix RS &

After the statutory surplus reserves are appropriated, the Bank
may appropriate discretionary surplus reserves. Discretionary
surplus reserves can be used to compensate for the
accumulated losses of previous years or convert to capital upon
approval. It has been determined by the Board of Directors
of the Bank that no discretionary surplus reserves are to be
appropriated this year.

(26) General reserves

FEVRE b)) EEHD FERRH
Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
— R RURS E General reserves 492,879,631 71,381,582 - 564,261,213

ANBRBI£[2012]1205 3 { &Rt W AR SIHEEE L)
E, MBEFE SR ERMETF XS R =R KT 1.5% L Flit
BB ES, EAFESELIE, AATRE2015E3[18EH
BEELRN, R AESITARM71,381,5827T, F20144
12318, ARSMN—BREESERTIANART5S64,261,2137T,

According to the regulation Caidin [2012] No. 20 “Financial
institution provision measurement Guideline”, the Bank is
required to set aside general reserves of at least 1.5 per cent
of its total risk assets at year end from net profit. In accordance
of the Board of Directors resolution on 18 March 2015, general
reserves amounting to RMB 71,381,582 was appropriated. As
at 31 December 2014, total general reserves of the Bank is
RMB 564,261,213.

27. RS EFE (27) Retained earnings

2014 2013
FEARSERE Retained earnings brought forward 345,625,897 293,038,093
& F)iE Net profit for the year 132,108,582 127,345,264
B REVEERRATR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (13,210,858) (12,734,526)

e R AR

FERRSEFE

Less: Appropriation to general reserves

(71,381,582)

(62,022,934)

Closing balance of retained earnings

393,142,039

345,625,897

RIE (FEARKMEASE) RANSNASIER, AASTEAE

(1) BERERSTE; (2) FIMUBEESHR; (3) RIUVEE
BRARE; (4) BR—MNEAEE; (5) BRREREBRLARS
B, TRFAENRERAEERER. —RREAERRSIE SR
EEBIAEFERRENMNAIRT, AAANEFTIRE.

DEIHANRERRADEERRE, HFSEFETHER. MERAR
HhE XM EEMmEE,

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles
of Association of the Bank, the profit of the Bank can
only be distributed to shareholders after (1) fulfiling all tax
responsibilities; (2) compensating any accumulated losses; (3)
making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves; (4) making
appropriation to the general reserves; (5) making appropriation
to discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios of the
general reserves and surplus reserves are decided by the Bank's
Board of Directors in compliance with relevant regulations.

The profit appropriation is decided by the Board of Directors of

the Bank, with reference to the operating performance, financial
positions, and other relevant factors.
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(28) Net interest income

2014 2013
FEBIN: Interest income:
FRE Due from banks 153,219,618 246,465,645
TFH R RERIT Due from the central bank 89,468,767 71,934,511
KIS ER AR Loans and advances to customers 1,213,336,631 977,040,598
FINREES Reverse repurchase financial assets - bonds 102,943,338 79,454,346
RHEEREM Placement with banks and other financial institutions and others 139,542,492 131,624,052
N g Sub-total 1,698,510,846 1,506,519,152
FEZH: Interest expense:
Bl R Hfth & m##7FH  Due to banks and other financial institutions 5,818,651 151,557
SN Customer deposits 848,808,911 643,635,851
FANERERHM Placement from banks and other financial institutions and others 111,652,060 54,520,221
it Sub-total 966,279,622 698,307,629
FI 2SN Net interest income 732,231,224 808,211,523
29.FZBRAESWAN (29) Net fees and commission income

2014 2013
FERRASEN: Fees and commission income:
GEHEEFER Settlement and clearing fees 43,392,116 36,208,260
RIBUSFEHE Agency brokerage fees 2,309,853 6,824,418
FERKEFERRESE Credit commitment fees 12,168,813 6,566,926
S5REFXHBAN Credit related income 56,523,951 59,768,742
Hity Others 16,497,079 15,790,411
it Sub-total 130,891,812 125,158,757
FYHRASTH: Fees and commission expense:
FEBEITH Fee expenses 28,046,995 14,499,593
it Sub-total 28,046,995 14,499,593
FHERERAESEBN Net fees and commission income 102,844,817 110,659,164

100 | KE4RT (PE ) HRAE 2014 £EIRE



3038 FUk R

(30) Investment income

2014 2013
AR SMFENESRE S/ (%) Gain/ (loss) on disposal of held-for-trading bond investments 23,311,989 (23,858,936)
ICTTINDAN = s gh e . " . . .
BEUARMETEEET TN L Gain on financial assets designated at fair value through 35,864,855 22,898,300

B3 M R PR TR

TEEMTABIIERK

profit or loss

Net realised loss on derivatives

(144,370,300)

(63,804,090)

At HEEHRAHESKE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale bond investments 377,860 4,572,121
RHETER RN Bond interest income 276,623,568 143,444,008
&it Total 191,807,972 83,251,403
.M ETHSRIRE (31) Losses from changes in fair values

2014 2013
UARMETENESREAF Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (10,008,441) 9,215,872

TESMIAR Derivative financial instruments 70,109,173 (77,696,288)
Hits Others (69,051,393) (6,140,357)
&it Total (8,950,661) (74,620,773)
R2.WERERE (32) General and administrative expenses

2014 2013
RIZR Staff costs 454,151,780 387,102,023
% Depreciation 13,767,518 12,464,451
BFEMER Amortisation 26,743,735 21,907,087
&R Other operating expenses 212,374,575 173,619,024
ait Total 707,037,608 595,092,585
3B.H/FRMEIREK (33) Impairment losses

2014 2013
TR R E IRk Impairment losses for due from banks (1,593,286) 2,347,897
AR R B R 5k Impairment losses for placements with banks 2,336,478 -
WEURE R K Impairment losses for loans 59,453,501 56,407,578
&it Total 60,196,693 58,755,475
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34. EdSMEN (34) Non-operating income

2014 2013
EEEFLEFSF Gain from disposal of fixed assets 1,432,810 1,192
s eI N Fiscal subsidy 9,601,291 10,098,612
Hith Others 193,007 282,526
&t Total 11,227,108 10,382,330
35. g HiEH (35) Income tax expenses

2014 2013
LHFER Income tax expenses for the current year 9,905,732 73,552,356
it AR A B B T VR Adjustment in respect of prior periods (4,148,187) (92,076)
BIERTEH Deferred income tax expenses 4,998,625 (32,822,043)
&it Total 10,756,170 40,638,237
ERERSMESTHHNXRIIRINT: The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before tax

is as follows:

2014 2013
FLaTFiE Profit before tax 142,864,752 167,983,501
BRIEEBFR25% 1T E RN Tax charge on a tax rate at 25% 35,716,188 41,995,875
X ARTHA 18] 2 BB B i 22 Adjustment in respect of prior periods 407,121 (92,076)
BRHRNE SR 2B Interest income of government bonds (25,900,421) (3,157,490)
AR I 2R A Non-deductible items 533,282 766,928
FIRBTEERBIANENEZ R0 Utilisation of unrecognised deductible deferred tax impact - 1,125,000
RETE: 9z Income tax expenses 10,756,170 40,638,237
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3. HERERMELH

(836) Supplementary information for the cash flow

statement
2014 2013
1. SRR S A A E e TR ;.CFt{iiﬁfer;(?iliation of net profit to cash flows from operating

% iE Net profit 132,108,582 127,345,264
RIEBEBR Impairment losses 60,196,693 58,755,475
Bl & =18 Fixed assets depreciation 13,767,518 12,464,451
Te B PP Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 10,068,630 8,825,769
KGR M Amortisation for long term deferred expenses 16,675,105 13,081,318
SEERER HK A (M35 ) /i85 ﬁ:;z)/losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term (818,697) 246,024
NRNMETESRIRK Losses from changes in fair value 8,950,661 74,620,773
BEW S Investment income (336,178,272) (163,324,694)
LRk Foreign exchange losses 41,602,991 50,672,202
B IERT BRI Changes in deferred tax assets/liabilities 4,998,625 (82,822,043)

ZEUMETER (#Em) /B

ZEMM TR M/ (BD)

(Increase)/decrease in operating receivables

Increase/(decrease) in operating payables

(3,974,772,965)

7,241,007,562

(5,229,562,460)

6,441,386,395

SEERHFENAERESFN

Net cash flows from operating activities

3,217,606,433

1,361,688,674

2, NERMEFENWATHER:

RNEMFERRE

B AENEMRE

. REENWEERKE

B REENMHENRE

2. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand at end of year

Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year
Add: Cash equivalents at end of year

Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year

18,650,958

15,018,187

6,269,722,484

7,223,472,940

15,018,187

14,334,388

7,223,472,940

6,122,253,299

ReRREENWE (R ) / EME

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (950,117,685)

1,101,903,440

37.MERMEEMNY (37) Cash and cash equivalent

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
ne Cash 18,650,958 15,018,187
MEEMN: Cash equivalents:
FEHRE=NAAK With original maturity less than three months
—TE i [E) Ml FRIR -Due from banks 1,5635,614,329 3,862,723,727
-FHESE -Placements with banks and other financial institutions 1,348,663,778 847,469,410
-INBREERE -Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,835,000,000 1,366,530,000
TFH R SRR 1T E At TR Other deposits with the central bank 1,550,444,377 1,146,749,803
it Sub-total 6,269,722,484 7,223,472,940
&it Income tax expenses 6,288,373,442 7,238,491,127
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NN B BIBEAR S AT R B PR M B R U R AN B S (E UK R T
o BRI EHBMHRKERITHEL . T20145F12831H
RATTESMAIBR 1M B M RhIT R A AR HAAX 5 114,00043, F7AUIN4E
ABTHT, MEEEHREE N1 ~3F; F2014FE12831HETT
FEIMO R I {E AN 5 184,0004F, T 174X A9 AR SR I {E AN 586,00047%,
Fl&ERHABRSCE A4 ~ 55,

39. & Fh T - & Rl £ fE A MR
FRURE . RS E DATHEMMNARNESRA D HTMT

(38) Share-based compensation plans

Share-based compensation plans of the Bank comprise the
Restricted Share Plan and the Share Appreciation Rights Plan.
All shares involved are the shares of UOB. As at 31 December
2014, the number of outstanding grants of Restricted Shares
was 114,000, with an exercise price of zero Singapore dollar
and the remaining contractual period of 1~3 years. As at 31
December 2014, the number of outstanding grants of Share
Appreciation Rights was 184,000, of which 86,000 rights were
exercisable and the remaining contractual period was 4~5 years.

(39) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets that are set off or subject to master netting
arrangements or similar agreements are as follows:

KFUREH & T
Amounts not set off
EMANESRATBH FRURHNEM SHRRPIITHEE £RTE KRAMNALSEER T
Gross amounts of Amounts offset in the ~ Amounts presented in Financial Cash collateral
. ) . . ) Net amounts
recognised financial assets balance sheet the balance sheet instruments received

31-12-2014

ST A perlvanve financial 55,350,999
instruments

31-12-2013

. _ Derivative financial

TEEmI R 96,713,268

instruments

- 55,350,999 - - 55,350,999

- 96,713,268 - - 96,713,268

F LU, BHETE BATHRMUDLL RN SRABEA TN
T

Financial liabilities that are set off or subject to master netting
arrangements or similar agreements are as follows:

KFUKHH &8
Amounts not set off
EWINNERE~ B FRURHNEM SHRRPIITHEE £MTE WANAERKER R
Gross amounts of Amounts offset in the ~ Amounts presented in Financial Cash collateral
. . . . ) Net amounts
recognised financial assets balance sheet the balance sheet instruments received
31-12-2014
fkepmra Dorvative financial 102,703,268 - 102,703,268 - 2,692,360 100,010,908
instruments
31-12-2013
fremrg Donvative financial 282,396,449 - 282,396,449 - - 282,396,449
instruments
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7~ SEMRE

RNEREATAREN . EEERRABREEERE T IERT
YEHE. FERTLESHH. AR ERAEEVSHHRE
fb b 55 B AR B B 4 MR E DR FMREDEARRALF D
B, REARMNT RS S, A FEERESEHNRARREIHBE
MEEELRERHEERR. ML,

AASRED TRV ST
ARRIT AL 55358

lm) & K IR AR
ERRFEFERRS .

RomAi. FRRS. ALEE. INCE

ZERITUSEHED
EPAZTFREEEDAER.
SILHRFRS o

FRHRS . |ITRRS. PAEMR

MR ERMERTEEN S5
BRTRTETHHT SRSV SHERNRUIFERS. EERZ5.
G5 TRRE, MRINCERRERES M. NRTEFRNZS.

H At llr 55 K2 5k 53 BT B 535D
ERREEEFAR EREAN DR AREFEDENA™. Nk,
X o

WK

AT THFNEND BN GEREAERERE, KASEEESEHHER
HEFEAEBE~. Ak, WA, BARKLERR, XEEFEEHRET
BT

DEWAFTEEFARTENMNZMERA . BLAS. TEA
FRMEMKAR. 2BARER[EABRTEIBNENLSRAER, &
BEIGER. FARE. EREAHRF,

DEEEMRBIEE N ERBN ( BIEXINZZ BN R ERE]
MZZEN) , BRSO BEAENERERA (BFABT X2
RFERENTIRMMESE ) | REZIZRUEDI O EREFBUARE
FORMEIRK . NP Z NS E MR RS H xS MR 5
KitE.

6. Segment information

The Bank is organised into four different operating segments,
namely wholesale banking, retail banking, global markets and
investment management, and others and unallocated based
on internal organisational structure, management requirement
and internal reporting system. Every segment provides different
products and services. Management periodically reviews the
financial information of the segments to determine resource
allocation and performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:

Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products and services
such as corporate loans, trade financing, deposit-taking
activities, fund management, foreign exchange service, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and services
such as retail loans, deposit-taking activities, bank cards, wealth
management and remittance service, etc.

Global Markets and Investment Management (GMIM)

The GMIM segment is responsible for conducting interbank
placements, repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
and bond investments in the inter-bank market, and dealing
in foreign exchange, interest rate and precious metal related
derivative, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income and to
expenses that are not directly attributable or cannot be allocated
on a reasonable basis to any of the above segments.

In order to assess the performance of the segments and
allocate resources, management will periodically review the
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and operating results of the
segments, and such information is prepared on the following
basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible
assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets which are
attributable to the segments, while segment liabilities mainly
include deposits, borrowings and other payables which are
attributable to the segments.

Segment operating results refer to income generated by
each segment (including external and inter-segment income),
deducted by direct cost (including depreciation and amortisation
pertaining to the assets allocated to the segments), indirect
cost allocated based on occupation of resources and asset
impairment losses. Transactions between segments are priced at
similar terms as external transactions.
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1.8k 5. H-RAEH

(1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2014
MARITIESE FERTLS k&R S Hittlr &R ait
BAEEW S KOETE
Wholesale Banking Retail Banking GMIM Others and Total
unallocated

—. B 1. Operating income 764,976,770 96,822,312 (26,486,705) 141,017,984 976,330,361

FlE SN Net interest income 543,276,438 73,422,670 (27,054,312) 142,586,428 732,231,224

Her: XtohFIE &N Of which: External interest income 265,381,334 195,486,775 271,231,794 131,321 732,231,224

S EBIEF 25N Internal interest income 277,895,104  (122,064,106) (298,286,106) 142,455,108 -

FHEHRRASHEBN Net fee and commission income 105,751,707 14,955,684 (16,237,735) (1,624,839) 102,844,817

HAth&gN Other net income 115,948,625 8,443,958 16,805,342 56,395 141,254,320

=, Bl 2. Operating expenses (314,793,180)  (252,767,305) (57,262,183) (218,860,610) (843,683,278)

Heh: AFERBEES Of which: Impairment losses (7,442,968) (4,582,412) 2,769,059 (50,940,372) (60,196,693)

=, AE MK 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) (7,004) (18) 15,000 10,209,691 10,217,669

. BEETFE 4. Profit before tax 450,176,586  (155,945,011) (83,733,888)  (67,632,935) 142,864,752

. WIESHEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 1,556,859 3,138,749 1,249,063 34,566,582 40,511,253

N BAEZH 6. Capital expenditure 3,260,046 2,441,745 218,970 39,600,511 45,521,272

31-12-2014

t. BEREM 7. Total assets 23,256,469,241 4,353,495,034 20,661,877,205 751,497,960 49,023,339,440

I\, BBEE 8. Total liabilities 26,630,826,534 3,111,473,161 14,723,747,397 508,244,478 44,974,291,570
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2013

HMARITLE BERTLE MR ERLS Hlk &K &it
BEEELSE KA
Wholesale Banking Retail Banking GMIM Others and Total
unallocated

—. BN 1. Operating income 534,248,896 131,156,230 115,208,850 96,215,139 876,829,115

EIE=E DN Net interest income 378,907,679 76,102,396 242,609,150 110,592,298 808,211,523

Her: JtohFI RSN Of which: External interest income 226,022,940 182,173,716 383,657,167 16,357,700 808,211,523

Sy ERIEF) BN Internal interest income 152,884,739 (106,071,320)  (141,048,017) 94,234,508 -

FERRASFEN Net fee and commission income 99,008,595 19,809,266 (6,583,470) (1,570,227) 110,659,164

HA N Other net income 56,337,622 35,244,568  (120,816,830)  (12,806,932)  (42,041,572)

=, BHH 2. Operating expenses (298,128,920)  (226,267,012) (54,877,080) (139,501,139) (718,774,151

He: AFEREESE Of which: Impairment losses (43,928,430)  (2,423,784) 2,100,063  (14,512,324)  (58,755,475)

=, BEASME T 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) - (63,873) - 9,992,410 9,928,537

m., BETRE 4. Profit before tax 236,119,976  (95,174,655) 60,331,770  (33,293,590) 167,983,501

. IFIHSHHESER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 1,516,318 2,601,156 1,122,219 29,131,845 34,371,538

N, BAREZH 6. Capital expenditure 1,212,340 5,251,238 2,594,938 34,223,611 43,282,127

31-12-2013

+. BFERE 7. Total assets 17,332,461,009 3,303,025,869 20,985,258,369 351,667,070 41,972,412,317

I\, ERE 8. Total liabilities 24,599,859,059 4,504,631,313 8,790,275,203 204,522,258 38,099,287,833
2HMER (2) Other information

(1) HEER (1) External operating income by geography

XHNE W N RIZRE AR D RO EEANNERFIX, K
NEEARMX IR E RBUSHINE LIANE ST

External operating income is distributed to respective countries
and regions by their locations. The external operating income
which is divided by different geography locations is shown as

follows:
TFSNE YN
External operating income
2014 2013
BR Domestic 842,216,913 703,837,491
=56 Overseas 134,113,448 172,991,624
ait Total 976,330,361 876,829,115

THRENRER, AR EEPERIMITERIA.

(2) ZEZFAER
AABDRBFERTARKEFANFHERAIART.1812T
(2013FE. ARM1.2{Z7T) , SERTERFEBANE10% (2013
FE: 12%),

The Bank does not have any non-current assets held outside
Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Information for major customers

Interest income of the Bank amounting to RMB 118 million comes
from top 10 largest loan customers (2013: RMB 120 million),
which contributed 10 per cent of the total interest income for the
year (2013: 12 per cent).
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t. RiERHFHE
1. M H&RIE

7. Commitments and contingent liabilities

(1) Commitments

BT R Capital commitments

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
EHEEREND Approved but not contracted 7,166,987 48,000
BEEAEREM Contracted but not provided for 1,642,023,945 1,644,902,060
&it Total 1,649,190,932 1,644,950,060
LEMBRERE Operating lease commitments

AASERFEBEASEEATET T FEMRENATRELENER
AR, TERAFAHEFA, AAIAHUTHEFTHAFNREEAS

The Bank leases certain premises under operating lease
arrangements. The total future minimum payments in respect of

H: non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date are
as follows:
31-12-2014 31-12-2013

—ENR (&—F) Within 1 year 110,131,110 129,968,976
—FUEZFEUR (EZF) 1to 2 years 34,459,144 55,491,339
TERE=ENR (B=F) 2 to 3 years 9,063,878 24,296,546
=ZEE After 3 years 4,230,514 11,420,102
it Total 157,884,646 221,176,963
258 %iE (2) Credit commitments

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
WEERER: Financial guarantee contracts:
RITERRICE Bank’s acceptance 373,945,602 195,521,829
1R R I Letter of guarantee 67,505,666 142,535,971
FREBERIE Standby letter of credit 2,189,621,700 1,516,058,972
FF H RV EA{E A Letter of credit, at sight 7,768,041 57,255,692
Fr Iz (E AIE Letter of credit, usance 2,821,677,143 5,244,656,650
I\ Sub-total 5,460,518,152 7,156,029,114
ASATHE B B R i Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:
FREIBEIEUR Less than one year - 5,130,195
FRHAAIEIA L More than one year 224,451,550 110,695,078
it Sub-total 224,451,550 115,825,273
&it Total 5,684,969,702 7,271,854,387

R AR S TR AL & 51

Weighted credit risk of credit commitments

666,627,919

342,124,104
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MEERERAFERMLER, — EEARRESZIAALZITNEEE
ERFIETAEXSH, RIOTTETERTIE.

I+ it

RHORERIEA N SEH MERK AT FRHAZ B RRAKIE.
RRABE—MBINA AR L LR, TRAEZHIERET, 8E
FAENRFKE S EPHA—ERRRROTHI LR

I

Financial guarantee contracts, with a guarantee nature of
guarantee, require the Bank to be obliged to fulfil the customers’
responsibility as guarantor in case customers fail to repay the
contracted amount or fail to fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the Bank
to its customers to grant a certain amount of loans in the future.
Loan commitments are normally attached with an effective date
or termination clause, and it is possible that the Bank may not
need to fulfil such commitment on the maturity date. Hence, the
amount of the loan commitments does not necessarily represent
the future expected cash outflow.

3. BN (3) Entrusted Business

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
EREAE Entrusted deposits 151,392,826 201,241,563
ESenCEN Entrusted loans 151,392,826 201,241,563
EREMHE Entrusted fund 554,572,562 492,870,285
FREWE~ Entrusted asset 554,572,562 492,870,285

ZRASRECREFTTALINNRI, XATRFREEENE=
TEBRRZA. BRBERNERENERESTEAKIE,

ZREM U FRIEANTDZERERAEEAENRATIIGK, ™
BRAXMARSHTRAMBEE, RARIAARASR AR,
RIBAEF AL AR E R T P AR EAL S,

4. HfE
EEEERN, T014EE, AATRKEL. 2 EHRENENR
HREN, FEEMSE R,

N\, BEXER

ARBRARBEBHEARDNEE Y SNER NN T RERD
%, FANTHRANEETAEELRNE R, ANFIAAEENE
TR T HERELYRMNERZIN, EXMREFEBREEENALT
BEMERFNARAMN . WFEFHER LMK HEHE,
RANTERIRRRE ARG,

Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment
programme that is carried out according to the agreed investing
plan with the customers. The investment principal is paid by the
customers, and is managed by the Bank. The Bank would receive
the investment profit on behalf of the customers and pay the profit
to the customers based on the agreed conditions.

(4) Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2014, the management is of the view there

was no other contingent liabilities except for those that have been
disclosed in Note 7.2.

8. Capital management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method to
mitigate the inherent risk in the business operation and complied
with the requirements of regulatory authorities on capital
management. The Bank also targets to maintain sufficient capital
adequacy ratio for operations and optimising shareholders’
value. The Bank may adjust its capital structure actively to adapt
with the change of economic environment and related risk
characteristics.
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ARERR (HURTENEEMNE (K17) ) W¥lE, #THRLR
RRERRBEIEFRETEGREEANR. RESERFIRITZ
=R ARARTREERBRETE%, —RAATERREMT6%, HAE
REEARBRET8%,

RABMEHATHAARMB#ITEE. RO —RARBREIKE
K, REAPRUFTAEBD . RGBS TIHTARD . BRAR, —
BN EEMRDEMNE; AABLTHEM—BRELR; —RAXTEE
B R AR K A

ANTIRE (FUWRTEAEEDZE (K17) ) e, TENER
FERERERANT.

The Bank calculates and discloses capital adequacy ratios
according to “Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial
Banks (Provisional)”. CBRC requires that a commercial bank’s
core tier-one capital adequacy ratio, tier-one capital adequacy
ratio and capital adequacy ratio should not be lower than five per
cent, six per cent, and eight per cent respectively.

The Finance Department is responsible for managing the capital
of the Bank. Core tier-one capital includes paid-up capital,
qualified capital reserve, qualified other comprehensive income,
surplus reserves, general reserves and retained earnings. The
Bank has no other tier-one capital. Tier-two capital mainly
includes surplus provision for loan impairment.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank in
accordance with “Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial
Banks (Provisional)” are as follows:

31-12-2014

31-12-2013

HID—RER Core tier-one capital
N Paid-up capital
BARATRAIHNG S Qualified capital reserve
Htbm S WIS Qualified other comprehensive income
BHRNR Surplus reserves
— AR XURE General reserves
FAEFTE Retained earnings
b — BB ARMBRTE Core tier-one capital deductions
H & Other intangible assets
D — R AR EE Net core tier-one capital
—RHRR G Net tier-one capital-total
ZHER Tier-two capital
BRI EES Surplus provision for loan impairment
BAXSH Net capital
U AL & 7= Risk-weighted assets

He: 5 AXK IR~ Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets

T35 KBS AL 7= Market risk-weighted assets
HRAE XU AL B 7= Operational risk-weighted assets
ZL—BBERTRE Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio
—RBRETRE Tier-one capital adequacy ratio
BETRE Capital adequacy ratio

4,049,047,870

3,000,000,000

7,883,799

9,688,766

74,072,053

564,261,213

393,142,039

64,000,746

64,000,746

3,985,047,124

3,985,047,124

237,306,498

237,306,498

4,222,353,622

27,119,703,055

24,180,208,244

1,242,719,873

1,696,774,938

14.7%

14.7%

15.6%

3,873,124,484

3,000,000,000

(26,242,239)

60,861,195

492,879,631

345,625,897

60,549,623

60,549,623

3,812,574,861

3,812,574,861

232,500,996

232,500,996

4,045,075,857

22,801,961,676

19,637,642,533

1,681,002,440

1,483,316,703

16.7%

16.7%

17.7%
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RABNAARTRERAREIER UL P ES AR R 09EEW 5
WFAEMATIHEN. AEE, AATETTHEEBINEHER
B3R,

B3, AFRETERESMHL (FLRTIFRERNE) (8
B242011EE3S ) HEFHBATFRES. HI2014512531
B, AASMIAFEX7.1%, FAREABKEAER, BXEaM
T

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of the
Bank are calculated based on the statutory financial statements
prepared under the Chinese Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises. During the period, the Bank has complied with the
capital requirements imposed by the regulator.

In addition, the Bank calculates and discloses leverage ratio
according to “Regulations Governing Leverage Ratio of
Commercial Banks” (CBRC Ordinance [2011] No. 3). As at 31
December 2014, the Bank’s leverage ratio was 7.1 per cent
which was higher than the minimum regulatory requirement of
four per cent. The relevant information is as follows:

31-12-2014

b —RHEAR Core tier-one capital

B Bb—REBEANBIE Less: Core tier-one capital deductions

B —RAR S

Net core tier-one capital

BERRNEF=RE Adjusted on balance sheet items

AR ERITIE KT Adjusted off balance sheet items
AEERNIMNEF=RE Adjusted on and off balance sheet items in total
HFFE Leverage ratio

4,049,047,870

(64,000,746)

3,985,047,124

49,445,163,174

15,339,267,790

64,784,430,964

7.1%

h. ERRKEEE
1.5 AR S

1T1ERKREEE

ERREEHESASIZHZNFEANNE, TEEFTOERARRZ
S FAEZERLBIMINETHEXSBETEN . AATNE
AN EEKB TEAMERMER, RIMIBENEARNKREERET
FHERIE. STIBRRIMATRAE

ERRENETREE. S—EHENTAERTHERNZEEHMN,
FATHRNBEVE FRETVREFRUNEFHFTEERETEY
MENEREIR—LFEUNEMH. FRNENETREERBRT R
WENE—RE T s IR A B SRR,

AAB)RMNRERREHE . RS EMREHNERER LRI
B ENSE T ERNRE . AASEHNEFAHNEERLHT
BE, SRRREBHR TN ERRTENEFREEES,

9. Financial risk management

(1) Credit risk

(1.1) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations as and when they
fall due. The Bank’s credit risk exposure mainly arises from loans
and advances to customers. Credit risk of off balance sheet
items mainly arises from the letters of credit/guarantees issued
as well as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby
there is a concentration of customers in the same business
activities, geographical location, or industry sector with similar
economic characteristics such that their repayment ability would
be affected by the same economic fluctuations. Credit risk
concentration reflects the sensitivity of the Bank’s performance
to such customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures which effectively mitigate and control credit risk.
The procedures cover credit evaluation, credit approval, credit
monitoring as well as reporting. The Bank reviews the borrowers’
business operations periodically, analyses the quality of credit
portfolio and ensures adequacy of loan loss provisions.
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Tt S5 48R B BE K 7 4 R MBS 7 SRR E 5 SRk AR SR Y KB AR L
Hit, ZEZHNRE. REEENRRUMBRERERTES X
AL EAEE,

1.2 AE BB RY R H 5 B R & XS R KRR O
THRENERE, FEERETERMEAMERBRIERNTRAER
REGH A FEIERT

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments
is similar with that from loans and advances to customers.
Hence, the Bank adopts the same policies and procedures for
managing credit contingencies which cover application, follow-
up monitoring and collateral requirements, etc.

(1.2) Maximum credit risk exposure without consideration of
any collateral and credit risk mitigation

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure

of the Bank without taking into consideration of collateral and

credit risk mitigation is set out below:

31-12-2014

31-12-2013

TR R R ERITRRIN Balances with the central bank

TFH ) Al TR Due from banks

FHEE Placements with banks and other financial institutions
%@%ﬁﬁi+i§3gmﬂji+A Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
LR BN SRR

TSR~ Derivative financial assets

FINBEERE Reverse repurchase financial assets
KRR Loans and advances to customers

A HESRE™ Available-for-sale financial assets

Hdgr= Other assets

&it Total

ERAEEARKEMO (MEE, 2)  Credit commitments (Note 7.2)

RAERARKRO

Maximum credit risk exposure

6,347,351,534

1,534,461,620

3,783,406,492

19,446,061

799,384,217

1,835,000,000

24,871,192,872

8,803,257,991

327,855,426

6,044,436,374

3,859,977,732

2,348,429,530

971,568,210

1,162,547,669

4,322,810,000

18,853,289,353

3,455,446,675

244,613,485

48,321,356,213

5,684,969,702

41,263,119,028

7,271,854,387

54,006,325,915

48,5634,973,415

1.3 X ERE

MEZSHFERTFE—FTUHHBX, SHRAESHLELFENE, HiE
AR BESHENIES. N, RETLMXHZFERESE LM
e s, RIEAR AT X 6915 BRBE IRA4E R,

ERBEFBARRNFFRERREMSERER KA KRN
BROTUEFEFE, BSENIN. 8

1.4 3HRY
AABRER SN FHE BRI R EFRENIERY S TR KR,
KRABIIHEZIBRME L T HXMNIER, BFETIERYITEAEET
PATAIE R,
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(1.3) Risk concentration

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar economic
characteristics would tend to pose higher credit risk to the Bank.
On the other hand, the level of credit risk may be varied from
each industry or geographical location in view of their unique
economic development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/guarantees to
domestic customers. Analysis on industry sector concentration
for the Bank’s loans and advances can be found at Note 5. 8.

(1.4) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would depend
on the credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties as assessed
by the Bank. The Bank has established a guideline on taking
collateral including the frequency of collateral valuation.



IR EEZH AT LR

o TRyl R,
wE;

BRYINEREHR. BTERFR. B~

o WTMARK, ERMARRE=E.

EERERUSAXIBIIENERD AT HNMEFRBERRMLER

The main types of collateral include:

For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals taken
include cash deposits, bank guarantee, properties and
machinery; and

e For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly residential
properties.

BARIRY), HEH#RTRIOEENAEZMHFRERN RN EZEERYEH

nEk,

15EAKRE

AABEMEMA™ ( RINFREEE ) NERRESTAT:

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor the
market value of the collaterals and follow up with the borrowers/
counterparties to top up collaterals in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the loan agreement. The change in market
value of the collateral would also be taken into consideration
when reviewing the adequacy of loan loss provisions.

(1.5) Credit quality
The credit quality of financial assets of the Bank (excluding loan
provisions) is analysed as follows:

31-12-2014 B SR 181 A th S L (B 2B RBE 2RE &it
Neither overdue nor impaired Overdue but not impaired Impaired Total
TR R M R T Due from banks 1,535,614,329 - - 1,535,614,329
FHAS Placements with banks and other 3,785,742,970 - - 3,785,742,970
financial institutions
UARMEITEBETE  Financial assets at fair value
AL EIRFRSFAT  through profit or loss 19,446,061 ) . 19,446,061
INBEEEMAET Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,835,000,000 - - 1,835,000,000
MUF R Interest receivable 293,032,941 - - 293,032,941
R Loans and advances to customers 25,077,897,819 27,112,363 132,346,534 25,237,356,716
HHESRE~ Available-for-sale financial assets 8,803,257,991 - - 8,803,257,991
&it Total 41,349,992,111 27,112,363 132,346,534 41,509,451,008
31-12-2013 BE R 181 A B SR B 2R HE R RE ERE &it
Neither overdue nor impaired Overdue but not impaired Impaired Total
TEHR R Al SR Due from banks 3,862,723,727 - - 3,862,723,727
FHAS Placements with banks and other 2,348,429,530 - - 2,348,429,530
financial institutions
UARMEITEBRETS)  Financial assets at fair value
AN LBIRMASAAT=  through profit or loss 971,568,210 - - 971,568,210
INBEEEMA~ Reverse repurchase financial assets 4,322,810,000 - - 4,322,810,000
R F 2 Interest receivable 209,200,271 - - 209,200,271
Vo2 G g€k Loans and advances to customers 19,082,588,681 3,201,668 63,912,644 19,149,702,993
A HESMAT Available-for-sale financial assets 3,455,446,675 - - 3,455,446,675
At Total 34,252,767,094 3,201,668 63,912,644 34,319,881,406
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BRREHBRBENEBERREERER
THRIEFBERA AT TAS MRRERREH L RBEN TR

Loans and advances that are neither overdue nor impaired
The composition of loans that are neither overdue nor impaired
by collateral arrangement as at the balance sheet date is as
follows:

31-12-2014 31-12-2013

BERRR Unsecured loans

FHEBEER Loans secured by guarantees
AR Loans secured by mortgage
R EN Loans secured by pledges
&it Total

2,501,355,074 2,026,011,627

3,872,717,971 3,982,184,783
11,165,428,617 7,942,904,192

7,538,396,157 5,131,488,079

25,077,897,819 19,082,588,681

SIS ERBENZE AR ER
FARAEAHERD, SMBIERAME DR R LRI 54740
T

Loans and advances that are overdue but not impaired
Ageing analysis of loans that are overdue but not impaired as at
the balance sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2014
1T ARR 1Rz A 21NHEIBMA 3MAME &it FrsEIERYARNE
Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months  More than 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals
foznpm e, 0ANS and advances to
e S &N 23,531,401 3,580,962 - - 27,112,363 250,775,600
customers
31-12-2013
1IMNAR 141 AEIANA 24N HEI3MNA 3IMAME &it FHFARERY AR ME
Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months  More than 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals
Loans and advances to
AR BR 3,096,159 105,509 - - 3,201,668 216,866,129

customers

EREN R AR R
mBHBINERRP LR AR R LREDERAFH—RAS R R
EfERERE, BIZEAN BRIt R RS RERF M BIZFMEED
i, MR R R BN D RERE K, KEHRERT
B R TR R RE %

FHREAGRE, A2 AFEHNERERERKOBRONLAANE
SI7RIAR

Impaired loans and advances

Where there are objective evidences that a single or multiple
negative events have occurred after the initial recognition of the
loans and the impact from the events on the expected future
cash flows can be estimated reliably, the relevant loans should
be recognised as impaired loans. These loans are classified as
“Substandard”, “Doubtful” or “Loss”.

As at the balance sheet date, the fair value of collateral of
impaired loans held by the Bank were as follows:

A FHIE R Y

The collateral value of impaired loans

31-12-2014 31-12-2013

145,261,173 67,878,000

ERIEY A RME D AR ERE B AL BEZL R MNHHIK
X R FASMBI AN ER TR EM EHE.
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The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determined from
the latest external valuation with necessary adjustment made
after considering the Bank’s own experience in collateral disposal
as well as the current market conditions.



ZEANRHTRRER
RATATRATERBEBEREEEEZFAXR, RITRREA
BSK, ISEFEFFESREN.

TH& MR BEEANIMEREERIKENES AT

Restructured loans and advances

The Bank has formulated a set of loan restructuring policies to
renegotiate the contractual terms with customers in order to
maximise the recovery of impaired loans as well as to manage
customer relationships.

The carrying amount of restructured loans and advances is as
follows:

31-12-2014 31-12-2013
ZEHNE MR RERK Restructured loans and advances
-2iRE - Impaired - 8,359,685
EHEEHR Bond investments

THRENHEERRD, AREEFRANERREREINPITRIIG
FREEREGTFR, HAAA-IE.

2. FshtERBE
AASNRHMNEEERAETENNRERERTHTN, B4
HASAURERASHNRTERSHANSIMER. BHRE. KGR
. AFMRERASATHEERMNRANMENCEEEKRE, FERH
BARNE AT NREMFREN NG BERL, FRERSRAEE
MAFRARDEEFASRERE, THSE” NEMKEEEAIRT i
En R AR RREE R, HER~nHEEREMNREESR
RAETIRERIER

AAB)REAHMNEEENTTARRRE T RAMAELIT. EhE
B, EEEENERNATINEMAT. BAXSMNRNMEET
BT EHERMUASROITEI ERBEER IR MR SR
EIER, RERAMERN, ®RiTT —RIFEARASKRNE BERED
MENIERER, BHEEAXIERRAMRTER, MigfrERE
ANRER, FARNFRARBARNFRETERSET,

As at the balance sheet date, the credit rating of the Bank’s bond
investments were all AA- or above according to the external
rating agency Standard & Poors’.

(2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the Asset Liability
Committee and Executive Committee. The Asset Liability Committee
formulates key strategies on liquidity risk management and reviews
the Bank’s asset liability structure and liquidity risk profile on a
monthly basis. Day-to-day management of the Bank’s liquidity is
undertaken by Global Markets and Investment Management while
the Market and Balance Sheet Risk Management department
independently monitors and reports liquidity risk exposures
against control limits to the Asset Liability Committee and the Risk
Management Committee.

The Bank’s liquidity risk management covers the whole process
of strategy development and planning, risk assessment &
measurement, monitoring and review as well as contingency
planning. The Bank measures and manages liquidity risk
mainly by analysing contractual cash flows of maturing assets
and liabilities. The Bank also employs liquidity early warning
indicators, including indicators imposed by regulators, and
controls limits to monitor liquidity risk on a daily basis. Liquidity
early warning indicators are further classified to signal different
level of contingency situations for appropriate actions.
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B E RSB e R AT R TR E RIS ERE, RRREIE
AAEZ LR T ENTER MR B0,

AR ARG EER LS RETHTHNRMA, FRFTUHHEXTS
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B, 1%/~ Al &t T MU 32 RALE T AFHR,
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(3) Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from foreign exchange
rate and interest rate-related products arising from trading as
well as non-trading businesses. The objective of market risk
management is to minimise the negative impact of volatility of
financial instruments on the Bank’s earnings and equity.

The Risk Management division monitors the Bank’s market risk
exposure and formulates market risk policies for approval by the
Asset Liability Committee and the Executive Committee. Risk
profile reports are submitted to the Asset Liability Committee and
Risk Management Committee on a regular basis.

The Bank measures and manages its market risk in accordance
with a framework of policies and practices which include
sensitivity analysis, Value-at-Risk measure, stress testing etc.
In addition, the market risk associated with any new product/
business is required to be identified and addressed prior to
launch.

(8.1) Currency risk

The Bank’s currency risk arises mainly from currency mismatches
of assets and liabilities as well as foreign exchange trading
business whereby the open positions are subject to exchange
rate fluctuations.



F20145FE12831H, KATHNEFEXREFRORETMIIRAT.

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

31-12-2014
EPH ARM Hit &it

USD (RMB RMB Others (RMB Total (RMB

equivalent) equivalent) equivalent)
&= Assets:
Zgﬁ;gmq:* Cash and deposits with the central bank 119,210,615 6,239,882,381 6,909,496 6,366,002,492
ERELRFHES fﬁ’::nfcric’arﬂ::tiliﬁizme"t with banks and other 1,025,714,349 4,200,571,506 91,582,257 5,317,868,112
NEAS HE g IR f ; ; 3
tiiigg;;ié&;i zlrr}(a)r;zlal assets at fair value through profit _ 19,446,061 ) 19,446,061
TEEmA= Derivative financial assets 173,858,565 624,072,315 1,453,337 799,384,217
INBREERES Reverse repurchase financial assets - 1,835,000,000 - 1,835,000,000
VoA G €k Loans and advances to customers 6,281,930,179 17,911,127,215 678,135,478 24,871,192,872
AHHEESmMAR~ Available-for-sale financial assets - 8,803,257,991 - 8,803,257,991
Hith# = Other assets 50,201,391 957,512,236 3,474,068 1,011,187,695
#AFEET Total assets 7,650,915,099 40,590,869,705 781,554,636 49,023,339,440
fufk: Liabilities:
giﬁﬁﬁm}i)\ 'f?:aentcc:j'::sﬁ'tifz?:”t from banks and other 9,532,372,051 4,180,083,716 434,038,231 14,147,393,998
TESmRaE Derivative financial liabilities 481,910,951 273,546,133 81,577,560 837,034,644
W Customer deposits 1,287,016,558 27,066,681,017 1,031,291,968 29,384,989,543
Hfth a5 Other liabilities (11,325,812) 551,499,207 64,699,990 604,873,385
fEAIt Total financial liabilities 11,289,973,748 32,072,710,073 1,611,607,749 44,974,291,570
B fEg kT Net position (3,639,058,649) 8,518,159,632 (830,053,113) 4,049,047,870
TESBIAEZNEH mz:irzrrf;:goums of derivative financial 107,470,209,850  102,778,878,634 2,058,675,680  212,307,854,164
BRI Commitments 1,061,654,984 4,439,727,356 183,587,362 5,684,969,702
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F20135F12831H, KA THNEXREF=RORETMIIRAT .

As at 31 December 2013, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

31-12-2013
EJ AR Hith &it
USD (RMB RMB Others (RMB Total (RMB
equivalent) equivalent) equivalent)
R Assets:
:gﬁggm** Cash and deposits with the central bank 65,192,932 5,991,704,217 2,557,412 6,059,454,561
ggﬁ]ﬂk&ﬁ&i 'f?::nfcrg:‘i::tili';izment with banks and other 2,078,291,876 4,062,552,703 67,562,683 6,208,407,262
NEAS =2 g HIrE ¢ ; ; 3
ﬁ;\\f;‘,gggiiégi Elrr}zzzlal assets at fair value through profit } 971,568,210 . 971,568,210
FTEERE Derivative financial assets 235,558,574 908,410,360 18,578,735 1,162,547,669
INBRELRES Reverse Repurchase financial assets - 4,322,810,000 - 4,322,810,000
R ER A Loans and advances to customers 3,328,333,692 14,919,999,313 604,956,348 18,853,289,353
AHEHES T Available-for-sale financial assets - 3,455,446,675 - 3,455,446,675
Hith %= Other assets 15,406,659 918,158,489 5,323,439 938,888,587
HEG Total assets 5,722,783,733 35,550,649,967 698,978,617 41,972,412,317
fufk: Liabilities:
giﬁmmﬁ)\ E’::n:jrl‘:sﬁltif;?:"t from banks and other 6,496,905,833 170,012,303 474,242,799 7,141,160,935
TSR R Derivative financial liabilities 510,519,943 708,181,142 51,606,183 1,270,307,268
il g Customer deposits 1,191,063,275 27,201,457,509 667,439,769 29,059,960,553
Hitifatx Other liabilities 4,836,915 603,995,361 19,026,801 627,859,077
AT Total financial liabilities 8,203,325,966 28,683,646,315 1,212,315,552 38,099,287,833
el Net position (2,480,542,233) 6,867,003,652 (513,336,935) 3,873,124,484
FTESMTRAEYER :ZEZ':;;ZOUMS of derivative financial 75,567,609,301 91,240,114,357 2,534,362,808  169,332,086,466
BB RE Commitments 1,123,544,701 5,907,147,965 241,161,721 7,271,854,387

UTEEHEMBEERTHNERLT, IMMNERADCERTELENE

ERFXH AR RN E AR,

Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a change in
foreign exchange rates on the “Profit Before Tax” and “Equity” of
the Bank is as follows:

31-12-2014 31-12-2013

TETH Change in foreign exchange rate 3o Bt BRI 200 SR ET R 220
Impact on profit before tax Impact on profit before tax

WA HNZET% -1% change against RMB 44,691,118 29,938,792
WA HFAET1% +1% change against RMB (44,691,118) (29,938,792)

M EBREDMTET RS- MAGRFHSHNICENELES, HIHET
LHMEAEAEN, SIMHTARTCERNEETRENTBFEL
AT,
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The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static currency risk structure. It shows
the impact of a change in other currency rates against RMB on
the Bank’s “Profit Before Tax” and “Equity”, given other variables
remain constant.



BXRAPMETUATRIE:

(1) BMCEPREREZTTHNARDTREBLREE (iEr)
TR Y IHE K Eh1%3E B AT AR ;

(2) EHMLCREFEEE DN ARTCRENERRS;
(3) LR KB O A& H ™ ERFIMNIE;

HTET ERRE, TEREUSBARNSICH SRS HIAIKFRERL
RS HBBRMIMTHERRE,

3.2 FRXBE
MRS BIE~ 4 TRTAS . MEMERIILTHEHEETRE (5E
EFEMET ) HEHEN ( FNFEME ) B ERRARE

RAB) R RN AN EIRMEE, FHEENBREEERE,
EHE A~ NRERAZNNE EEZRASRE NN

THREF nHENREEERRROTAS AEHNEERENHEEI
BEETEMUR RN EETASRAXEREMNRORE. B85
HEMBIARE . BRIVERSREAWKAIRSE, KIHEFRK
X BB DU TR MK O

The analysis is based on below assumptions:

(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses caused
by the one per cent change of the closing rate (mid rate) of
the different foreign currencies against RMB as at the balance
sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against RMB
in the same direction simultaneously;

(8) Off-balance sheet items are excluded;

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of exchange
rate fluctuation on the Bank’s earnings may differ from above
sensitivity analysis.

(3.2) Interest rate risk

The Bank’s interest rate risk arises mainly from maturity
mismatches (for fixed rate) or re-pricing mismatches (for floating
rate) of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet items.

The Risk Management Division monitors interest rate risk
exposure, formulates related policies and procedures and
provides regular reports on interest rate risk profiles to the Asset
Liability Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Market and Asset Liability Risk Management is responsible for
analysing the mismatch of assets/liabilities re-pricing, assessing
the potential impact of interest rate change on profit and
monitoring interest rate risk exposure by formulating a structured
interest rate risk management toolkit, including the interest rate
re-pricing report, static net interest income report, basis point PV
report and stress testing duration report.
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F20145F12A318H, ARTNEME~R SR

FEHHAEREREESTOT:

REREENH

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank’s assets/liabilities re-pricing
profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and re-pricing date)
are as follows:

7

NERFHPR
SRATRW

ERELRIFHES

U aEitEBEEE
QAL b

TTESRAT

R GTRINER

A HE SR~

Hith 7=

Assets:

Cash and deposits with the
central bank

Due from and placement with
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial assets

Reverse repurchase financial
assets

Loans and advances to
customers
Available-for-sale financial
assets

Other assets

Total assets

31-12-2014

3MAR MRAEIE 1ZE545 SEME TitE ait
Within 3 months 3 months to 1to5years 5 years above Non- Total

1 year interest bearing
6,228,653,169 - - - 137,349,323  6,366,002,492
4,890,680,808 427,187,304 - - - 5,317,868,112
19,446,061 - - - - 19,446,061
- - - - 799,384,217 799,384,217

1,835,000,000

17,972,664,971

3,079,076,520

5,301,221,381

3,502,613,021

1,5697,306,520

2,221,568,450

1,011,187,695

1,835,000,000

24,871,192,872

8,803,257,991

1,011,187,695

34,025,521,529

9,231,021,706

3,818,874,970

1,947,921,235

49,023,339,440

EMFFH RIFANE &

TEEMARK

AR

Hthfafx

FIEREERO

Liabilities:
Due to and placement from

banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial liabilities

Customer deposits

Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net position

12,837,443,978

12,639,733,918

957,676,540

12,854,764,910

352,273,480

3,890,490,715

837,034,644

604,873,385

14,147,393,998

837,034,644

29,384,989,543

604,873,385

25,477,177,896

13,812,441,450

4,242,764,195

1,441,908,029

44,974,291,570

8,548,343,633

(4,581,419,744)

(423,889,225)

506,013,206

4,049,047,870
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F2013FE12831H, AATNAEFEAGIZREREEMBESEIEE

As at 31 December 2013, the Bank’s assets/liabilities re-pricing

MERBEEMTAOT: profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and re-pricing date)
are as follows:
31-12-2013
31MAR 3MNAEIE 12545 5FE E Fitg &it
Within 3 months 3 months to 1to5years 5 years above Non- Total
1 year interest bearing
& Assets:
4 . Y
R BT HHR Cash and deposits with the 5,983,197,596 - - - 76,256,965 6,059,454,561
SRITHIN central bank
Due from and placement with
HFHELRIFHES banks and other financial 5,133,075,376 875,331,886 200,000,000 - - 6,208,407,262
institutions
MUARMEITEBRETSE  Financial assets at fair value
ITALHAIRIFMNEHAT  through profit or loss 691,938,110 279,630,100 B B B 971,568,210
TEEMAS” Derivative financial assets - - - - 1,162,547,669 1,162,547,669
TNEESRA ::;':e repurchase financial 2,752,660,000 1,570,150,000 . - - 4,322,810,000
. L
D eI oans and advances to 14,497,765,856 3,869,463,041 486,060,456 . - 18,853,289,353
customers
o Available-for-sale financi
AR EE AR a;’:;fs e-for-sale financial 1,438,798,975 966,090,520 1,050,557,180 . - 3,455,446,675
HitiER= Other assets - - - - 938,888,587 938,888,587
#RrEat Total assets 30,497,435,913  7,560,665,547 1,736,617,636 - 2,177,693,221 41,972,412,317
fafk Liabilities:
Due to and placement from
EWERERIFENEE banks and other financial 5,906,842,565 1,234,318,370 - - - 7,141,160,935
institutions
TEE AR Derivative financial liabilities - - - - 1,270,307,268 1,270,307,268
W R Customer deposits 14,378,651,778 10,878,680,541  3,802,628,234 - - 29,059,960,553
Hitytafx Other liabilities - - - - 627,859,077 627,859,077
fEait Total liabilities 20,285,494,343 12,112,998,911  3,802,628,234 - 1,898,166,345 38,099,287,833
FERBERD Net position 10,211,941,570 (4,552,333,364) (2,066,010,598) - 279,526,876 3,873,124,484
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AABFHMNETRZREENE, FEENXTRZRIHAE
B eRA kit RSN RNEENERL,

UTRAHMBEERTNERT, MXRTREAENSGERFXBEF
RIS TR

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities based
on maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing date for floating
rate items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s “Profit Before Tax” and “Equity” is as
follows:

31-12-2014

TETH Change in interest rate

X FL A F i 2 0
Impact on profit before tax

A 28 B9 # M
Impact on equity

FIZEIEA100 N E S + 100 basis points 57,617,683 (62,705,682)

FIZRF D100 ES - 100 basis points (57,617,683) 62,705,682
31-12-2013

TEFH Change in interest rate HERIF AR P& A o)

Impact on profit before tax Impact on equity

FREIN100ME & + 100 basis points

FIZEF D100 E A - 100 basis points

72,283,239 (29,256,868)

(72,283,239) 29,256,868

U ESREMANRT A NARRARSHFIRNEENS, FXHD
FIREE—FRNTERZN, RRA—FARATEFMNAENERE
M AR ERFUHENBBANT W, ETUTRE:

() REE=ANRRAR=ANAEE—FERNEFENSHEIHMNE =R
FrsfkigaR X i hEEHE NI

(2) s R i L REFI R T U T T30
(3) AR AEF LHEMEN;
(4) BeFIR KBGO R EH T~ REERFIMIE .

HTET EiRfRiR, MERIBHSEANSH SR HIAAIKFRERL
RS BB DITHER R

N BAFRMEDTRE TR R R BN R T FRaRE,
BERENREH—EBD LN AR THE ERFRAARANERTT
ENHESHN.
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The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have a static interest rate risk structure. It
reflects the impact of interest rate movements on the Bank’s net
interest income over a one-year period. The key assumptions are
as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than three
months or between three months and one year are assumed
to be re-priced in the middle of the respective time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes; and

(4) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net interest

income from interest rate movement may differ from above

sensitivity analysis.

The impact on equity is estimated from the change in market

value of “Available-for-sale” portfolio caused by a parallel shift of
yield curve arising from interest rate changes.



4.5 0HE

ARINME, RIEMHSEEETEBARENERLSH, HE—TH
ERERE S E R TR GBI NNSE. EXHERZTH
(BIEAEIES X AT ) BEMEHT, TRBERIEARNES
R, AT, A IFHEREAZBILBAERAGHED
o Eitt, HFIZBPAETN TR SRTE, NI TR TES
HbET AR EEARNME, B2, EBRREA M ZNESZE
EAKMESFEBHN, HaMER, WRFXAZFREEN,

TR A Z AR IR T :

() MAARMETEEEEHITALYHRBENSHES / &5tk
( BIFELTESRAS / &Mtk ) NSETHSBZHMTIER
ARNE. HETESBZMHHN, WEASHENNGHEEARN
EHSRILSHARBNBEAAME. AANESTHETE
ZKESE;

(i) T12AAREHSz AR~ N RE THREE, BN
KEIMMES R A NMERE;

(i) VEBRRIZUMERATRKURRZTHHEREE, HARNE
USRHHARTEEE. BRAGHERREZRUERES
RAMENARTER, FHARERNREZEmKEIRED TR
%, NKHERAAMMETNR;

(V) B ERDEAR GMHEREESFHNE, FHERRLEE
EHEHZHEKARREEARBNR S ST AR ANE. BE
EHRZEFRAAANENASRERNIELE, FUEHS5Z
TR SREIR X X TR,

RATHERAMENTTET LUAE AT

(i) WEH: HNRERRIIFREBAENT SRR

(i HE: HRERGERARTHE.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Subject to the
existence of an active market, such as an authorised securities
exchange, the market value is the best reflection of the fair
value of financial instruments. As there is no available market
value for some of the financial assets and liabilities held and
issued by the Bank, the discounted cash flow method or other
valuation methods described below are adopted to determine
the fair value of these assets and liabilities. However, the value
determined by such methods would depend on the amount of
future cash flows, time period assumption and discount rates
used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in estimating
fair values:

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including
derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair value by reference
to the quoted market prices when available. If quoted market
prices are not available, the fair value is estimated using
discounted cash flows or quoted price from the counter
parties. The carrying amounts of these items reflect the fair
value as at the balance sheet date;

(i) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities maturing
within 12 months are assumed to be equal to their carrying
amounts in view of their short maturity;

(i) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate at
the time the loans are extended shall be determined using
prevailing market rates of similar loans. Changes in the credit
quality of loans within the portfolio are not taken into account
in determining the fair values as the impact of credit risk is
recognised separately as impairment provision which shall be
deducted from the carrying amounts and fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or floating
rate depending on the product type. The fair value of demand
deposits and saving deposits without specific maturity date
is determined based on the amount payable on demand. The
fair value of fixed deposits are estimated using discounted
cash flows method with the prevailing deposit rate for the
remaining tenor of the fixed deposit as the discount rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

(i) Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(i) Mark to Model - where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.
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HEFEREISANANEN—PDEAN, BRREFUER, X
ZHMEHITEENHRAANENER M, AQSER/OHEBE
TTEZEBEARNER, fIMIRHEGEREMERGEEIFE, M
BRI EERR.

RNTEN T WEEHFIRBRAANMENESEN . MRRXAER
XfhfE, REPNRENEABLFLALIRIEFNENTIR
o Besh, REBHNE. MASE. RENGERBETEHEET
BEIMESL, HtMGERHNESEEENITEERS,

RASVERAHTARNEREN SR RYDA=NER:

E—B%: AFTIHNIE
RXEERARZABERA S MAGRAERTZRNSHAEEST. ®
AP ERNER” R EEETREREILEEERASDERAAET
HINEE R

FE_EL: HEBASHAEEHENRFINHERA
XMEETRRRIIREREGE, MAANEIESHEEET L
HEWE, XHEAGERSTNAIT. BPENREN—Lhi
SE5ELREATEZNRA . FAANZNERN SR> REE A
LI, SNCEGE, ReBRf/ BRRESRXZNIIES (WK
mIHIFE. MRS SNCEIR. FLEREWR ) , FEE2ANE
B ZNFRANSR” R (MBENEXRENE~R) .

FZEY: HEZSYUTREENRBINKANGERA
RXfEERARZASETHRENEM EAREBZRATUESH. B
BIAA SR EHRNER” REARERXNE XK.

U EERERITETS AR R BRI RZARANERE-BZIHE
AN, A, HTHMNMISERTBRZTERRER, SERE
P EZ A ANERDTERE TN,
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Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value
process that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure correct
fair value representation. In making appropriate valuation
adjustments, the Bank follows the methodologies that consider
factors such as bid-offer spread valuation adjustment and model
valuation adjustment.

The Bank has established internal control procedures over the
valuation process to provide assurance over the appropriateness
of the fair values applied. If fair value is determined by valuation
models, the assumptions and techniques within the models are
independently validated by a specialist group. In addition, price
and parameter inputs, assumptions and valuation adjustments
are subject to verification and review processes. Other valuation
control includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to the
following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the price
represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. Financial instruments included in this
class are bonds with the marked-to-market prices actively made
available and announced by China Central Depository & Clearing
Co. Ltd.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments where
the prices are derived from standard valuation models, and
significant inputs to these models are directly observable. The
valuation techniques include the use of discounted cash flow
analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques
widely used and accepted by market participants. The financial
instruments included in this category are mainly Foreign
Exchange Forward and Foreign Exchange Swaps, Noble Metals
Forward and Swaps, and OTC derivatives (namely money
market deposit and placement, interest rate swap, FX Option,
Rediscounted bills) and financial instruments with fair value
derived from counterparty (for structured products arranged on
back-to-back basis).

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable
inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one significant
input is not observable and reliance is placed on reasonable
assumptions made on market conditions. There is currently no
financial instrument being classified under such category.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide a
consistent basis for the calculation of fair value of the Bank’s
assets and liabilities. However, other institutions may use
different assumptions and methods. Therefore, the fair values
disclosed by different financial institutions may not be entirely
comparable.



TRIIFTURAANETEN SR TRENRAANMERK:

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments measured in fair value:

N RMETTEEFANBNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
R TR GN EERAAUEMNE BEERTUEMNE &it
Active market quotes Significant Significant non- Total
observable inputs observable inputs
(E—B%) (BEZE%) (BE=EB%)
31-12-2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
UARMEIHTEERTS  Financial assets at fair value
WA LHIRFMLAMAT  through profit or loss - 19,446,061 - 19,446,061
AHHESAS Available-for-sale financial assets 5,724,060,211 3,079,197,780 - 8,803,257,991
THEERMEAF Derivative financial assets - 799,384,217 - 799,384,217
EMETEIT Total financial assets 5,724,060,211 3,898,028,058 - 9,622,088,269
TTEEmAaGE Derivative financial liabilities - 837,034,644 837,034,644
=3 NUAS A= . . .
EEUAARMETE Deposits de;lgnated at fair value ) 4,835.014,449 ) 4,835,014,449
HITER through profit or loss
ERaGaIt Total financial liabilities - 5,672,049,093 - 5,672,049,093
NRMETTEERNBRNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
T HR M BEERUEEHANE BEERAREHNE &it
Active market quotes Significant Significant non- Total
observable inputs observable inputs
(B—EB%) (BZE%) (B=E%)
31-12-2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
UARMEITEBRETE  Financial assets at fair value
TN LIRS EAF  through profit or loss 245,552,350 726,015,860 - 971,568,210
AEHESRER Available-for-sale financial assets 3,455,446,675 - - 3,455,446,675
TEESMAES Derivative financial assets - 1,162,547,669 - 1,162,547,669
ERMEFEIT Total financial assets 3,700,999,025 1,888,563,529 - 5,589,562,554
TEEmAaE Derivative financial liabilities - 1,270,307,268 1,270,307,268
N . . ) )
EBEUARNEITE Deposits de§|gnated at fair value ) 2.537,777,002 ) 2.587.777,002
HITERR through profit or loss
SRS Total financial liabilities - 3,808,084,360 - 3,808,084,360

REE, ARIAREZENUAANETENE-BRENE_ERESRA
PRz A AR

EERING, TER, AAFINHMESRE~NERAFNARNE
SHEEAKANMEH TERER.

During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1 and
level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities
which were recorded at fair value.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between the

fair value and the carrying amount of the financial assets and
financial liabilities is not material as at the balance sheet date.
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1. XB G B\ EdnifE
FTAREE, THETMBARSMREKTT:

(1) HARABEINERFZ MR A TT;
(2) AATXBEEARURSHXRRVNRENRR;

(3) AREMRBEEARS SEXRBVINRERRAEF. HEE
HHEMERZ MDA E A ;

(4) RATRINEIVFERE,

10. Related party transactions

(1) Criteria of identifying related parties
Details of the Bank’s major related parties in 2014 are as follows:

(1) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;

(2) Key management personnel of the Bank or the close family
members;

(8) Enterprises under control, jointly control or significant
influence of the key management personnel of the Bank or

the close family members;

(4) Annuity established by the Bank.

2. 86T HATH (2) Parent company of the Bank

B A SR A EMEA PHE LA
Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Shareholding
KERITERAR SRITRERMARS F 0 5,061 B A#HT 100%

United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and financial service Singapore SGD 5,061 Million 100%

3. FHRHASFARNTXBLSMHHE XIS

(8) The related parties which the Bank had transactions
during the period are as follows

BEESYNSEAL 0PN
Companies under the common control of parent company

B NIE-2: 353 A TR FEERRA

Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Legal representative
KERT ( BREL ) FRAHF SRITRERARS Sk HEH SRA I $E 2012 5T HEM

United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd Banking and financial service Kuala Lumpur Malaysia RM 2 Billion Wong Kim Choong
KERT (RE ) ARAR RITR &SRS &=EER Rk 248.571ZT R

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl Banking and financial service

Bangkok Thailand THB 24.86 Billion Peter Foo Moo Tan

ZEHAREAFRMMHLAE

Companies under the significant influence of the parent company

B Al S5 T A ERER EEREA

Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Legal representative
EFRITROBRRE RITREMRS hE EE AR 16.91Z5T EEIE

Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited Banking and financial service Yantai China RMB 1.69 Billion Jiang Xi Yun
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Companies under the significant influence of the Bank’s director and key management

&R Al i BT A I EMEAR EEREA
Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Legal representative
i\ (E17) BERRAR BEERHE hE Ei] %£702,5007 7T AR
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD 25 Million Liam Wee Sin
KEEWVHEFEM=FLBRAF B R HhE XiE ARM7.81Z5T AR
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. Real estate development Tianjin China RMB 780 Million Liam Wee Sin
s o e et F INF
LEBIRATE (L) BRAE ENRRAEE thE L 251555755 S

UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

Consulting and investment management Shanghai China

USD 15.55 Million

Seah Kian Wee

UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. ERATF E£E A% EJT650A T Philip Cheong Shin Keat
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. Holding company New York USA USD 6.5 Million Philip Cheong Shin Keat
N p= ME A

X {5 ) *fsfai et BWRRHEE thE L 25265057 %

9 9 9 Consulting and investment management Shanghai China USD 6.5 Million Wee Ee Chao
Management Co., Ltd

N &N H & E 257 M . - - S
B RAFELARAT e ioce i B £7100757T sxn
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. ) Xiamen China USD 1 Million Goh Bee Leong
pharmaceutical products

rEANESE i NG n&E pi: B} I — —
gzh%jrjf jﬂlﬁjv? chrlzclfjir;r_ijum ?ﬁfﬂ an;koﬁﬁfapi?f fo:zzigﬁifms PE B 3£IL500%5 58 EXE

9 9 perating Chengdu China USD 5 Million Chng Hwee Hong

Amusement Park Limited

entertainment and related services

EHEWHRAF REER Fonig #H242,172,298 HERE (£F)
Haw Par Corporation Limited Investment Holding Singapore SGD 242,172,298 Wee Cho Yaw (Chairman)
BHF=EA; ®|AEE (IEF.
J ) INF] 1308 R e _
I MRBER = &0 F RN KRR EFERIH ). . tE M ART9I00F 5T ]
Kheng Leong (Guangzhou) Real Estate Real estate consulting; Investment Guangzhou China RMB 9 Million Wee Ee Chao
Consulting Co., Ltd. advice (Securities and futures 9
investment consulting excluded)
= " N NS
g‘fﬁf ((Cﬁfjf ) dﬁ?fizlﬁoh:?ent BT & R A %552 40075 7% HER
Cog " 9 P Real estate industry Chengdu China USD 24 Million Magdalene Yong Nyuk Yann
BEEREE, tIEEREA,
LUBSEN (L) BRAF HRAW, RAHRED . I e
UOL Business Consulting (Shanghai) Go Business information consulting; hE LifF ET8ATT hAE
9 9 " Corporate management consulting; Shanghai China USD 80 Thousand Liam Wee Sin

Ltd.

Investment advice; Construction
plan advice

LiEEmENERAR BiiEFE FE b ARM231ZT Lim Beng Teong
Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate industry Shanghai China RMB 2.3 Billion Lim Beng Teong

P4 R T AR ARFF &
X (LiE) FERMEAERAR BARE!., BRRERS HE b #1007 7T Richard Goh Chou Eng
UOBBEF Information Technology Pte Ltd.  IT related technical development, Shanghai China SGD 1 Million Richard Goh Chou Eng

consulting and service
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(4) Main transactions between the Bank and related

parties
31-12-2014 31-12-2013
RE HEEZ S RER aEEZ S
REALLHI REALL B
b2 & £ Gk Loans and advances to customers Balance  Contribution(%) Balance  Contribution(%)
EESBELERAS Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 108,247,865 0.43 49,149,240 0.26
Rz FHEEMTFLER/AT Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. - - 249,875,017 1.30
&it Total 108,247,865 0.43 299,024,257 1.56
31-12-2014 31-12-2013
RER HEXLZS RE HEELZS
REALL 51 REALL B
TER R IR BRI Due from and placement with banks Balance Contribution(%) Balance Contribution(%)
KERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 33,232,545 0.62 43,567,065 0.70
KERIT ( BRAL ) BRAF United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd 683,274 0.01 2,550,970 0.04
EERITRHERAS Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 122,380,000 2.30 121,938,000 1.96
&it Total 156,295,819 2.93 168,056,035 2.70
31-12-2014 31-12-2013
RE HEERZ S RER aEEZ S
REALLBI REALL B
BARFANKT Borrowings from banks Balance  Contribution(%) Balance  Contribution(%)
KRERITHERLA United Overseas Bank Limited 13,278,098,107 93.86 7,141,057,223 100.00
KERIT (RE ) BRAF United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl 338,087 - 96,015 -
EFERITRBERAA Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 17 - 816 -
At Total 13,278,436,211 93.86 7,141,154,054 100.00
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31-12-2014 31-12-2013

RE aREERS RE aRE%EZS

REALL 51 REALL B

v ecE Customer deposits Balance Contribution(%) Balance Contribution(%)

RIS FRAR Haw Par Corporation Limited 403,864,381 1.37 249,074,194 0.86
N N N UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co.,

MEGERREE ( L) BRAA Ltd 193,647,414 0.66 133,954,172 0.46

UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 48,901,887 0.17 48,564,417 0.17

N . Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
KIE (ki) BREEBRAF M t Co.. Ltd 31,003,666 0.11 25,388,975 0.09
anagement Co.,

g\l (E) BEFRAF Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 13,670,613 0.05 6,075,761 0.02
KRB FEFF=FEZERART Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 10,661,284 0.04 121,166,275 0.42
FMESH (KE) EBEMAT  Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 5,640,561 0.02 2,505,221 0.01
#X (LE) FEERREERAR UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. 4,730,485 0.02 - -
EEREABRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd 1,532,960 0.01 7,250,705 0.02
£FHEEa (LiF) BRAF UOL Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 1,223,028 - 2,204,396 0.01
LRI ELFRAF Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 11,409 - 1,937 -
BSENEEEREERAD gz:(nlg_;icrl:itgzw Par Oceanarium Amusement B R 2 B
&it Total 714,887,688 2.45 596,186,055 2.06
31-12-2014 31-12-2013

RE HE%LZS RE HEELZS

REALLAI REALLFI

R F 2 Receivables-interest receivables Balance Contribution(%) Balance Contribution(%)
LRI E W FRAF Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 198,454 0.07 86,503 0.04
BEFBITROBRAE Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 52,691 0.02 14,904 0.01
R AL FRERAT HZ’?”” UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., - - 3,862,907 185
&it Total 251,145 0.09 3,964,314 1.90
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31-12-2014 31-12-2013
RER HEEZ S RER HE%Z S
REALL B SRELL I
RfF B8 Payables-interest payables Balance Contribution(%) Balance Contribution(%)
KERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 21,011,048 5.05 28,932,415 7.06
R FRAR Haw Par corporation Limited 640,903 0.15 66,215 0.02
%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂ(iﬁ)EWQﬁtﬁmemﬂhm“mm”%mwwcm 575,061 0.14 198,899 0.05
Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
KME (b)) RREERRAR 45,981 0.01 90,583 0.02
Management Co., Ltd.
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 9,984 - 10,482 -
£l (E7) BEFRATE Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 2,696 - 1,175 -
FaEEM (R ) ERERAF Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 2,317 - - -
Rz FHEEMZFLZER/AT Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 1,673 - 13,554 -
X (Lif) EEREERAR UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. 556 - - -
BEIIEREAGRAR Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 280 - 726 -
H£HEEN (LiF) BRAR UOL Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 143 - 263 -
KERIT (RE ) BRAFE United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl 40 - 11 -
LR ELFRAE Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 1 - 35 -
&it Total 22,290,683 5.35 29,314,358 715
31-12-2014 31-12-2013
RER HEEZ S RER HE%EZ S
SREALLHI SRELL I
o7 4T 3k 1 — Lt 7 Y 3k Receivables- other receivables Balance Contribution(%) Balance Contribution(%)
KIERITERA R United Overseas Bank Limited 1,355,768 0.28 3,961,472 0.83
31-12-2014 31-12-2013
RER aHEEZ S RER HE%EZ S
REALL B SRELL I
R4 TR EL A R4 K Payables - other payables Balance  Contribution(%) Balance  Contribution(%)
KERITERLT United Overseas Bank Limited 35,081,083 37.83 18,165,636 28.59
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2014 2013
.01 aEEZ S £8 HE%LES
REALLH] REALLHI
FIE WA Interest income Amount Contribution(%) Amount Contribution(%)
LismmELERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 5,287,152 0.31 818,011 0.05
Kz FHBEEMFZF4FRAT Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 2,094,508 0.12 16,179,939 1.07
EERITRPBRAFE Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 1,705,867 0.10 9,255,889 0.61
KIERITERA R United Overseas Bank Limited 61,049 - 15,974 -
HMEEMABERERAT Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. - - 1,005,851 0.07
it Total 9,148,576 0.53 27,275,664 1.80
2014 2013
&8 HEIERZ S £ HEEZS
REALL B REALL B
FlELTH Interest expense Amount Contribution(%) Amount Contribution(%)
KERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 90,182,564 9.33 42,477,041 6.08
REEEAEE (5 ) BRAT lI;JtS:I).B Venture Management (Shangha) Go., 4,687,080 0.49 3,388,900 0.49
EHELFRAF Haw Par corporation Limited 2,738,237 0.28 1,670,234 0.24
KB ( b ) REEERRAR Kneng Leong (Shanghaj Investment 848,228 0.09 364,370 0.05
Management Co., Ltd.
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 179,612 0.02 88,656 0.01
Rz FHEEMZFLZER/AT Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 134,767 0.01 156,164 0.02
EERITRNDERAT Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 70,696 0.01 261,093 0.04
gl (E17) BIEERAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 51,858 0.01 68,073 0.01
HEEM (K ) ERERAA Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 45,255 - 172,981 0.02
BIIEREAFRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 12,453 - 9,358 -
£HEEa (LiF) BRAF Uol Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 5,902 - 3,489 -
KAERIT (RE ) BRAF United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl 1,408 - 51 R
X (LE) GEREERAR UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. 901 - - -
LigRmELFRA T Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 26 - 73 -
I KB =AW HRA S zz:';iltLi:Z”so(-C’iEtaJQZhou) Real Estate B - 1,019 -
BSE S EEERAT S;'nreknl?i?:it:(?w Par Oceanarium Amusement ) ) 6 )
&it Total 98,958,987 10.24 48,661,508 6.96
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2014 2013
&8 HEXZS Xl HE%Z S
SRELL B SRELL I
FERRAEEN Fee and commission income Amount Contribution(%) Amount  Contribution(%)
KERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 5,434,365 4.15 4,306,012 3.44
LisSmELERAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 80,000 0.06 2,500,000 2.00
RiBEWFEEMZTFLZEGRAT Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 15,264 0.01 - -
FEEH (R ) ERERAT Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 938 - 260 -
KR A R RAT Kheng Lleong (Guangzhou) Real Estate } } 1,314 )
Consulting Co., Ltd.
&it Total 5,530,567 4.22 6,807,586 5.44
2014 2013
&8 HEXZ S &8 HEEZ S
SRELLBI SRELL I
WERERE General & administrative expenses Amount Contribution(%) Amount  Contribution(%)
FEERAIHR IT support
~KRERITERLAA -United Overseas Bank Limited 24,819,831 3.51 21,115,478 3.55
BEEEREREH Rental fee and service fee
~-KIERITHERAR -United Overseas Bank Limited 821,328 0.12 759,728 0.13
=t (B ) BEBRAT -Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 378,900 0.05 378,900 0.06
&it Total 26,020,059 3.68 22,254,106 3.74
2014 2013
&8 HEELZ S X ] HEHEZ S
REALL 51 REALL B
FERG Software development Amount  Contribution(%) Amount  Contribution(%)
KERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 11,806,192 68.48 6,501,693 43.28
31-12-2014 31-12-2013
ZEREE HEEZS EREE HEELZS
REALL B REALL 51
Zil % Entrusted business Entrusted deposits ~ Contribution(%) Entrusted deposits ~ Contribution(%)
BEINEREHERAR Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 11,040,000 7.29 11,040,000 5.49
31-12-2014 31-12-2013
TR HEXZ S EZIACEN aHE%Z 5
REALL B REALL B
Entrusted loan Contribution(%) Entrusted loan Contribution(%)
Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium
BEESIEFEREERAR 9 11,040,000 7.29 11,040,000 5.49

Amusement Park Limited
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31-12-2014 31-12-2013

RER HEEZ S RER HE%Z S

REALL B REALL B

fTEEMIASY Derivatives Balance  Contribution(%) Balance  Contribution(%)

KERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 26,915,559,774 12.68 21,490,820,277 12.69
Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment

I (b ) RABBERAT g Leong (Shangha) 17,498,979 - - -

Management Co., Ltd.
BEFEBITROBRRE Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited - - 1,974,000 -
&it Total 26,933,058,753 12.68 21,492,794,277 12.69

EAE 5 ERKBEITHTHZHREBELERENH LR 5 HK 48T, M—
B HMIEHENER, FIREEWSEFIHT

AN EXRBEEARERPNZZBERAT
REEEARBRARNSNESR. EERSEEEAR,

RBEEARFHFEENAT:

Transactions between the Bank and related parties mentioned
above are carried out in normal course of business and
commercial terms and market price.

Transactions between the Bank and key management personnel
are as follows:

Key management personnel include directors, supervisors and
senior management.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as
follows:

20145 20134
2014 2013
BRFLEREMEGHERN Employee salaries and other short-term benefits 54,008,226 45,007,260

AR ERFRINGVFEESKRIEENHRW SN, KFEREE
HARERZ 5o

No transactions other than normal contribution to the annuity were
conducted between the Bank and the annuity established by the
Bank.
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+—. BFERAGERAREM 11.Post balance sheet events

HEAMSIRFMAREBIL, KASEFEEMEAFERESAE  As at the date on which the financial statements are approved,
MEAER=AERAEE, there is no material post balance sheet event that needs to be

disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.
+Z. LB

ETHRBEDEIEN R, UHFEREREZIIRER,

12.Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform

+=. UHIRFKRZIHE with the current year’s presentation.
AW EHFWEANDEEST2015E3F 18HRWIH A, 13.Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 18 March 2015.
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UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

Unit 105, 2F, 3F, 111 Dongyuan Road,
Pudong New Area,

Shanghai 200120

Phone: (86) (21) 6061 8888
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